o .. e S
w.'rmw.rmm A

=

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

FIU, Modesto A. Maidique Campus, Graham Center Ballrooms
Livestream: http:/ [ webcast. fin.edu/

Thursday, March 3, 2022
8:30 AM

Chair: Carlos A. Duart
Vice Chair: Carlos Trujillo
Members: Natasha Lowell, Joerg Reinhold, Alexander Rubido

AGENDA

1. Call to Order and Chair’s Remarks

2. Approval of Minutes

3. Action Items

ACl1. Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminence

Metrics
A. Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminence
Status — Data Integrity Certification
B. Audit of Performance Based Funding and Emerging
Preeminent Metrics Data Integrity

AC2. Proposed Regulation FIU-117 Fraud Prevention and Detection

AC3. Proposed Revisions to Audit and Compliance Committee

Charter

4. Discussion Items (No _Action Required)
4.1 Office of Internal Audit Status Report

4.2 Office of University Compliance and Integrity Quarterly
Report

Florida International University Design and Effectiveness Review
Compliance and Ethics Program Survey Assessment Based Results

Catlos A. Duart

Catlos A. Duart

Trevor L. Williams

Trevor L. Williams

Trevor L. Williams

Trevor L. Williams

Jennifer LaPorta



http://webcast.fiu.edu/

The Florida International University
Board of Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee
Agenda

March 3, 2022

Page 2

5. New Business

5.1 Senior Management Discussion of Audit Processes

6. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment

The nexct Audit and Compliance Committee Meeting is scheduled for June 16, 2022

Carlos A. Duart

Carlos A. Duart




FIU Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance
Committee Meeting

Time: March 03, 2022 8:30 AM - 9:30 AM EST

Location: FIU, Modesto A. Maidique Campus, Graham Center Ballrooms | Livestream:
http://webcast.fiu.edu/

Section Agenda Item Presenter Page

1. Call to Order and Chair’s Remarks Carlos A. Duart

2. Approval of Minutes Carlos A. Duart 1
Minutes: Audit and Compliance 2
Committee meeting, December 8, 2021

3. Action Items

AC1. Perfor[nance Bas_ed Funding _and Trevor L. Williams 7
Emerging Preeminence Metrics
A. Performance Based Funding and
Emerging Preeminence Status - Data 8
Integrity Certification
B. Audit of Performance Based Funding
and Emerging Preeminent Metrics Data 11
Integrity
Proposed Regulation FIU-117 Fraud

AC2. Prevention and Detection Trevor L. Williams 43

44

AC3. Proposed Revisions to Audit and Trevor L. Williams 50

Compliance Committee Charter
51

4, Discussion Items (No Action Required)

41 Office of Internal Audit Status Trevor L. Williams 59
Report
Office of University Compliance and ,

4.2 Integrity Quarterly Report Jennifer LaPorta 70
Florida International University Design 92
and Effectiveness Review
Compliance and Ethics Program Survey 124
Assessment Based Results

5. New Business Carlos A. Duart

51 Senior Management Discussion of Audit

' Processes




Section

Agenda Item

Presenter

Page

6.

Concluding Remarks and
Adjournment

Carlos A. Duart




Approval of Minutes

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Audit and Compliance Committee
March 3, 2022

Subject: Approval of Minutes of Meeting held December 8, 2021

Proposed Committee Action:
Approval of Minutes of the Audit and Compliance Committee meeting held on December 8,
2021, at the FIU, Modesto A. Maidique Campus, Graham Center Ballrooms and via Zoom.

Background Information:
Committee members will review and approve the Minutes of the Audit and Compliance
Committee meeting held on December 8, 2021, at the FIU, Modesto A. Maidique Campus,
Graham Center Ballrooms and via Zoom.

Supporting Documentation: Minutes: Audit and Compliance Committee meeting,
December 8, 2021

Facilitator/Presentet: Carlos A. Duart, Chair, Audit and Compliance Committee

Page 1 of 125



DRAFT

Board of
Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee
December 8, 2021
FIU, Modesto A. Maidique Campus, Graham Center Ballrooms and via Zoom

MINUTES

1. Call to Order and Chair’s Remarks
The Florida International University Board of Trustees’ Audit and Compliance Committee meeting

was called to order by Committee Chair Carlos A. Duart at 8:32 a.m. on Wednesday, December 8,
2021.

General Counsel Carlos B. Castillo conducted roll call of the Audit and Compliance Committee
members and verified a quorum. Present were Trustees Carlos A. Duart, Chair; Carlos Trujillo, ice
Chair (arrived after roll call); Natasha Lowell; Joerg Reinhold; and Alexander Rubido.

Board Chair Dean C. Colson, Board Vice Chair Roger Tovar, and Trustees Cesar L. Alvarez, Donna
J. Hrinak, and Marc D. Sarnoff and University President Mark B. Rosenberg also were in attendance.

Committee Chair Duart welcomed all Trustees and members of the University administration.

Committee Chair Duart explained that the Committee’s Charter was created in compliance with
Florida Board of Governors (BOG) Regulation and in alignment with best practices, adding that at
the Committee’s September meeting, the Charter was reviewed as a discussion item. He indicated
that minor revisions were identified but any potential substantive change to the Charter is dependent
on the adoption of a proposed new fraud regulation, which addresses BOG Regulations 3.003,
Fraud Protection and Detection and 4.001, University System Processes for Complaints of Waste,
Fraud, or Financial Mismanagement. He remarked that that all identified revisions to the Charter
will be made, and the revised Charter and new fraud regulation should be presented for Board of
Trustees’ approval at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

2. Approval of Minutes

Committee Chair Duart asked that the Committee approve the minutes of the meeting held on
September 14, 2021. A motion was made and unanimously passed to approve the minutes of the
Audit and Compliance Committee meeting held on September 14, 2021.

3. Action Item

AC1. External Program Review of the Florida International University Compliance
Program, 2021

Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer Jennifer LaPorta presented the 2021 external program review
of the Florida International University Compliance Program for Committee review. She explained
that the scope and methodology of the review included interviews with members of the Compliance

Page 2 of 125



Florida International University
Board of Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee
Minutes

December 8, 2021

Page | 2

team, senior leadership, compliance liaisons, and a member of the Audit and Compliance
Committee. Ms. LaPorta thanked Trustee Natasha Lowell for meeting with the assessment team
from Ethisphere. Ms. LaPorta pointed out that the review also included evaluation of the
compliance team’s responses to an Ethics Quotient Survey, program documentation, and several
risk and compliance related processes. She added that Ethisphere compared said data against the
BOG Regulation using its own assessment process. Ms. LaPorta indicated that the Compliance team
also requested Ethisphere to conduct a deeper evaluation beyond the required BOG reportt to
inform workplan initiatives, adding that Ethisphere provided a detailed memorandum that includes
benchmarking against the programs and practices of leading companies around the world. She
remarked that said memorandum will be provided to the Committee at the next regularly scheduled
meeting as a discussion item.

Ms. LaPorta explained that it is Ethisphere’s overall opinion that the Compliance program
“Generally Conforms” with BOG Regulation 4.003 with respect to the relevant structures, policies,
procedures and processes by which they are applied. She added that “Generally Conforms” was the
highest possible rating, commenting that the assessors pointed out that the compliance program
environment is well structured and progressive and that BOG regulations are understood and
management is endeavoring to provide useful tools and implement appropriate practices. She
described successful Compliance program practices as noted by the assessors. Ms. LaPorta
mentioned that there were two matters for consideration by management and the Committee. She
indicated that the assessors referenced significant new regulation and the need to address resource
allocation for compliance with new mandates. She added that FIU has internal mechanisms in place
for addressing the need for additional resources through the budgeting and strategic initiative
process. She pointed out that the assessors also recommended that the Committee provide written
performance review input for the Chief Compliance Officer, adding that she will be discussing the
recommendation with the University President and at the next State University System Compliance
Consortium committee meeting. She mentioned that the recommendations for the Chief
Compliance Officer’s consideration are all initiatives that are currently underway.

A motion was made and unanimously passed that the Audit and Compliance Committee
recommend that the Florida International University Board of Trustees approve the External
Program Review of the Florida International University Compliance Program (the “External
Program Review”) and authorize the submission of the External Program Review to the Florida
Board of Governors.

4. Discussion Items

4.1 Office of Internal Audit Status Report

Chief Audit Executive Mr. Trevor L. Williams presented the Internal Audit Status Report,
commenting on recently completed audits. In terms of the Audit of Laboratory Safety, he indicated
that the Office of Internal Audit concluded that the University has established robust policies and
procedures and effective governance and oversight practices to enforce regulatory compliance over
lab safety. He added that the audit identified gaps in the operations of laboratories, indicating that
some of said gaps have a more direct impact on safety, while others are operational in nature. Mr.
Williams explained that the process for managing lab safety inspections could be more efficient,
notification and correction of lab deficiencies could be timelier, lab personnel need to ensure all

Page 3 of 125



Florida International University
Board of Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee
Minutes

December 8, 2021

Page | 3

required refresher safety training are current, and controls are needed to ensure controlled
substances and other hazardous materials are not impropetrly purchased with departmental credit
cards. He remarked that improvements are needed for managing access to labs, including timely
removal of such access for terminated lab employees. He commented that the audit resulted in 11
recommendations, noting that management has agreed to implement the necessary corrective
actions.

Relating to the Audit of Healthcare Affiliated Agreements for Student Placement/Rotation, Mr.
Williams explained that the period covered during the audit was between July 2018 and June 2021.
He pointed out that the audit reviewed the Herbert Wertheim College of Medicine (HWCOM) and
the Nicole Wertheim College of Nursing and Health Sciences (NWCNHS) and that both utilize
affiliated agreements to afford students the education, training, and clinical experience required by
their curricula. He remarked that the audit concluded that HWCOM and NWCNHS have
appropriate internal controls for some areas of their operations for managing affiliated agreements.
Mr. Williams mentioned that the Colleges have established processes in place for the execution of
affiliated agreements and student placement in the facilities covered by said agreements. He
described the contract utilization rates as 80% for HWCOM and 49% for NWCNHS. He
commented that HWCOM appeared to have good controls over the timely and accurate payment
for the services provided through the affiliated agreements, stating that NWCNHS agreements are
not fee-for-service agreements, as prohibited by Florida Statutes. He noted that HWCOM students
who participated in the voluntary end of program survey, issued by the Association of American
Medical Colleges, found that nearly 90% of those students were satisfied with their program
experience.

Mr. Williams indicated that the Office of Internal Audit offered the following recommendations to
improve the management of executed affiliated healthcare agreements and general operations: (1)
review all contracts that are auto renewed and transition them to contracts with set terms; (2) update
the affiliated agreements to include insurance coverage and an indemnification clause and ensure
that the General Counsel reviews all contracts for legal sufficiency; (3) consider implementing a
universal contract management system; (4) improve controls over use of the Volunteer and
Employee Criminal History System by removing access of a former employee and another employee
whose duties no longer require access and prohibit employees from sharing user credentials; (5)
consider developing an effective quality control review process for validating the background
screening results; and (6) ensure appropriate supporting documentation of students’ completion of
prerequisite requirements are maintained and that all employees complete the Outside
Activity/Conflict of Interest Form.

Mr. Williams pointed out that there are six (6) audits in various stages of completion. He explained
that the Office of Internal Audit receives complaints of alleged wrongdoing, including suspected
fraud, waste, and abuse, adding that six (6) complaints have been received since the Committee’s
September meeting. He stated that the Office of Internal Audit has evaluated the complaints
received and are currently investigating those deemed appropriate for their office to investigate and
have referred the others to the appropriate units within the University for investigations. Mr.
Williams remarked that the Office of Internal Audit continues to provide support with regard to the

Page 4 of 125



Florida International University
Board of Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee
Minutes

December 8, 2021

Page | 4

development of University’s Fraud Protection and Detection Regulation, noting that the Regulation
has been posted to the University’s Regulation website.

4.2 Office of University Compliance and Integrity Quarterly Report

Ms. LaPorta provided work plan updates and highlighted key initiatives. She explained that she
serves as the Chair of the Foreign Influence and Global Risk Taskforce, and as such, oversees the
four distinct subcommittees formed to address the requirements of new Florida Statutes regarding
foreign influence and research integrity. She added that several of the provisions focus on seven
“countries of concern”, stating that the required screening, foreign travel controls and reporting
mandates extend far beyond those countries of concern and affect all of the University’s
international touchpoints. She described the subcommittees, pointing out that most workflows will
require a multidisciplinary approach.

Ms. LaPorta commented on the fall newsletter and indicated that the Code of Conduct is under final
review by key stakeholders and that over 2,700 University employees responded to the Compliance
and Ethics Program Survey. She remarked on the policy development process, which the
Compliance team has managed, including ushering 12 new policies through the appropriate review
process ptior to posting. Ms. LaPorta mentioned that nine (9) training/attestation campaigns wete
designed, developed, and launched and are in various stages of escalation. With respect to
investigation, discipline, incentive, and corrective action, she indicated that 23 open reports are in
various stages of the assignment, review, and tracking process. She mentioned that the Office of
Compliance continues to work on the development of the enterprise risk management platform.

5. New Business
Trustee Lowell commended the Compliance team on the results of the external review.

5.1 Office of Internal Audit Discussion of Audit Processes

Committee Chair Duart noted that, as is stipulated in the Audit and Compliance Committee Charter,
the Committee must meet with the Office of Internal Audit and senior management, separately, to
discuss the audit process. He further noted that because this meeting is conducted in the Sunshine,
no one present or participating via Zoom or accessing the meeting via the webcast was required to
exit those platforms during the discussion with the Office of Internal Audit, adding that this was
strictly voluntary. The Committee met with Mr. Williams. Mr. Williams confirmed that the
administration has provided the Office of Internal Audit with the support, resources, and
independence needed to perform the audit function in an objective manner. He added that he is able
to perform his work without hinderance, influence, or pressure. In terms of managing and accepting
risks, he stated that management has been and continues to be responsive regarding the
recommendations from the Office of Internal Audit. Mr. Williams commented on the challenges
that the Office of Internal Audit is facing as it relates to appropriately sourcing open positions,
noting that while recruitment efforts continue for the two (2) open positions, qualified candidates
are seeking hybrid work environments and competitive compensation levels.

In response to Trustee Lowell, Mr. Williams indicated that the Office of Internal Audit is working

on-site with two (2) Office of Internal Audit team members working remotely. Further responding
to Trustee Lowell, he remarked that current Office of Internal Audit team members have also

Page 5 of 125



Florida International University
Board of Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee
Minutes

December 8, 2021

Page | 5

discussed their desire for a hybrid work environment. In response to Committee Chair Duart, Mr.
Williams commented that the Division of Human Resources has provided a market analysis and that
the open positions could potentially impact the programmed audits for 2022. Board Vice Chair
Roger Tovar mentioned that while reports can be drafted from an off-campus location, the audit
function does require on-site work and asked that Mr. Williams inform the Committee of any
budgetaty issues and/or concerns that may arise. Board Vice Chair Tovar mentioned that as the
University continues to expand its footprint, it is critical to remain focused on the various campuses
and locations.

6. Concluding Remarks and Adjournment

With no other business, Committee Chair Carlos A. Duart adjourned the meeting of the Florida
International University Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee on Wednesday,
December 8, 2021, at 9:22 a.m.

Page 6 of 125



Agenda Item 3 AC1

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Audit and Compliance Committee
March 3, 2022

Subject: Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminence Metrics
A. Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminence Status —
Data Integrity Certification
B. Audit of Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminent
Metrics Data Integrity

Proposed Committee Action:
Recommend that the Florida International University Board of Trustees:
1. Approve the Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminence Status — Data
Integrity Certification to be signed by the Chair of the FIU Board of Trustees and the
University President; and

2. Approve the Audit Report - Audit of the Performance Based Funding and Emerging
Preeminent Metrics Data Integrity.

Background Information:
This item is presented pursuant to a request from the State University System of Florida
Board of Governors (BOG) dated June 14, 2021. The Chair of the Florida International
University Board of Trustees (BOT) and the President of the University shall execute a Data
Integrity Certification, furnished by the BOG. The certification document shall be signed by
the President and BOT Chair after being approved by the BOT.

To make such certifications meaningful, the University’s Chief Audit Executive has been
directed to perform an audit of the University’s processes that ensure the completeness,
accuracy, and timeliness of data submissions. The results of the audit shall be provided to
the BOG after being accepted by the BOT. The completed Data Integrity Certification and
audit report will be submitted to the Office of Inspector General and Director of
Compliance no later than March 3, 2022.

Supporting Documentation: =~ March 2022 Data Integrity Certification

Audit of the Performance Based Funding and
Emerging Preeminent Metrics Data Integrity

Facilitator/Presenter: Trevor L. Williams

Page 7 of 125



GZT 3o g =beq
[ 280 (120T Yo4uN) utioq uoypo34a) fuaqus viwq

"901JJO SIOUJIBAOS) JO
pJeog ayj 0} Bjep Jo uoissiwgns ay) abeuew pue AJiuso 0) Jojessiuiwupy ereq
O X | e paiodde aAey | ‘200°E uonenbay SIOUIBAOS) JO pJeog YlIM 8ouUeplodde U °S

"901JJO SIOUJBAOS) JO pieog 8y} 0] ejep 8)einooe papiro.d
O X Ausieniun Aw ‘200’€ uonenbay SIOUIBAOS) JO pJeog YlIM 8oUBeplodde U] “f

"JoW 8le SIOUJBA0K)
JO pJeog ay} Jo sjuswalinbai Buiodas pue ejep e jey} alinbal |jeys pue
‘AlIsIaAIUN By} INOgE UOIBLLIOJUI BAI}08))8-1S00 pue ‘Ajpwi} ‘ejeindoe apiaoid
0} WajsAs uonewloul BAI08YS Ue ulelulew | Jey) padinbai sey seajsni

O X Jo pieog Aw ‘(1)(€£) 100" | uonenbay SIoUIBA0S) JO pJeoyg YlIM 8OUBPIOIJe U| €

‘'ssaus)e|dwod pue Aoeindoe S} SaINSud YoIym

Jauuew e ul pauodal pue ‘paziiewwns ‘passasold ‘paplodal ale SIOUIBA0D)

JO pJeog ay} pue saajsni] Jo pieog Aw yym pajly spodad ul pasinbal

Bjep jey) ainsua 0} paubisap sainpadold pue ‘sjospuod ‘sassadold ajqeljal ‘o)
O X pajiwi| JOU 8Je }Inqg ‘epnjoul SaljiAl}oe Bulo}luoW pUe S|0JJUOD |BuldulI 8SBY | T

"snje)g eousulwaald-bulblawg Jo 8ousulWeald pue Bujew-uolsiosp
Buipun4 paseq-aouBWIONSd Ul SIOUIBAOS) JO pieog 8y} AQ pash aq ||IM YoIym
90140 SIOUIBAOS) JO pleog 8y} 0} papiwgns ejep jo Buiuodal pue uoos|jo0o
s AustaAlun Aw JaA0 Buliojluow pue S|0JIU0D [BUIBIUI BAIOBYS ‘paulelueW

O X | pue paysljgeise aAey pue ‘Buiuiejuiew pue Buiysiigeiss Joj ajqisuodsal we | ‘|

90UBJ949Y / JUBWIWOD ON | seA suonejuasaiday

suonejuasaiday uonesyiyuan Ajubajuj eyeq

'sBuipuy ypne
juesyiubis 10 jeldjew pajou Aue j08j4al 0} suoneyuasaldal AJIpo "SIOUIBA09 JO pleog ay) 0} Bupjew aie noA uolnejuasaidal ay)
Jo Ajllepo ainsua 0] sesuodsal 0N, Aue ulejdxg ‘mojaq uonejuasalidal yoes o) ON, 10 SOA, puodsal ases|d :SNOILONYLSNI

AJISISAIUN [euoieuIaju] epriojq :aweN AjisiaAlun

¢c0¢ YaieN
uoneoiue) Ajubaiu| ejeq




GZTI 30 6 °obeg
Z abed

wioH uoneoyua) fAubsjul ejeq

"soujaW pajejal ayy buneul Ajjeroiie jo sesodind ay} o) apew usaq jou
aAey pue s|eob ue|d o1681e11S Wv)sAS Alisianiun 81e1S yum aulj ul saoioeud
pue suoljelado s Alsiaaiun ay) buuq o) spew uaaqg aAey sasodind asay)

Joj pasn ejep Bunoedwi suoisiosp pue sabueyo Aoljod AjsiaAlun jeyy AJiuso |
‘uonenpelb ybnouy) suoissiwpe wolj — suonetado Ausialun jo abuel spim e
uo Ao1jod AjISIaAIUN SALIP |[IM UOIIBISPISUOD Snje)s aouaulwaald-Bbuiblawg 1o
a0uauIWsald pue aAlenul Buipung paseq-aeoueWIOLdd 8y} 0} paje|al elep Jo
asn ay} 1o} sjuswalinbal Aiojnje}s pue SI0UIBAO0S) JO pleog jey) aziubodal |

11

‘'suonebisaul pue ‘sjpne ‘smainal ybnolay) pajou salouaiolep o) suoloe
9AI110811090 /aAnuanald ajelidosdde pue Ajswiy Bunje) Joy ajgisuodsal we |

01

. 100°¢ uonenbay siouldanos) Jo pleog Jad

Blep SIY] JO UOIjBOlIa0 21UoJ}09|e sjuasaldal jeaoaddy 1oy pwugng Buissald
Hwgns 0} Apeay, ‘uswalels buimo|ioy ayy buibpaimouoe Aq weisAg ejeq
AjIsIanlun 8.1 By} Ul SUOISSIWQNS Blep Salila0 A||eo1uoJ}09|d Jojel]SIulupy
ejeq Aw ‘200°¢ uonenbay SIOUIBAOD) JO pJeog YlM aoueplodde u|

"9|Npayos palloads ay) Yyium soueplodoe
Ul 8210 SIOUJBAON) JO pieog 8yl 0] S8l Blep papiwgns sey Jojesiuiupy
eleq Aw ‘/00°E uonenbay SIOUIBAOL) JO pJeog YlIIM 80UBpIodoe U

‘uolssiwgns
3|1l 8Y1 YIIM papnjoul Sem SIoLid [B21JLIO Y} JO uoneue|dxs USILIM & ‘O# wa)l
ul palynuapl saessaoo.d ay) ybnoiy) ‘paiiuspl usaq aABY SI0LIS [EOIILIO USUAA

X

"901JO pJeog ay) Aq papiroid suoniuljep ejep pue ‘sessasold

‘suoneoiidde Buisn ajiy 8y} uo sjse) Bulwliopad sepnjoul aouabijip anp

ay] e9iIWwWo) ele SIOUIaA0D) Jo pieog 8yl Aq paysi|qelsa elsllo ay) yim
JU8)SISU0D sI (uoissiwgns 0} Joud) aji} elep ay} aJNsus 0} JojeJjsiullpy eleq
Aw payse] aAey | ‘/00°€ uonenbay SIOUIBAOL) JO pJeog YjiM 8oueplodoe uj

90UBJ949Y / JUBWIWOD

ON

SOA

suolnejuasaiday

suonejuasaiday uonesyiyuan Ajubajuj eyeq

uoneoyiua) Ajbaiu| eyeq




GZT 3o 0T =bea
¢ abed

wioH uoneoyua) fAubsjul ejeq

Jley) ses)sni] Jo pieog

aleq :uoeoIeD

‘abpajmouy Aw Jo 1s8q ay)

0] 1081100 pue anJj SI pue sas8)snJ) Jo pJeoq Ajlsiaalun ay) Aq panoidde usaq sey (sjgeoljdde Ji) sneis eousulweaid-Buibiswg
1o @ouBUIWBald pue Bulpun{ paseg-souewloLad J0) uoneoyial Albaiul eleq SJOUIBA0D) JO pieog SIYl 1ey) ANua9 |

Juspisaid

aleq :uoeoIeD

"SIOUJBAON) JO pJeog 8yl pue ses)jsnu) Jo pJeoq ay) 0} pauodal aq ||IM UoeWIOojUI

SIy1 1ey) AleD | "sjuswe)elS 8Say) puelsiapun pue peal aAey | 1Y) sabpaimoudoe mojaq ainjeubis A\ ‘PIOA UONEDIILSD

SIY] Jepual sjuswale)s asay) 0) Bunejal uonew.loul pjlayyim Jo ‘Buipes|siw ‘as|e} ‘pajenuelsgnsun Aue jey) pueisiapun |

pue ‘eBpajmouy Aw Jo 1s8q ay) 0] 1981402 pue anJ) si (ajgeoljdde Ji) sniers sousulwesid-BuiBiswg Jo sousulweald pue Buipun
paseq-souewloLad J0) uoneoyial Albaiul ejeq sIoulanos) Jo pieog ay) Jo Led se papiroid uonewlojul jje 1ey) AJiueo |

salinjeubig ‘suoinjejuasaiday uonesyay Ajabajuj eyeq

"SIOUIBA0L) JO pieog ay) Aq

paysl|gelse suoniulap eyep ayl yum saljdwoo ‘[Ajpanoadsal ‘Buipun paseq

-90UBWIONB pue aduaulwaald Buipiebal] seiniels epLoj4 ‘26°L00L pue

G90/° 100} suonoas 0] Juensind pauiwgns elep ay) Jeyl paljlioA pa}onpuod
Jipne ay} Jey} Ajiuad | ‘senjels eplioj4 ‘90 L00L UOI08S Ylm 9oUepIodde U] €]

X

"9AIIN2aXa jipne Jaiyo Aw Aq pajonpuod (sjgeaidde Ji) upny Aubaiu| ejeq
aouaulwaald-buibiewg 10 8ousuiwsald ay) pue 1pny Alubalu| eleq buipung
paseq-aduewWIoLad 8y} 40} dJom Jo 8dooas ay} 0} paalbe | jeyy Auuad | 71

aoUaIa49y / JUBWIWOD

ON

SO

suonejuasaidoy

suonejuasaiday uonesyiuan Aubajuj eyeq

uoneoyiua) Ajbaiu| eyeq




Office of
Internal Audit

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

Audit of Performance Based Funding and
Emerging Preeminent Metrics Data Integrity
Report No. 21/22-03
February 10, 2022

Page 11 of 125



Office of
Internal Audit

Date: February 10, 2022

To: Elizabeth Bejar, Senior Vice President of Academic & Student Affairs
Hiselgis Perez, Associate Vice President of Office of Analysis and Information
Management

From:  Trevor L. Williams, Chief Audit EerM

Subject: Audit of Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminent Metrics
Data Integrity, Report No. 21/22-03

Beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, the State University System of Florida Board of
Governors (BOG) instituted a performance-based funding program predicated on 10
performance metrics used to evaluate Florida’s public universities. For fiscal year 2020-
2021, the Florida Legislature and Governor allocated $560 million in performance-based
awards, of which FIU ranked number one and received $67.5 million. Furthermore, in
2020, the University achieved sufficient preeminent metrics to receive the designation of
an emerging preeminent state research university by the authority of Florida Statute
1001.7065.

Pursuant to a request by the BOG and the mandate of Florida Statute 1001.706, we have
completed an audit of the University’s performance-based funding and emerging
preeminent metrics. The primary objectives of our audit were to determine whether the
processes established by the University ensure the completeness, accuracy, and
timeliness of data submissions to the BOG that support the Performance Based Funding
and Emerging Preeminent Metrics and to provide an objective basis of support for the
University Board of Trustees Chair and President to sign the representations made in the
Performance Based Funding - Data Integrity Certification that will be submitted to the
Board of Trustees and filed with the BOG by March 3, 2022.

Our audit confirmed that FIU continues to have good process controls for maintaining and
reporting performance metrics data. Overall, the system continues to function in a reliable
manner, in all material respects. However, although having no adverse impact on the
calculation of the metrics tested, we identified gaps that if appropriately addressed by
management, will enhance the process. We offered four recommendations to address
the issues identified during the audit. Management has agreed to implement all
recommendations offered.

| also take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the cooperation and courtesies
extended to us during this audit.

Attachment

C: FIU Board of Trustees
Kenneth A. Jessell, Interim University President
Aime Martinez, Interim Chief Financial Officer and Vice President for Finance and
Administration
Javier |. Marques, Vice President and Chief of Staff, Office of the President

. P 12 of 125
Carlos B. Castillo, General Counsel age °



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ... ittt ettt e et e et e e e e e emeeeeaeeenneeeeeans 1
OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, AND METHODOLOGY ....oiiiiiiieaeeeieee e ceeeeeeeeeee e e 2
BACKGROUND ...ttt et e e e et e e e e s e e e e e annee e e e e aamneeeaeeenneeeaeans 4
OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS. ..ot 9
OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ... 10
Areas Within the Scope of the Audit Tested Without Exception .............ccoccciiieeenn. 10
Data Accuracy Testing - Performance Based Funding Metrics..........ccccevvveevvinnnnnnn. 10
Metric 4 — Four-Year FTIC Graduation Rate ...........ccccccvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee 11

Metric 5 — Academic Progress Rate (2" Year Retention with GPA
ADOVE 2.0) oottt 11

Metric 9a — Two-Year Graduation Rate for Florida College System Associate
Arts Transfer Student ... 12

Metric 9b — Six-Year Graduation Rate for Students who are Awarded a Pell
Grant in their FirSt Year ... 12

Metric 10 — Board of Trustees’ Choice - Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees. 13

Data Accuracy Testing - Emerging Preeminent Metrics...........cccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccenn. 14
Metric 3 — Freshman Retention Rate ... 14
Metric 6 — Total Annual Research Expenditures ............coooveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicnceeens 14
Metric 11 — Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees ...........coooevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeens 15

Data File Submissions and Resubmissions ...........ccccoiiieeeee 16
Data File SUDMISSIONS ..........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 16
Data File ReSUDMISSIONS .......ccooiiiiiiiii e 16

Review of University Initiatives ... 18

Page 13 of 125



Areas Within the Scope of the Audit Tested With Exception.........cccccoevveiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnn. 19

1. Data Systems Design and CONtrolS.......ccooooiiiiiiiiie e 19
Selected Access CoNtrols REVIEW............oociiiiiiiiiiiee e 19

Change Management CoNntrols ..........cccoviiieriiiiiiiiiiin e 20

2. Preeminent Metrics Methodology ..........ooemmiiiiiiiiiiiii e 23
APPENDIX | — IN-SCOPE BOG DATA ELEMENTS ......ooiiiiiiiiiiiee it 24
APPENDIX Il = COMPLEXITY RATINGS LEGEND.....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 26
APPENDIX Ill — OIA CONTACT AND STAFF ACKNOWLEDGMENT ......ccccciiveeiiieen. 27

Page 14 of 125



EXECUTIVE
SUMMARY

Introduction

Beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, the
State University System of Florida
Board of Governors (BOG) instituted
a performance based funding
program  predicated on 10
performance metrics used to
evaluate Florida’s public universities.
For fiscal year 2021-2022, FIU
ranked number one and received
$67.5 milion of the $560 million
distributed by the Florida Legislature
and Govemor. Furthermore, in 2020,
the University achieved sufficient
preeminent metrics to receive the
designaton of an emerging
preeminent state research university.

What We Did

As required by the BOG, we
performed this audit to determine
whether the processes established
by the University ensure the

completeness,  accuracy, and
timeliness of data submissions to the
BOG that support the Performance
Based Funding and Emerging
Preeminent Metrics.

The reportable conditions found and

What We Concluded

In summary, we concluded that the University
continues to have good process controls for
maintaining and reporting performance metrics
data. In our opinion, the system, in all material
respects, continues to function in a reliable
manner. Nevertheless, although having no
adverse impact on the calculation of the metrics
tested, we identified opportunities for process
improvements. Specifically, information
technology and general controls could be
strengthened by the following actions:

e A review of access controls is done based
on a specific list of employees instead of
based on critical roles. Perform a review of
access controls based on critical roles in
PantherSoft.

e« The BOG mapping document had not been
reviewed since 2014 and several auditable
fields were not enabled. Review the
PantherSoft to BOG Mapping of Elements
document to determine completeness and
ensure all auditable fields are enabled.

e Upon termination or transfer, some former
employees’ access was not disabled or
deactivated in the PAWS system. Create a
formal process for disabling accounts once
no longer required and routinely verify
access.

e The AIM-BOG Business Process Manual
does not contain guidance to staff related to
preeminent metrics. Update the Manual to
include policies and procedures related to
preeminent metrics.

the background giving rise to the foregoing

recommendations are detailed in the Observations and Recommendations section
beginning on page 10 of this report. We have also included the mitigation plans
management has proposed in response to our observations and recommendations, along

with their implementation dates and complexity ratings.

Page 1 of 27
Page 15 of 125



OBJECTIVES, SCOPE, AND METHODOLOGY

As directed by the State University System (SUS) of Florida Board of Governors and
mandated by Florida Statutes, we have completed an audit of the data integrity and
processes utilized in the University’s Performance Based Funding (PBF or “Funding
Metrics”) and Emerging Preeminent Metrics. Our audit entailed an examination of data
files submitted to the BOG between September 1, 2020, and August 31, 2021. The
primary objectives of our audit were to:

(a) Determine whether the processes established by the University ensure the
completeness, accuracy, and timeliness of data submissions to the BOG that
support the Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminent Metrics;
and

(b) Provide an objective basis of support for the University Board of Trustees Chair
and President to sign the representations made in the Data Integrity
Certification, which will be submitted to the Board of Trustees and filed with the
BOG by BOG-approved extended due date of March 3, 2022.

Our audit was conducted in conformance with the International Standards for the
Professional Practice of Internal Auditing promulgated by The Institute of Internal Auditors
and /S Audit and Assurance Standards issued by ISACA, and included an examination
of the supporting records, systems, and processes and the performance of such other
auditing procedures, as we considered necessary under the circumstances.

During the audit, we:

e Updated our understanding of the data flow process for all the relevant data files
from the transactional level to their submission to the BOG;

e Performed an analysis of the Annual AIM [Office of Analysis and Information
Management] Review. This review includes an assessment of audit logs, system
access controls, and user privileges within PantherSoft and the State University
Database System (SUDS);

e Confirmed change management controls for redefining and/or correcting data to
meet the BOG’s data definition standards during the submission and resubmission
process;

e Interviewed key personnel, including AIM employees, functional unit leads, and
those responsible for developing and maintaining the information systems;

e Reviewed BOG data definitions and methodology and meeting notes from the
relevant groups within the BOG and FIU to identify changes to the BOG Funding
Metrics;

e Observed current practices and processing techniques;

e Tested the latest data files for four of the 10 performance based funding metrics
and three of the nine emerging preeminent metrics achieved and submitted to the
BOG as of August 31, 2021.

Sample sizes and elements selected for testing were determined on a judgmental basis
applying a non-statistical sampling methodology.

Page 2 of 27 Page 16 of 125



Audit planning and fieldwork was conducted from August 2021 to January 2022. In fiscal
year 2020-2021, we issued the report Audit of Performance Based Funding and Emerging
Preeminence Metrics Data Integrity, (Report No. 20/21-06), and a separate management
letter dated February 1, 2021. That audit management letter offered two

recommendations requiring follow-up which management implemented, and our office
verified during our audit.

Page 3 of 27 Page 17 of 125



BACKGROUND

The Florida Board of Governors has broad governance responsibilities affecting
administrative and budgetary matters for Florida’s 12 public universities. Beginning in
fiscal year 2013-2014, the BOG instituted a performance-based funding program, which
is predicated on 10 performance metrics used to evaluate the universities on a range of
indicators, including graduation and retention rates, job placement, and access rate,
among others. Two of the 10 performance metrics are “choice metrics”—one selected by
the BOG and one selected by each university’s Board of Trustees. These metrics were
chosen after reviewing over 40 metrics identified in the Universities’ Work Plans but are
subject to change yearly. The 10 metrics pertaining to Florida International University are
depicted in the following table.

FIU’s Performance Based Funding Metrics

Percent of Bachelor's Graduates
1. | Enrolled or Employed (Earning 6.
$25,000+) One Year After Graduation

Median Wages of Bachelor’s

2. | Graduates Employed Full-time One 7.
Year After Graduation
Cost to the Student Net Tuition and

3. | Fees for Resident Undergraduates 8.
per 120 Credit Hours

Bachelor's Degrees Awarded in Areas
of Strategic Emphasis

University Access Rate (Percent of
Undergraduates with a Pell-grant)

Graduate Degrees Awarded in Areas
of Strategic Emphasis

Two-Year Graduation Rate for Florida
9a. College System Associate in Arts

4 Four-Year FTIC (Full-time, First-Time- Transfer Students
" | In-College) Graduation Rate Six-Year Graduation Rate for
9b. = Students who are Awarded a Pell
Grant in their First Year
5 Academic Progress Rate (2" Year 10 Board of Trustees’ Choice — Number

Retention with GPA above 2.0) of Post-Doctoral Appointees

In 2016, the Florida Legislature passed, and the Governor signed into law the Board of
Governors’ Performance-Based Funding Model, now codified into the Florida Statutes
under Section 1001.66, Florida College System Performance-Based Incentive.

The BOG’s model has four guiding principles:

Use metrics that align with the SUS Strategic Plan goals
Reward Excellence or Improvement

Have a few clear, simple metrics

Acknowledge the unique mission of the different institutions

PO~

Page 4 of 27 Page 18 of 125



The Performance Funding Program also has four key components:

1. Institutions are evaluated and receive a numeric score for either Excellence or
Improvement relating to each metric.

2. Data is based on one-year data.

3. The benchmarks for Excellence were based on the Board of Governors’ 2025
System Strategic Plan goals and analysis of relevant data trends, whereas the
benchmarks for Improvement were decided after reviewing data trends for each
metric.

4. The Florida Legislature and Governor determine the amount of new state
funding and the proportional amount of institutional funding that would come
from each university’s recurring state-base appropriation.

The following table summarizes the performance funds allocated for the fiscal year 2021-
2022 using the results of the performance metrics from fiscal year 2020-2021, wherein
FIU ranked first and earned 97 points.

Florida Board of Governors Performance Funding Allocation,
2021-20221

FAMU 79 $ 12,651,647 $ 14,083,909 $ 26,735,556
FAU 89 20,392,761 22,701,375 43,094,136
FGCU 82 11,469,477 12,767,908 24,237,385
FIU 97 31,947,249 35,563,918 67,511,167
FL Poly 83 4,295,463 4,781,742 9,077,205
FSU 88 41,028,117 45,672,810 86,700,927
NCF 64 3,643,257 4,055,701 7,698,958
UCF 87 32,898,338 36,622,678 69,521,016
UF 87 50,191,372 55,873,414 106,064,786
UNF 7 12,903,434 14,364,201 27,267,635
USF 94 34,549,019 38,460,229 73,009,248
UWF 83 9,029,866 10,052,115 19,081,981

*Institutions scoring 51 points or higher receive their full institutional funding restored.

Source: BOG

' The amount of state investment is appropriated by the Legislature and Governor. A prorated amount is deducted from
each university’s base recurring state appropriation (Institutional Investment) and is reallocated to each institution
based on the results of the performance-based funding metrics (State Investment).

Page 5 of 27 Page 19 of 125



Pursuant to section 1001.706(5)(e), Florida Statutes:

Each university shall conduct an annual audit to verify that the data
submitted pursuant to ss. 1001.7065 and 1001.92 complies with the data
definitions established by the board and submit the audits to the Board of
Governors Office of Inspector General as part of the annual certification
process required by the Board of Governors.

In addition to the data integrity audit for the Performance Based Funding Model,
universities designated as preeminent or emerging preeminent must conduct a similar
audit for the data and metrics used for preeminence status consideration. The BOG
permits this audit either to be included with or separate from the Performance Based
Funding Data Integrity Audit.

In 2019, Florida International University achieved sufficient preeminent metrics to qualify
for designation as an emerging preeminent state research university by the authority of
Florida Statute 1001.7065. Emerging Preeminent status is achieved upon meeting six of
the 12 metrics, while Preeminent status requires meeting 11 of the 12 metrics. The
following table lists the 12 preeminent metrics and highlights in bold type the nine metrics
the University met, specifically metrics 1, 3, 5,6, 7, 8, 9, 10, and 11.

FIU’s Emerging Preeminent Metrics

1 Average GPA and SAT Score for 7 Total Amount R&D Expenditures in
" | Incoming Freshman in Fall Term " | Non-Health Sciences
2. | Public University National Ranking 8. Natlona.l Ranking in Research
Expenditures
Freshman Retention Rate (Full-Time, .
3. First-Time-In-College) 9. | Patents Awarded (over a 3-year period)
4. | Four-Year Graduation Rate (Full-Time, | 414 | poctoral Degrees Awarded Annually
First-Time-In-College)
5. | National Academy Memberships 11. | Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees
6. Tot_al Annual Rgsear_ch Expenditures 12. | Endowment Size
(Science & Engineering only)

Page 6 of 27 Page 20 of 125



Organization

AIM consists of the Office of Institutional Research (IR) and the Office of Retention &
Graduation Success. One of the goals of AIM is to provide the University community with
convenient and timely access to information needed for planning, data driven decision-
making, and to respond to data requests from external parties. IR is currently responsible
for:

e Faculty Perception of Administrators, formerly Faculty Assessment of
Administrator System

e Assisting with the online system used to credential faculty

e Academic Program Inventory

e Assignment of Classification of Instructional Program codes to courses and
certificate programs

IR has been the official source of FIU’s statistics, providing statistical information to
support decision-making processes within all academic and administrative units at FIU,
and preparing reports and files for submission to the BOG and other agencies. It is also
responsible for data administration, enrollment planning, and strategic planning.

The Office of Retention & Graduation Success identifies barriers to student success and
works to eliminate those barriers. This Office helps to carry out the Graduation Success
Initiative, primarily by providing “Major Maps” and alerts for students and academic
advisors, and information and analyses to departments and decision-makers.

The Associate Vice President of AIM, who is also the University’s Data Administrator,
reports directly to the Provost and is responsible for gathering data from all applicable
units, preparing the data to meet BOG data definitions and requirements, and submitting
the data.

The Performance Funding Metrics reporting process flows consist of:

Production 21 . Upload Submission
Transformation

AIM and the Division of PantherSoft Technology work collaboratively to translate the
production data, which is sent to staging tables, where dedicated developers perform data
element calculations that are based on BOG guidelines and definitions. Once the
calculations are completed, the data is formatted into text files and moved to an Upload
folder. Users then log into SUDS and depending on their roles, they either upload,
validate, or submit the data to the BOG. The PantherSoft Technology team assists with
the entire consolidation and upload process.

Page 7 of 27 Page 21 of 125



The figure below illustrates how data is captured, analyzed, stored, and distributed to the

BOG through SUDS and the information system controls in place.

Figure 1: Florida International University

Performance Based Funding Data Flow

= - - -
e "‘\_‘ Academic Registrars |
{ i 3 F fod |
L BEGIN ) Advising Office Admissions inancial Aid | PantherSoft ~—,
L - Technology |
{ =
c A - f ]
'g e \\\ / / D DI | Extaction |
P N | | | Extracti /
E ’\ File Frozen )_Na-hll'ranssnra:ation | o D > DI = (Generation of
e RS /'/ / aoc—] ocC— [ datfile) /
?:“ N ' J I | — aoc— { J
o Yes [ Staging Table Staging Tables
i; L ] Metrics Elements:
7 = ., 1-10
= I.-'/ EF-I& submitied &
o \_Locked for changes /
7
[ “—'¥es (Correct via PAWS s:ript)—r\'es (Correct via PantherSoft)
! -
E f A I 64 SN Freeze File f
= unix Transter | | AIM . BN (Freeze Date [
- _, - .
SEl\g:‘l{licad | |_’ j—= Intemal Review "-\\ Erroes /)—-Nn-- met or unit || Subeit {0 BOG |
1 A | | cenerate subs o 7 requests freeze) | \
b > Edit Report % J
- { Correct via PAWS script: T LCorrect via PantherSofte——
f{'_ = = e i3 ¥
o0 v T f./_
. b = ( END |
BOG Review ———— Ermors? /_‘res_-. Caorrect Errors \ J
\.\ /__/ S
L g e
I No.

Page 8 of 27

Page 22 of 125



OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

Our overall assessment of internal controls is presented in the table below.

CRITERIA

INTERNAL CONTROLS ASSESSMENT

SATISFACTORY

OPPORTUNITIES

CRITERIA

SATISFACTORY

TO IMPROVE
Process Controls X
Policy & Procedures Compliance X
Effect X
Information Risk X
External Risk X

INTERNAL CONTROLS LEGEND

OPPORTUNITIES

objectives are achieved.

TO IMPROVE
Process Controls:
Activities established mainly through Opportunities exist
policies and procedures to ensure Effective to improve
that risks are mitigated, and effectiveness

Do not exist or are
not reliable

Non-compliance

the organization’s control; e.g.,
political, legal, social, cybersecurity,
economic, environment, etc.

Potential for
damage

Policy & Procedures Compliance: . issues are
) ! . Non-compliance .
The degree of compliance with Non-compliance issues mav be pervasive,
process controls — policies and issues are minor y significant, or have
systematic
procedures. severe
consequences
Effect: Not likely to Impact on
The potential negative impact to the impact operations ou’?comes Negative impact on
operations- financial, reputational, or program . outcomes
. contained
social, etc. outcomes
Systems produce
incomplete or
Information Risk: . Data systems are inaccurate data
. . . . Information :
The risk that information upon which mostly accurate which may cause
: . . systems are . :
a business decision is made is : but need to be inappropriate
: reliable : ' )
inaccurate. improved financial and
operational
decisions
External Risk:
Risks arising from events outside of None or low

Severe risk of
damage

Page 9 of 27

Page 23 of 125




OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

The areas tested during the audit and our observations and recommendations are
detailed below.

Data Accuracy Testing - Performance Based Funding Metrics

This is our eighth audit of the Performance Based Funding Metrics since it became
effective in 2014. During our first-year audit, we performed data accuracy testing on all
10 metrics as requested by the BOG. In subsequent years’ audits, since internal controls
have always been deemed satisfactory, we have limited our data accuracy testing to
specific metrics and followed up on any prior year recommendations. Our choice of
metrics to audit was based on different factors: audit risk, changes to the metric, and the
time elapsed since the metric was last audited. Prior to this audit, we have audited each
of the 10 metrics at least twice, with metrics 4 through 10 three or more times. Depicted
in the following table are the metrics audited by year.

AUDIT COVERAGE OF PBF METRICS

2020-21 6,8, &9
2021-22 4,5,9, & 10 | First year of the revised Metrics 9 and 10

1. | 2014-15 1-10 First year; test of all metrics required by BOG
2.| 201516 | 6,7,8,&10

3. | 2016-17 1,2,4,&5

4. | 2017-18 3&9 First year of the revised Metric 3

5. 2018-19 4 &5 First year of the revised Metric 4

6. | 2019-20 7&10

7.

8.

While there were no prior year audit findings stemming from our data accuracy testing,
for this year’s audit, we determined to test Metrics 4, 5, 9, and 10. Metrics 4 and 5 were
last audited in 2018-19 and had increases in the improvement scores from the prior year,
and Metrics 9 and 10 were newly implemented during the audit period.

The four PBF metrics tested were as follows:

e Metric 4 — Four-Year FTIC Graduation Rate

e Metric 5 — Academic Progress Rate (2" Year Retention with GPA Above 2.0)

e Metric 9a — Two-Year Graduation Rate for Florida College System Associate in Arts
Transfer Students

e Metric 9b — Six-Year Graduation Rate for Students who are Awarded a Pell Grant in their
First Year

e Metric 10 — Board of Trustees’ Choice — Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees

Page 10 of 27 Page 24 of 125



We identified the main data files and tables related to the calculations of the four PBF
metrics under review, as follows:

Student Instruction File (SIF), Enrollments Table

Degrees Awarded File (SIFD), Degrees Awarded Table
Retention File (RET), Retention Cohort Changes Table
Student Financial Aid File (SFA), Financial Aid Awards Table

Management provided us with the in-scope data elements for each of the metrics subject
to our audit testing (see Appendix | — In-scope BOG Data Elements on page 24).

We tested the accuracy of the data used for the four metrics by reviewing the
corresponding data files, tables, and elements, and tracing them to the source data in
PantherSoft. We limited our testing to the PantherSoft data as the objective of our testing
was to validate that the data submitted was unabridged and identical to the data contained
in PantherSoft, the University’s system of record.

Metrics 4, 5, 9a, and 9b

The data for Metrics 4, 5 and 9 is generated by the BOG from the SIF, SIFD, RET, and
SFA files submitted by the University. Additionally, the BOG also generates data from
the SFA file for Metric 9.

In November 2020, Metric 9 was changed from BOG Choice - Percent of Bachelor's
Degrees without Excess Hours, into a two-part metric to the performance based funding
model: 9a) Two-Year Graduation Rate for FCS Associate in Arts Transfer Students and
9b) Six-Year Graduation Rate for Students who are Awarded a Pell Grant in their First
Year.

Page 11 of 27 Page 25 of 125



To verify that the data in the SIF file submitted to the BOG was accurate, we judgmentally
selected a sample of 40 students from the summer 2020 Enrollment Table (20 of the
students were selected based on the students’ FTIC status and the remainder were
selected at random) and verified that the data submitted to the BOG agrees to the data
found in the students’ records in the PantherSoft System. We verified the nine elements
relevant to Metrics 4, 5, and 9 and found no exceptions.

Likewise, to verify the data submitted in the SIFD file, we judgmentally selected a sample
of 30 students for testing from the summer 2020 Degrees Awarded Table. We verified
without exception the information related to the one element related to Metrics 4, 5, and
9. As evidenced by the supporting documentation, all students had received their degree
in summer 2020, as reported in the summer 2020 SIFD file.

To verify the data submitted in the RET file, we judgmentally selected a sample of 30
students from the Annual 2020-2021 Retention Cohort Changes Table. We reviewed the
supporting documentation related to the four relevant elements and verified that the data
provided to the BOG agreed to the data in PantherSoft. No exceptions were found.

In addition to the files noted above, Metric 9 uses the SFA file in the metric’s methodology.
To verify that the data submitted in the SFA file is accurate, we selected a sample of 30
students from the 2019-2020 Financial Aid Award Table and verified that the data
provided to the BOG was the same as the data contained in PantherSoft. We verified the
data in the relevant three elements and agreed it to the information in PantherSoft and
found no exceptions.

Conclusion
Our testing of the SIF, SIFD, RET, and SFA files found no differences between the

information submitted to the BOG and the data contained in the PantherSoft system as it
relates to the elements that are relevant to Metrics 4, 5, and 9.

Page 12 of 27 Page 26 of 125



Metric 10 — Board of Trustees’ Choice - Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees

The data for Metric 10 is the number of post-doctoral appointees awarded annually.

We performed a review of the list of post-doctoral appointees for fall 2019 during our
review of emerging preeminent metrics on page 15 and found no exceptions.

Conclusion

Our testing of the post-doctoral appointees found the data reported to be accurate and
consistent between the information submitted to the BOG and the data in PantherSoft.

Page 13 of 27 Page 27 of 125



Data Accuracy Testing - Emerging Preeminent Metrics

In 2021, the University achieved nine of the 12 Preeminence metrics, earning it Emerging
Preeminent designation. We selected three of the nine metrics met for testing as follows:

e Metric 3 — Freshman Retention Rate
e Metric 6 — Total Annual Research Expenditures
e Metric 11 — Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees

In October 2020, the BOG issued the Preeminent Metrics Methodology Document, which
we used in our testing.

We tested the accuracy of the data used for the three metrics by obtaining the respective
University files and reviewing them against the data provided to the respective
organizations associated with each metric, that is, the National Science Foundation (NSF)
and National Academy of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine. In addition, where
applicable, we agreed the information to the data in PantherSoft.

Metric 3 — Freshman Retention Rate

The BOG calculated the University had a retention rate of 91%. To test the accuracy of
the rate, we identified the six SUDS elements related to the preeminent metric. Our testing
found no exceptions.

Metric 6 — Total Annual Research Expenditures

Once a year, the Office of Data & Analytics (ODA) staff analyzes each institution’s
response to the National Science Foundation’s annual Higher Education Research and
Development survey that is submitted to the BOG office via the Data Request System.
ODA staff calculate the total expenditures for science and engineering disciplines by
summing the total federal and non-federal expenditures and then subtracting all federal
and non-federal expenditures for non-science and engineering disciplines. The results of
ODA'’s research are reviewed and approved by Institutional Data Administrators before
being included in the Accountability Plans.

To test the accuracy of the data related to research expenditures for science and
engineering, we reconciled the research expenditures data received from ODA to the data
reported by the NSF, without exception. The NSF website reported research expenditures
totaling $210 million. We further grouped the data by cost center and tested all
expenditures, totaling $16,339,075, from 25 cost centers selected, to ensure the
expenditure were: (1) related to research, (2) related to the science or engineering

Page 14 of 27 Page 28 of 125



disciplines, and (3) in agreement with the amount reported in PantherSoft Financials. The
results of our testing found no exceptions.

Metric 11 - Number of Post-Doctoral Appointees

Once a year, the Office of Data & Analytics staff reviews the NSF summary reports for
each institution’s response to the National Science Foundation/National Institutes of
Health annual Survey of Graduate Students and Post-Doctorates in Science and
Engineering. The NSF summary reports rank institutions by the total number of post-
doctoral appointees in science, engineering, and health fields. For this preeminent metric,
rank does not matter, only the total post-doctoral count is relevant. The results of the
ODA'’s research are reviewed and approved by Institutional Data Administrators before
being included in the Accountability Plans.

To test the accuracy of the data related to post-doctoral appointees, we obtained the
listing of post-doctoral appointees for fall 2019, totaling 260. From the listing, we selected
20 appointees to determine if the post-doctoral appointee worked in the science,
engineering, or health fields; had received their doctorate degree within the last five to
seven years; had only a limited appointment, generally no more than five to seven years;
and the data agreed with the information obtained from the PantherSoft Human
Resources database for fall 2019. We found no exceptions.

Conclusion
Our testing of the Emerging Preeminent metrics found the data reported to be accurate

and consistent with the definitions and methodology as outlined in the BOG’s Preeminent
Metrics Methodology Document.

Page 15 of 27 Page 29 of 125



Data File Submissions and Resubmissions

Data File Submissions

To ensure the timely submission of data, AIM used the due date schedule provided by
the BOG in SUDS to keep track of the files due for submission and their due dates. AIM
also maintains a schedule for each of the files to be submitted, which includes meeting
dates with the functional unit leads, file freeze date, file due date, and actions
(deliverables) for each date on the schedule. We used data received directly from the
BOG Office in addition to data provided by AIM to review the timeliness of actual
submittals.

The following table reflects the original due dates and original submission dates of all
relevant Performance Based Funding Metrics files during the audit period. All files were
submitted by the BOG due date:

Original Orig_ina!I
Due Date Sublrjmsswn
ate

ADM | Admissions Summer 2020 | 09/11/20 09/11/20
SIF Student Instruction Summer 2020 | 09/25/20 09/25/20
SIFD | Degrees Awarded Summer 2020 | 10/02/20 10/01/20
ADM | Admissions Fall 2020 10/12/20 10/12/20
SFA | Student Financial Aid Annual 2020 10/16/20 10/14/20
SIFP | Student Instruction Preliminary Fall 2020 10/19/20 10/19/20
EA Expenditure Analysis Annual 2020 11/02/20 10/30/20
HTD | Hours to Degree Annual 2020 11/13/20 11/13/20
SIF Student Instruction Fall 2020 01/15/21 01/15/21
SIFD | Degrees Awarded Fall 2020 01/25/21 01/25/21
RET | Retention* Annual 2020 01/29/21 01/28/21
ADM | Admissions Spring 2021 03/01/21 03/01/21
SIF Student Instruction Spring 2021 06/11/21 06/11/21
SIFD | Degrees Awarded Spring 2021 06/25/21 06/25/21

* The indicated file was subsequently resubmitted and is reviewed below.

Data File Resubmissions

To determine the frequency of the resubmissions, we reviewed a list provided by the BOG
staff for all files submitted pertaining to the 10 PBF metrics. The University submitted 14
files with due dates between September 1, 2020, and August 31, 2021, of which one file
required resubmission.

In the one instance observed, the BOG staff requested the resubmission of the RET File

by reopening the SUDS system for resubmission. Furthermore, resubmissions decreased
from five to one since the last audit issued in fiscal year 2020/2021.

Page 16 of 27 Page 30 of 125



The Data Administrator has acknowledged that although their goal is to prevent any
resubmissions, they are needed in cases where inconsistencies in data are detected by
either University or BOG staff after the file has been submitted. According to the Data
Administrator, a common reason for not detecting an error before submission is that some
inconsistencies only arise when the data is cross validated among multiple files, which
can only be accomplished by the BOG.

Conclusion

Our review disclosed that the process used by the Data Administrator provides
reasonable assurance that complete, accurate, and timely submissions occurred. The
only resubmission required was due to an error on the BOG’s part. We noted no
reportable material weaknesses or significant control deficiencies related to data file
submissions or resubmissions.

Page 17 of 27 Page 31 of 125



Review of University Initiatives

We obtained the following list of the University initiatives that are meant to bring the
University’s operations and practices in line with SUS Strategic Plan goals to determine
if any initiatives were made to purposely inflate performance goals.

Implemented Educational and General revenue reallocation model

Implemented faculty reallocation model for academic units

Provided greater access to on-demand analytics relevant to the metrics

Implemented student level graduation benchmarking

Implemented student attendance and midterm progress monitoring and outreach

Integration of career and academic advising

Strategic enrollment planning via Noel Levitz

Created an Office of Scholarships and Academic Program Partners to support all

colleges in their efforts to apply foundation scholarship funds to student success

and enrollment goals

e Expanded merit scholarship opportunities and initiated two new scholarships —
“Jumpstart FIU” and “Panther Achievement Award”

e Implemented centralized coordination and local deployment for student recruitment
efforts

e Established centralized retention, graduation, and student success outreach

e Implemented graduation and retention predictive models

e Working with EduNav and FIU’s Business Intelligence team to replicate what Ad

Astra was not able to produce regarding course scheduling optimization.

Conclusion

Our review disclosed that none of the initiatives provided appear to have been made for
the purposes of artificially inflating performance goals.

Page 18 of 27 Page 32 of 125



Areas Within the Scope of the Audit Tested With Exception:

1. Data Systems Design and Controls

Selected Access Controls Review

AIM performed an annual review, in collaboration with the functional areas and the
PantherSoft Security Team to assess functional unit personnel access to critical data.
The annual review included examination of user privileges within the SUDS and
PantherSoft applications and examination of audit log files and production data. The
objectives of the annual review are to:

e evaluate user accounts to ensure onboarded and offboarded SUDS users have
an associated PAWS? ticket and the existing users’ access match their current
job description;

e reduce access privileges to the PantherSoft production environment to
appropriately mitigate least privilege and segregation of duties risks; and

e examine log reporting for all metric data files, where appropriate, to ensure the
integrity of the data submitted to the BOG.

We obtained updated copies of the AIM-BOG Business Process Manual and Annual
AIM Review. We interviewed key personnel and performed sample testing in our
analysis and determined that the review performed was adequate and ensured proper
controls.

a) SUDS Onboarding and Offboarding

A user’s supervisor or functional unit lead is responsible for notifying the security
manager when an employee no longer requires SUDS access. This is done
through the creation of a PAWS ticket. Also, during the annual user access review,
AIM investigates changes in employment status, and if appropriate, the AIM Data
Analyst initiates PAWS tickets to add, change, or remove users with access to
SUDS.

b) PantherSoft Access Control

AIM performs a review of PantherSoft least privilege and segregation of duties on
an annual basis. AIM uses a list of users with write access to PantherSoft and
checks on write access to fields that are subsequently used for data submitted to
the BOG. The list of users was gathered in 2017 and has been carried over for all
annual reviews. The list currently consists of 71 users and is updated periodically,
though the methodology used to update the list is ineffective. As a result, if a user
account with existing access was omitted from the list, that user access would not
be included in the annual review. AIM mentioned that as a compensating control,
a PantherSoft query runs daily to notify AIM of any changes to the Human

2 Ticketing system used to submit access requests.

Page 19 of 27 Page 33 of 125



Resources (HR) status of an employee with access to the PantherSoft fields.
However, the query is configured to search for changes in HR status of the same
71 users and would fail to identify any other users. The failure to obtain a full
population of users with write access to the PantherSoft fields used for data for
BOG submission could lead to an ineffective review process allowing users to have
access to data which could impact the integrity of data submitted to the BOG. To
ensure all relevant employees are captured, the PantherSoft Security Team
recommends that AIM identifies the most critical fields in PantherSoft Campus
Solutions related to the data submitted to BOG. The Security Team would then be
able to identify all relevant roles and a query could be performed to gather those
users at any given point in time.

c) PantherSoft Audit Logs

Audit log capabilities in the PantherSoft production environment, as appropriate,
increases the effectiveness of detection controls to help the data administrator
mitigate the risks of least privilege access, lack of segregation of duties, and
unauthorized activities.

Our testing confirmed that the PantherSoft Security Team has developed queries
that allow functional unit leads and AIM to identify actions that have been taken on
relevant fields included in the PantherSoft to BOG Mapping of Elements document.
Any field that has the audit flag enabled will be captured in a log. The audit logs
are separate tables in PantherSoft that cannot be modified. Any actions taken by
a user on an audited field (e.g., logging into the system) is recorded. The actions
taken by a user can be reviewed by either the functional unit or the AIM team.
Thus, the functional units are responsible for the integrity of data entered in
PantherSoft. Similarly, the PantherSoft Security Team is responsible for ensuring
the integrity of the audit logs.

A review of the PantherSoft to BOG Mapping of Elements document for metrics 4,
5, and 9 was performed and 27 unique PantherSoft fields were identified. Of the
27 fields, nine fields are currently being audited, while five additional fields that
could potentially be audited were not. The remaining 13 fields cannot be audited
due to performance issues.

In addition, we found the document containing the PantherSoft to BOG Mapping
of Elements was last updated in 2014. It is important to keep the mapping updated
to ensure that if any new PantherSoft fields are added, they are accounted for in
AIM’s review and all auditable fields are enabled.

Change Management Controls

To understand the process for ensuring complete and accurate submissions, we
reviewed controls in place for changes to the code used to generate BOG files. We
observed that PantherSoft has change management controls in place for the
modification of code used to generate files submitted to the BOG. A BOG module
within a PantherSoft owned system called PAWS allows PantherSoft Developers,
Acceptance Testers, and PantherSoft Database Administrators to collaborate to

Page 20 of 27 Page 34 of 125



conduct development, testing, and approval functions in the TESTING and STAGING
environments prior to the migration of code to the PRODUCTION environment.

We obtained all three PAWS Change Requests for changes to the code for any fields
related to metrics 4, 5, and 9 during the audit period. We reviewed the supporting
documentation for the changes made and found management has an effective change
management process in place to manage the modification of code used to generate
BOG metric files.

In addition, we reviewed PAWS Access Controls. Of the list of 43 users with access
to the PAWS BOG module, 34 employees had access to perform acceptance testing,
which allows them to validate the changes made by the programmers. Of those 34
employees, 10 were no longer employed by the University and an additional 15 were
found to no longer need access. The accounts were subsequently removed by the
PantherSoft Database Administration Team. Management informed us that the
departments must contact the PantherSoft Database Administration Team to notify
them when user account must be terminated. We also learned that PAWS leverages
FIU’s single sign-on user authentication scheme, which allows employees to use their
FIU credentials to login to the system. Even if PantherSoft is not contacted regarding
a terminated employee, the user accounts could not access PAWS as most functions
of the FIU accounts are disabled by the University upon employee termination.
However, this may not apply to employees that transfer across departments as their
FIU accounts would remain active, allowing them to retain access to PAWS.

The remaining 9 of the 43 users had technical roles including approver, developer,
and database administrator privileges. Those employees were confirmed to be active
employees with appropriate access.

Recommendations

The Office of Analysis and Information Management should:

Perform a review of access controls based on critical roles in PantherSoft

11 Campus Solutions.
Update the PantherSoft to BOG Mapping of Elements document to determine
12 completeness, collaborate with the PantherSoft Security Team to reevaluate

which of the identified fields can be audited, and ensure all auditable fields are
enabled.

The PantherSoft Database Administration Team should:

Create a formal process for disabling accounts no longer requiring access to the

1.3 PAWS BOG module and routinely verify access.

Page 21 of 27 Page 35 of 125



Management Response/Action Plan

1.1 AIM has agreed to perform the following steps:

. Review PS fields required for BOG elements.

. Update list of elements to be tracked.

. Generate list of users with edit access to those elements.

. Run query from above list of users to determine their PS role.

. Cross refence the list with PS HR to determine whether their job function
requires them to access these fields.

6. Review access privileges and remove or reduce privileges as needed.

A wWN -

Implementation date: 3
Complexity rating: August 1, 2022

1.2  AIM has agreed to perform the following steps:

. Review PS fields required for BOG elements.

. Update list of elements to track in PS.

. Determine which of the fields have audit capabilities.

Enable audit for all fields that can be audited without causing performance
issues.

5. Review access privileges and remove or reduce as needed.

HPWN =~

Implementation date: 3
Complexity rating: September 1, 2022

1.3  The PantherSoft Team (PS Team) will:

1. Automate the removal of access from PAWS for any employee/user that is
terminated and/or transfers to a different department (requires integration from
with HR system)

2. Attempt to secure the PAWS BOG module by only those users that need it (may
require development)

3. Generate a yearly report with all users associated with PAWS BOG module and
provide to PS development lead and AIM functional lead (will require
development of process and report)

Implementation date: 3

Complexity rating: September 1, 2022

Page 22 of 27 Page 36 of 125



2. Preeminent Metrics Methodology

During the review of Preeminent Metric 11, Number of Post-doctoral Appointees, we
noted that the criteria used to define post-doctorates were not defined. The BOG’s
guidelines state that universities should use their definition of post-doctorate as this varies
by institution. Although there is a process in place, it has not been formally documented.

AIM maintains the AIM-BOG Business Process Manual, which details the department’s
internal policies and procedures, including the processes for generating the files
submitted to the BOG to be used in the calculation of the performance-based metrics.
Our review disclosed that the Manual does not include policies and procedures pertaining
to preeminent metrics and those responsible for gathering the information used in
calculating these metrics.

A manual provides direction to new personnel, is a ready reference source for all
employees, clarifies roles and responsibilities, and helps assure consistent application of
management’s expectations. Updating the manual would serve as a valuable guide in
cases of employee substitution and/or turnover.

Recommendation

The Office of Analysis and Information Management should:

Update the AIM-BOG Business Process Manual to include policies and

2.1 procedures related to preeminent metrics.

Management Response/Action Plan

2.1 AIM has agreed to perform the following steps:

1. Review the documentation for all 12 Preeminence metrics.

2. Update the process manual with relevant best practices for these metrics.
Implementation date: 3

Complexity rating: August 1, 2022

Page 23 of 27 Page 37 of 125



APPENDIX | —IN-SCOPE BOG DATA ELEMENTS

Submission: SIFD

Table: Degrees Awarded Summer 2020
i Fall 2020
Elements: Soring 2021
02001 — Reporting Time Frame pring
This metric is based on the Submission: SIF
percentage of first-time-in-college | Table: Enrollments
(FTIC) students who started in the | Elements:
fall (or summer continuing to fall) | 01063 — Current Term Course Load
term and were enrolled full-time in | 01060 — Student Classification Level
their first semester and had 01112 - Degree Highest Held Summer 2020
AN : Fall 2020
graduated from the same 01107 — Fee Classification Kind Spring 2021
4 Four-Year FTIC | institution by the summer term of | 01420 — Date of Most Recent Admission
Graduation Rate | their fourth year. FTIC includes 01413 — Type of Student at Time of Most
‘early admit’ students who were Recent Admission
admitted as a degree-seeking 01411 — Institution Granting Highest
student prior to high school Degree
graduation. Students who were
enrolled in advanced graduate Submission: RET
programs during their 4th year Table: Retention Cohort Changes
were excluded. Elements:
01429 — Cohort Type
01433 — Full-Time/Part-Time Indicator Annual 2020-2021
01437 — Student Right to Know (SRK)
Flag
01442 — Cohort Adjustment Flag
This metric is based on the
percentage of first-time-in-college
(FTIC) students who started in the | S2me as No. 4 above.
. Lo Summer 2020
Academic fall (or summer continuing to fall) . . -
L Additionally includes the following: Fall 2020
Progress Rate term and were enrolled full-time in LT .
nd g : Submission: SIF Spring 2021
5 2"4 Year their first semester and were still X
. . . R Table: Enroliments
Retention with enrolled in the same institution Elements:
GPA Above 2.0 | during the next fall term with a 01085 — Institutional Hours for GPA Annual 2020-2021
grade point average (GPA) of at | 1486 _ Total Institutional Grade Points
least 2.0 at the end of their first
year (fall, spring, summer).
This transfer cohort is defined as
undergraduates entering in fall
term (or summer continuing to fall)
from the Florida College System
Two-Year with an Associate in Arts (AA)
. degree. The rate is the Summer 2020
Graduation Rate -
percentage of the initial cohort Fall 2020
for FCS . Same as No. 4 above. .
. gt that has either graduated from the Spring 2021
9a. Associate in Arts same institution by the summer
Transfer f thei yd demi Beginning Fiscal Year 2021-2022
Students term of their second academic

year. Full-time students are used
in the calculation. Students who
were flagged as enrolled in
advanced graduate programs that
would not earn a bachelor’s
degree were not excluded.

Annual 2020-2021

Page 24 of 27

Page 38 of 125



Six-Year
Graduation Rate
for Students who

This metric is based on the
percentage of students who
started in the fall (or summer
continuing to fall) term and were
enrolled full-time in their first
semester and who received a Pell
Grant during their first year and

Same as No. 4 above.

Additionally includes the following:
Submission: SFA

Table: Financial Aid Awards
Elements:

Summer 2019
Fall 2019
Spring 2020

9b. are Awarded a who graduated from the same 01045 — Reporting Institution Annual 2020-2021
Pell Grant in their | institution by the summer term of 02040 — Award Payment Term
First Year their sixth year. Students who 01253 - Financial Aid Award Program
were flagged as enrolled in Identifier
advanced graduate programs that Annual 2019-2020
would not earn a bachelor’s Beginning Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Annual 2020- 2021
degree were excluded.
The number of post-doctoral
appointees awarded annually.
Number of Post- Th!s data is base_d on N:_atlonal Survey of Qradu_ate Students a_nd p(_)st-
Science Foundation/National doctorates in Science and Engineering
10 Doctoral . Fall 2020
. Institutes of Health Survey of
Appointees

Graduate Students and post-
doctorates in Science and
Engineering.

(Not a BOG file Submission)

Definition Source: State University Database System (SUDS).

Page 25 of 27

Page 39 of 125



APPENDIX Il - COMPLEXITY RATINGS LEGEND
Routine: Corrective action is
believed to be uncomplicated,

requiring modest adjustment to a
process or practice.

Estimated
completion date of
less than 30 days.

Moderate: Corrective action is
believed to be more than routine.
Actions involved are more than
normal and might involve the

Estimated
completion date
between 30 to 90

days. development of policies and
procedures.
Estimated Complex: Corrective action is

believed to be intricate. The
solution might require an involved,
complicated, and interconnected
process stretching across multiple
units and/or functions; may
necessitate building new
infrastructures or materially
modifying existing ones.
Exceptional: Corrective action is
believed to be complex, as well as
more than 360 having extraordinary budgetary and
days. operational challenges.
*The first rating symbol reflects the initial assessment based on the implementation date reported by

Management, while the second rating symbol reflects the current assessment based on existing conditions
and auditor’s judgment.

completion date
between 91 to 180
days.

Estimated
completion date
between 181 to 360
days.

Estimated
completion date of

ORORICIS

Page 26 of 27 Page 40 of 125



APPENDIX IIl — OIA CONTACT AND STAFF ACKNOWLEDGMENT:

OIA contact:
Joan Lieuw 305-348-2107 or jlieuw@fiu.edu

Contributors to the report:

In addition to the contact named above, the following staff
contributed to this audit in the designated roles:

Stephanie Price (auditor in-charge);

Henley Louis-Pierre (IT auditor in-charge);
Vivian Gonzalez (supervisor and reviewer); and
Manuel Sanchez (independent reviewer).

Page 27 of 27 Page 41 of 125



Definition of Internal Auditing

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and
consulting activity designed to add value and improve an
organization's operations. It helps an organization accomplish
its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management,
control, and governance processes.

Page 42 of 125



Agenda Item 3 AC2

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Audit and Compliance Committee
March 3, 2022

Subject: Proposed Regulation FIU-117 Fraud Prevention and Detection

Proposed Committee Action:
Recommend that the Florida International University Board of Trustees approve the
proposed Regulation FIU-117 Fraud Prevention and Detection and delegate authority to the
University President to approve any subsequent non-material amendments based on
comments to the Regulation received from the Florida Board of Governors and as a result
of the regulation-making process.

Background Information:
The proposed regulation establishes University criteria related to appropriate institutional
controls and risk management framework to provide reasonable assurance that fraudulent
activities within the University’s areas of responsibility are prevented, detected, reported, and
investigated. The proposed regulation is in alignment with Board of Governors Regulations
3.003 and 4.001.

Florida Board of Governors’ Regulation 3.003(3), Fraud Prevention and Detection, states, in
relevant part, that each university board of trustees shall adopt a regulation establishing
criteria related to appropriate institutional controls and risk management framework that
provide reasonable assurance that fraudulent activities within the university’s areas of
responsibility are prevented, detected, reported, and investigated.

Florida Board of Governors’ Regulation 4.001(2), University System Processes for
Complaints of Waste, Fraud, or Financial Mismanagement, states, in relevant part, that each
board of trustees shall have a process for university staff, faculty, students, and board of
trustees members to report allegations of waste, fraud, or financial mismanagement to the
university chief audit executive.

Supporting Documentation: ~ Proposed Regulation FIU-117 Fraud Prevention and
Detection

Facilitator/Presentet: Trevor L. Williams

Page 43 of 125



THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FLORIDA BOARD OF GOVERNORS

NOTICE OF CHANGE TO PROPOSED REGULATION
REGULATION NO.: FIU-117
REGULATION TITLE: Fraud Prevention and Detection

SUMMARY: The proposed regulation establishes University criteria related to appropriate
institutional controls and risk management framework to provide reasonable assurance that
fraudulent activities within the University’s areas of responsibility are prevented, detected,
reported, and investigated. The proposed regulation is in alignment with Board of Governors
Regulations 3.003 and 4.001.

The change is to clarify that all members of the University community who become aware of or
suspect fraudulent or related wrongful activity are responsible for reporting it to the Office of
Internal Audit.

TEXT OF REGULATION: The full text of the proposed Regulation can be viewed below and
on the website of The Florida International University Board of Trustees,
http://regulations.fiu.edu. If you would like a copy of the proposed Regulation, please contact
Eli Deville, Departmental Administrator, Office of the General Counsel,

Florida International University, 11200 SW 8™ Street, PC 511, Miami, FL 33199,

Email: devillee@fiu.edu Phone: 305-348-2103, Fax: 305-348-3272.

AUTHORITY: Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution, Board of Governors Regulations
1.001, 3.003, and 4.001.

NAME OF PERSON INITIATING PROPOSED REGULATION: Trevor Williams, Chief
Audit Executive.

ANY PERSON SEEKING TO COMMENT ON THE PROPOSED REGULATION MUST
SUBMIT COMMENTS IN WRITING TO THE CONTACT PERSON LISTED BELOW. ALL
WRITTEN COMMENTS MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE CONTACT PERSON WITHIN 14
CALENDAR DAYS OF THE DATE OF PUBLICATION OF THIS NOTICE.

CONTACT PERSON REGARDING THE PROPOSED REGULATION:

Eli Deville, Departmental Administrator, Office of the General Counsel,

Florida International University, 11200 SW 8% Street, PC 511, Miami, FL 33199.
Email: devillee@fiu.edu Phone: 305-348-2103, Fax: 305-348-3272.

DATE OF PUBLICATION: February 2, 2022

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED REGULATION IS PROVIDED BELOW WITH THE
CHANGES HIGHLIGHTED IN YELLOW:

Page 44 of 125



FIU-117 Fraud Prevention and Detection

Objective and Purpose

Florida International University, under the governance of its Board of Trustees, is committed to
the highest standards of moral, professional and ethical behavior. The Code of Ethics for Public
Officers and Employees, Part 111, Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, and University regulations and
policies, articulate standards of behavior and requirements for the disclosure of fraudulent and
other improper activities. Breaches of these standards, especially acts involving fraudulent
behavior, are costly financially and erode the public trust and confidence in the University. Such
breaches also impair the University’s reputation for operating with efficiency as a good
custodian of public and private funds. This Regulation establishes University criteria related to
appropriate institutional controls and risk management framework to provide reasonable
assurance that fraudulent activities within the University’s areas of responsibility are prevented,
detected, reported, and investigated.

Scope of Regulation

This Regulation applies to any fraud, suspected fraud, or related wrongful acts involving any
member of the University community, including Board of Trustees members, University
employees, vendors, volunteers, consultants, students, and entities or individuals contracting,
affiliating or doing business with the University. This Regulation is in alignment with Board of
Governors Regulation 3.003 Fraud Prevention and Detection and Board of Governors Regulation
4.001 University System Processes for Complaints of Waste, Fraud, or Financial
Mismanagement. Allegations or matters of conduct deemed outside the scope of this Regulation
(e.g., within the purview of FIU-2501 Student Conduct and Honor Code; Research Misconduct
Policy #2370.070), such as academic or research misconduct, must be referred to the appropriate
management area for review and action.

Statement of Regulation

The University has zero tolerance for fraudulent activity. For purposes of this Regulation, fraud
is defined as an intentional misrepresentation or concealment of a material fact for the purpose of
obtaining a benefit that would not otherwise be received, or the inducement of another to act
upon the intentional misrepresentation or concealment to their detriment. Examples of wrongful
acts that may constitute fraud include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Dishonest or fraudulent acts in the course of performing University functions;

2. Forgery or alteration of any document, check, bank draft or account of the University or
any other University-related document;

3. Destruction, alteration, mutilation, concealment, covering up, falsification or making of a
false entry in any record, document or tangible object with the intent to impede, obstruct,
or influence any investigation by the University or by any state, federal, or administrative
agency:

4. Willful and/or intentional destruction, alteration, or concealment of any records to be
used and/or used in the conduct of an audit, bid/vendor selection, contract execution, or
pursuit of debt financing;

5. Misappropriation or theft of funds, securities, supplies, equipment, or other assets of the

University;

Page 45 of 125



6. Impropriety in the handling or reporting of University or University-related money or
financial transactions;

7. Improperly influencing or attempting to influence the conduct of any audit of University
finances, operations or accounts;

8. Improperly taking information, using it or providing information that would lead to
1dentity theft and/or participation in any activity that is intended to initiate an identity
theft scheme; and

9. Authorizing or receiving payment for goods not received or services not performed.

Fraud Control Framework
The University will develop and maintain an anti-fraud framework which shall be based on:
1. Commitment to creating an organizational culture and structure conducive to fraud risk
management through awareness, training, and top-down leadership;
2. Thorough, on-going assessment of risks relevant to the University’s operating
environment;
3. Development and implementation of processes and systems to effectively prevent, detect,
and investigate fraud;
4. Application of appropriate criminal, civil, administrative, or disciplinary action to remedy
the harm from fraud;
Training of staff in fraud awareness; and
6. Assessing and evaluating the success of the adopted framework based on actual fraud
losses and changes in known fraud scenarios using a risk-based/cost-benefit approach and
adapting current activities to improve future fraud risk management.

e

Key Roles and Responsibilities

1. University President is responsible, by and through the University’s Vice Presidents and
Deans, for adopting an Anti-Fraud Framework (‘“Framework”) for the prevention,
detection, reporting, investigation, and remediation of fraud and for combating fraud by
creating an organizational culture conducive to fraud risk management through
awareness, training, and top-down leadership.

2. Vice Presidents and Deans are responsible for fostering a culture and environment to
prevent improper behavior and make fraud control the responsibility of all employees
under their direction. As fraud risk owners within their respective units, Vice Presidents
and Deans are responsible for developing and maintaining effective institutional controls
and mitigating measures as part of the University’s Enterprise Risk Management and
Anti-Fraud Framework to provide reasonable assurance that fraudulent activities within
their areas of responsibility are prevented, detected, reported, and investigated. In those
instances where internal controls may need strengthening, the Office of Internal Audit
should be consulted for assistance on how to enhance those controls.

3. Supervisors and Managers are responsible for fostering a culture and environment to
prevent improper behavior and make fraud control the responsibility of all staff under
their supervision. This occurs when Supervisors and Managers consistently display,
through words and actions, an unwavering commitment toward complying with
applicable laws, University regulations and policies and when Supervisors and Managers
develop and maintain proper internal controls that provide for accountability and
safeguarding of resources. Supervisors and Managers should be cognizant of the risks

Page 46 of 125



and exposures inherent in their area of responsibility and signs of fraudulent or other
wrongful conduct. They must ensure that staff participate in fraud awareness education
and training and that audit recommendations are implemented promptly.

4. University Employees are responsible for acting responsibly and ethically, adhering to
all applicable laws, University regulations and policies and actively participating in the
implementation of fraud control strategies. Employees should be familiar with the types
of fraudulent activities that might occur within their areas of responsibility, be alert for
any indications of irregularity, and report any suspicions of, or information relating to
any instance of fraudulent conduct.

5. Office of Internal Audit is responsible for the investigation of all suspected acts of fraud
as defined by this Regulation and consistent with Board of Governors Regulation 4.001.
As necessary, the Office of Internal Audit will work with the Office of General Counsel
to obtain external parties with subject matter expertise and/or professional independence
to perform or assist with fraud investigations and inform the Board of Trustees when
contracting for such assistance.

Reporting
1. Responsibility to Report. All members of the University community including Board of

Trustees members, University employees, vendors, volunteers, consultants, students, and
entities or individuals contracting, affiliating or doing business with the University who
become aware of or suspect fraudulent or related wrongful activity are responsible for
reporting the suspected activity to the Office of Internal Audit. An employee's failure to
report suspected fraudulent or wrongful activity may be subject to appropriate
institutional disciplinary action in accordance with University policies and regulations
and any applicable collective bargaining agreement(s).

2. Requirement to Act with a Reasonable Good Faith Belief. Any individual reporting
detected or suspected fraudulent activity must be acting in good faith and have reasonable
grounds for believing the information provided.

3. Complainant Notification Procedure. Detected or suspected fraudulent activity or
related conduct should be reported to one of the following:

a. Office of Internal Audit. The Office of Internal Audit may be emailed at
Auditors@fiu.edu and/or contacted at Phone: 305-348-2107. Reporters seeking
whistle-blower protection should file reports of fraud directly with the Office of
Internal Audit.

b. Ethical Panther Reporting Hotline. Reporters may access the Ethical Panther
Hotline at https://fiu.i-sight.com/portal or by calling 1-888-520-0570 (reporters
can choose to remain anonymous)

Rights and Protections of the Reporting Individual

1. Confidentiality. The University will treat all information received confidentially to the
extent permitted under applicable law. To the extent permitted under law, investigation
results will not be disclosed or discussed with anyone other than those individuals who
have a legitimate need to know.

2. Whistle-blower Protection. The Chief Audit Executive shall assess each reported
allegation to determine if it meets the criteria delineated under the Florida Whistle-
blower’s Act (Sections 112.3187 — 112.31895, Florida Statutes). If the complaint is

Page 47 of 125



determined to fall under the Whistle-Blower’s Act, the reporter shall be notified of their
protections under said Act, including confidentiality and non-retaliation for filing such a
report.

3. Retaliation. The University prohibits any form of retaliation against individuals who
make a reasonable good faith report of potential misconduct including fraud or suspected
fraud or for their participation in an investigation into misconduct. An employee or other
person who acts in good faith and has reasonable grounds for reporting suspected fraud or
other improper activity may not be discharged, demoted, suspended, threatened, harassed,
or suffer adverse personnel action of any kind because of such individual’s reporting or
assistance to an investigation into fraudulent or other inappropriate activity.

Actions to Be Taken When Fraud or Related Misconduct Is Identified and Substantiated

1. General. Employees determined to have participated in fraudulent acts will be subject to
disciplinary action (i.e., demotion, suspension, termination, etc.) in accordance with
University policies and regulations and any applicable collective bargaining
agreement(s).

2. Criminal, Civil, or Administrative. Without limiting any other right or remedy of the
University, whether civil or otherwise, the University may refer and coordinate with any
appropriate law enforcement agency about any criminal and/or administrative actions that
may also be taken against any person or entity who is found to have participated in
unlawful acts.

3. Non-employee. Without limiting any other right or remedy of the University, whether
civil or otherwise, if a vendor, volunteer, consultant, student, entity or individual
contracting, affiliating or doing business with the University is determined to have
participated in fraudulent acts this will result in termination of the business or other
relationship with the University and other actions as appropriate.

4. Remediation. Designated University personnel will promptly review and remediate
internal control deficiencies identified in the final investigative report, including, but not
limited to, recovery of University resources or losses.

Alert/Reporting Process

1. General. The results/status of ongoing investigations will not be disclosed or discussed
with anyone without a need to know consistent with a thorough investigation, unless
required by law, regulation, or University policy.

2. Reporting to University Personnel and Board of Trustees. If the investigation
substantiates that any fraudulent activities have occurred, the Chief Audit Executive will
issue reports to appropriate designated University personnel and the Board of Trustees as
required to provide details and support for this conclusion.

3. Reporting to OIGC. Significant and credible allegations are those that, in the judgment
of the chief audit executive, require the attention of those charged with governance and
have indicia of reliability. For significant and credible allegations of waste, fraud, or
financial mismanagement within the University and the Board of Trustees’ operational
authority, the Chief Audit Executive shall timely provide the Board of Governors Office
of Inspector General and Director of Compliance (OIGC) sufficient information to
demonstrate that the Board of Trustees is both willing and able to address the
allegation(s). Following disposition of the investigation, the Chief Audit Executive shall

Page 48 of 125



provide the OIGC with University action and final case disposition information sufficient
to demonstrate that the Board of Trustees was both willing and able to address such
allegations.

4. Significant and Credible Allegations Against Chief Audit Executive or Chief
Compliance Officer. If the University receives a significant and credible allegation of
fraud, waste, mismanagement, misconduct, or other abuse against the Chief Audit
Executive or the Chief Compliance Officer, the President and the Chair of the Audit and
Compliance Committee of the Board of Trustees will consult with the Office of the
General Counsel to review the matter and timely provide the OIGC with sufficient
information to demonstrate that the Board of Trustees is both willing and able to address
the allegations. If, after review, an investigation is warranted, the Chair of the Audit and
Compliance Committee may either hire an independent outside firm to conduct the
investigation with the Chair and General Counsel’s guidance and monitoring, or refer the
matter to the OIGC to conduct the investigation if appropriate.

5. Notification to Board of Governors. The Chief Audit Executive shall timely notify the
OIGC of any significant and credible allegation(s) of fraud, waste, mismanagement,
misconduct, and other abuses made against a member of the Board of Trustees or the
President and shall provide copies of all final investigative reports to the Board of
Governors, if the allegations are determined to be significant and credible.

Periodic Review and Notification

This Regulation shall be reviewed at least every five years for currency and consistency with
applicable Board of Governors and University regulations. The Board of Trustees shall be
notified, at least annually, of the efficacy of the University’s antifraud framework and any
necessary revisions to improve the framework.

Authority: Article IX, Section 7, Florida Constitution, Board of Governors Regulations 1.001,
3.003, and 4.001. History — New.

Page 49 of 125



Agenda Item 3 AC3

THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Audit and Compliance Committee
March 3, 2022

Subject: Proposed Revisions to Audit and Compliance Committee Charter

Proposed Committee Action:
Recommend to the Florida International University Board of Trustees approval of the
proposed revisions to the Audit and Compliance Committee Charter.

Background Information:
The Florida International University Board of Trustees (the BOT) Audit and Compliance
Committee Charter states, in relevant part, that the Committee will: Review the Committee
charter, at least every two (2) years, and discuss any required changes with the board; and
Ensure that the charter is approved or reapproved by the Board, after each update.

The BOT Bylaws provide that each Committee shall have a written statement of purpose
and primary responsibilities, or charter, as approved by the Board.

Board of Governors’ Regulation 1.001(3)(b), University Board of Trustees Powers and
Duties, states, in relevant part, that each board of trustees may establish committees of the
board to address matters, including, but not limited to, academic and student affairs,
strategic planning, finance, audit, property acquisition and construction, personnel, and
budgets.

Board of Governors’ Regulation 4.002(2), State University System Chief Audit Executives,
states, in relevant part, that each board of trustees shall establish a committee responsible for
addressing audit, financial- and fraud-related compliance, controls, and investigative matters.
For purposes of this regulation, this committee will be referred to as the audit and
compliance committee. This committee shall have a charter approved by the board of
trustees and reviewed at least every three (3) years for consistency with applicable Board of
Governors and university regulations, professional standards, and best practices. A copy of
the approved charter and any subsequent changes shall be provided to the Board of
Governors.

Supporting Documentation:  Audit and Compliance Committee Charter, proposed
revisions, redline

Facilitator/Presenter: Trevor L. Williams

Page 50 of 125



THE FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE CHARTER

Overall Purpose/Objectives

The Audit and Compliance Committee (“Committee”) is appointed by the Florida
International University Board of Trustees (“Board”) to assist it in discharging its
oversight responsibilities, including but not limited to, reviewing procedures in place to
assess and minimize significant risks, overseeing the quality and integrity of financial
reporting practices (including the underlying system of internal controls, policies and
procedures, regulatory compliance programs, and ethical code of conduct), and overseeing
the overall audit process.

The Committee will oversee the financial operations and reporting process for both the
University and its direct support organizations (“DSO”). The committee will review: 1)
the University’s internal financial controls and processes; 2) the internal audit function;
3) the independent audit process, including the appointment and assessment of the
external auditors for the University; and 4) the DSO and University processes for
monitoring compliance with applicable laws and regulations, meeting regulatory
requirements and promoting ethical conduct.

Authority

The Board authorizes the Committee to:

2.1 Perform activities within the capacity of its charter.

2.2 Evaluate the Office of Internal Audit's role and scope of activities.

2.3 Participate, through the Chair, in the process of the appointment and dismissal of the
Chief Audit Executive.

2.4 Engage independent counsel and other advisers as it deems necessary to carry out its
duties.

2.5 Have unrestricted access to management, faculty and employees of the University
and its DSOs, as well as to all books, records, and facilities thereof.

2.6 Develop and review procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
received from employees regarding financial or operational matters.

2.7 Review and approve the Office of Internal Audit’s annual audit plan (and any
subsequent changes thereto), considering the University-wide risk assessment and the
degree of coordination with the Auditor General's Office for an effective, efficient, non-
redundant use of audit resources.

Page 51 of 125



2.8 Review and discuss with management and the Office of Internal Audit (1) significant
findings and recommendations, including management's response and timeframe for
corrective action; (2) the degree of implementation of past audit recommendations; and
(3) any difficulties encountered in the course of the audit activities such as restrictions
on the scope of work or access to information.

2.9 Assess the staffing of the Office of Internal Audit, including the annual budget.
2.10 Review and approve modifications to the Office of Internal Audit.

2.11 Review the organizational reporting lines related to the Office of Internal Audit,
particularly related to confirming and assuring the continued independence of the
Office of Internal Audit and its staff.

2.12Review the work of the external auditors for the University and DSOs.

2.13Evaluate the effectiveness of the University’s compliance program by (1) reviewing
the results of the program effectiveness evaluation; (2) assessing the staffing of the
Office of Compliance & Integrity, including the annual budget; (3) reviewing major
modifications to the University’s compliance program; and (4) reviewing compliance-
related training topics for the Board.

2.14 Participate, through the Chair, in the process of the appointment and dismissal of the
Assistant-VieePresident-Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer.

2.15Review and approve the Office of Compliance & Integrity’s annual compliance plan
(and any subsequent changes thereto), considering the University-wide risk
assessment.

2.16Review and approve modifications to the Office of Compliance & Integrity.

2.17Review the organizational reporting lines related to the Office of Compliance &
Integrity, particularly related to confirming and assuring the continued independence
of the Office of Compliance & Integrity and its staff.

Organization
Membership

3.1 The Chair of the Board of Trustees will appoint the chair and members of the
Committee.

3.2 The Committee consists of at least five (5) members, all of whom are voting Trustees
of the University.

3.3 A majority of Committee members, if not all, shall possess general accounting,
business and financial knowledge, including the ability to read and understand
fundamental financial statements.

Page 2 of 8 Page 52 of 125



3.3.1 If possible the Committee will include at least one member who is a
"accounting or financial expert"; a person who has an understanding of generally
accepted accounting principles and financial statements; the ability to assess the
application of these principles in connection with accounting for estimates,
accruals and reserves; an understanding of committee functions; experience
preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating financial statements, or experience
actively supervising persons engaged in such activities; and an understanding
of internal controls and procedures for financial reporting. The person must have
acquired these attributes through one or more of the following: education or
experience actually doing these functions or similar ones; actively supervising
someone who is performing these functions or similar ones; experience
overseeing or assessing the performance of companies or public accountants
who are preparing, auditing or evaluating financial statements; or other relevant
experience.

3.4 Members shall be independent and objective in the discharge of their responsibilities.
They are to be free of any financial, family, or other material personal relationship,
including relationships with members of University management, University auditors
and other professional consultants

3.5 Members will serve on the Committee until their resignation or replacement by the
Chair of the Board.

Meetings

3.6 A simple majority of the members of the Committee will constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business.

3.7 Meetings shall be held not less than four (4) times per year and shall correspond with
the University’s financial reporting cycle.

3.8 The Committee shall maintain written minutes of its meetings, and for the Committee
Chair to approve each meeting’s agenda.

3.9 The Committee shall meet with the General Counsel, Chief Audit Executive, and
Assistant-Viee President-Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer on a regular basis.

3.10 The Committee may request special reports from University or DSO management on
topics that may enhance their understanding of their activities and operations.

Roles and Responsibilities
The Committee shall:

4.1 Provide the Board with regular updates of Committee activities and make
recommendations to the Board for matters within the Committee’s area of
responsibility.

Page 3 of 8 Page 53 of 125



4.2 Meet separately with the Office of Internal Audit and Senior Management, separately,
in order to discuss any matters the Committee or these individuals believe should be
discussed privately. This should be performed at least two (2) times annually, at the
conclusion of a regularly scheduled Committee meeting.

4.3 Affirm that the Chief Audit Executive and Assistant-Viee President;-Chief Compliance
and Privacy Officer are ultimately responsible to the Committee and the Board and they
should communicate directly with the Committee Chair when deemed prudent and
necessary. Said Chief Audit Executive and Assistant-Viee President;Chief Compliance
and Privacy Officer, in consultation with the General Counsel, will regularly meet and
correspond with the Chair of the Committee, advise and keep informed, as needed, both
the President and the Chair of the Board on a regular basis regarding matters brought
before and actions taken by the Committee, and in further consultation with the Chair,
prepare the agenda for meetings of the Committee.

4.4 Have the authority to conduct investigations into any matters within the Committee's
scope of responsibilities as set forth herein. The Committee shall have unrestricted
access to the University’s independent auditors and anyone employed by the
University, and to all relevant information in order to conduct such investigations. The
Committee may retain, at the University’s expense, independent counsel, accountants
and other professional consultants to assist with such investigations. The results of any
such investigations must be reported to the Board by the Committee Chair.

With regard to each topic listed below, the Committee shall:
Internal Controls

4.5 Consider and review the effectiveness of the University’s process for identifying
significant financial, operational, reputational, strategic and regulatory risks or
exposures and management’s plans and efforts to monitor and control such risks.

4.6 Evaluate the overall effectiveness of the internal control framework and consider
whether recommendations made by the internal and external auditors have been
implemented by management, including but not limited to the status and adequacy of
information systems and security, for purposes of meeting expectations of the U.S.
Sentencing Guidelines, personnel systems internal controls, and other relevant
matters.

4.7 Understand the internal control systems implemented by management of the University
and each DSO for the approval of transactions and the recording and processing of
financial data.

Risk Management
4.8 Evaluate the overall effectiveness of the risk management process.
4.9 Evaluate the University’s oversight and monitoring of its affiliated organizations, and

the University’s insurance coverage and the process used to manage any uninsured

Page 4 of 8 Page 54 of 125



risks.

Fraud Prevention and Detection

4.10 Evaluate the overall effectiveness of the University’s institutional controls and risk
management framework designed to provide reasonable assurance that fraudulent
activities within the University’s areas of responsibility are prevented, detected,
reported and investigated.

4.11 Review Reports by the Chief Audit Executive of substantiated fraudulent activities.

4.12 Review and address reports by the Chief Audit Executive of significant and credible
allegations of fraud, waste, abuse. or financial mismanagement within the University.

4.13 By and through the Chair of the Audit and Compliance Committee in consultation
with the President and General Counsel, review and address significant and credible
allegations of fraud, waste, mismanagement, misconduct or other abuse against the
Chief Audit Executive or the Chief Compliance Officer.

Financial Reporting and Disclosures

4-104.14 Review the adequacy of accounting, management, and financial processes
of the University and its DSOs.

4-114.15 Review the financial reporting process implemented by management of the
University and its DSOs.
4:424.16 Review as applicable for the University and its DSOs: 1) interim financial

statements, 2) annual financial statements, 3) the annual report, and 4) the audit report
on federal awards that is required under Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Cirenlar A—133Uniform Guidance.

413417 Review University and DSO management processes for ensuring the
transparency of the financial statements and the completeness and clarity of the
disclosures.

4-144.18 Meet with University management and the external auditors to review the
financial statements, the key accounting policies, the reasonableness of significant
judgments, and the results of the audit.

Compliance with Laws, Regulations, Policies and Standards

4454.19 Review the independence, qualifications, activities, resources, and structure
of the compliance function and ensure no unjustified restrictions or limitations are
made.

Page 5 of 8 Page 55 of 125



4-164.20 Review and discuss any significant results of compliance audits; any
significant matters of litigation or contingencies that may materially affect the
University’s financial statements; and any legal, tax or regulatory matters that may
have a material impact on University operations, financial statements, policies and
programs.

4474.21 Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the
university compliance officer are received, discussed, and appropriately acted on.

4.184.22 Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with
laws and regulations and management's investigation and follow-up (including
disciplinary action) of any wrongful acts or non-compliance.

4-194.23 Ascertain whether the University has an effective process for determining
risks and exposure from asserted and unasserted litigation and other claims of
noncompliance with laws and regulations.

4.204.24 Receive information and training regarding specific elements of the
University’s compliance program.

4.214.25 Obtain reports concerning financial fraud resulting in losses in excess of
$10,000 or involving a member of senior management.

4.224.26 Obtain regular updates from the University Compliance Officer regarding
compliance matters that may have a material impact on the organization's financial
statements or compliance policies.

4.234.27 Review the University’s monitoring of compliance with University policies,
including (but not limited to) policies regarding the conduct of research, including
the results of the University’s monitoring and enforcement of compliance with
University standards of ethical conduct and conflict of interest policies.

4.244.28 Review the findings of any examinations or investigations by regulatory
bodies.
Working with Auditors

Independent External Audit

4-254.29 Review the professional qualifications of all external auditors, and when
determined by the committee, require such auditor to be hired by and report directly
to the Committee.

4.264.30 Review on an annual basis the performance of all external auditors and
make recommendations to the appropriate Board for their appointment,
reappointment or termination.

4-274.31 Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the

Page 6 of 8 Page 56 of 125



independent auditors for both the University and any DSO, and management's
proposed response thereto, are received, discussed and appropriately acted upon.

Internal Audit

4.284.32 Review the independence, qualifications, activities, resources and structure
of the internal audit function and ensure no unjustified restrictions or limitations are
made.

4.294.33 Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function and ensure that it has
appropriate standing within the University.

4-304.34 Ensure that significant findings and recommendations made by the internal
auditors and management's proposed response are received, discussed and
appropriately acted on.

4.314.35 Review the proposed internal audit plan for the coming year [or the multi-
year plan] and ensure that it addresses key areas of risk and that there is appropriate
coordination with the external auditor.

Complaints and Ethics

4-324.36 Ensure procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints
concerning financial, internal accounting controls or auditing matters.

4.334.37 Review the University and DSO conflicts of interest policies to ensure that:
1) the term "conflict of interest" is clearly defined, 2) guidelines are comprehensive,
3) annual signoff is required, and 4) potential conflicts are adequately resolved and
documented.

Reporting Responsibilities

4-344.38 Regularly update the Board about Committee activities and make
appropriate recommendations.

4-354.39 Ensure the Board is aware of matters that may significantly impact the
financial condition or affairs of the University or its DSOs.

4-364.40 Receive prior to each meeting a summary of findings from completed
internal audits and the status of implementing related recommendations.

Evaluating Performance

4.374.41 Evaluate the Committee’s own performance, both of individual members
and collectively, on a regular basis.

4.384.42 Assess the achievement of duties specified in the charter and report findings
to the board.

Page 7 of 8 Page 57 of 125



4.394.43 Review the Committee charter, at least every twe-three (32) years, and
discuss any required changes with the board.

4.44 Ensure that the charter is approved or reapproved by the Board, after each update.

Adoption of Charter: The Florida International University Board of Trustees adopted the Audit and
Compliance Committee Charter on December 1, 2016.

Reviewed and approved without change on September 18, 2019;

Reviewed and discussed on September 14, 2021 and December 8, 2021;

Reviewed and changes approved on

;

Page 8 of 8 Page 58 of 125



' Office of
' Internal Audlt

Office of Int

~ Status Repo
..-.... .-:;d !&J‘!F | =

---!ll ll-
g i e
N

March 3, 2022

_d

Page 59 of 12




Office of
Internal Audit

FIU

Date: March 3, 2022
To: Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee Members
From: Trevor L. Williams, Chief Audit Executive

Subject: OFFICE OF INTERNAL AUDIT STATUS REPORT

I am pleased to provide you with our quarterly update on the status of our Office’s
activities since our last update to the Board of Trustees Audit and Compliance Committee
on December 8, 2021.

Projects Completed

This is an annual audit that we performed to determine whether the processes established
by the University ensure the completeness, accuracy, and timeliness of data submissions
to the State University System of Florida Board of Governors (BOG) that support the
Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminent Metrics. For fiscal year 2021-2022,
FIU ranked number one and received $67.5 million in performance-based funding. The
Office of Analysis and Information Management (AIM) is responsible for data collection
and submission for Performance Based Funding and Emerging Preeminent Metrics
purposes.

The audit concluded that the University continues to have good process controls for
maintaining and reporting performance metrics data. In our opinion, the system, in all
material respects, continues to function in a reliable manner. Nevertheless, although
having no adverse impact on the calculation of the metrics tested, we identified
opportunities for process improvement in the areas of information technology and

(Page 1 of 10)
Page 60 of 125



general controls. Specifically, a review of access controls based on critical roles in
PantherSoft should be implemented; the PantherSoft to BOG Mapping of Elements
document should be reviewed to determine completeness and all auditable fields
enabled; former employees” access in the SUDS system should be disabled or deactivated
upon termination or transfer; and update the AIM-BOG Business Process Manual to
include guidance on preeminent metrics.

We performed this audit to determine if information security controls over systems that
support procurement activities were adequate and effective during the period July 1,
2020, through November 30, 2021. The audit focused on certain areas of controls.
Procurement Services assists the University community with the purchase of goods and
services made by FIU faculty and staff using various integrated systems.

Our audit concluded that the systems utilized during the procurement process had
adequate controls for least privilege access, audit logging, and change management. Our
audit also identified opportunities for strengthening controls and improving processes,
as follows: disabling or deactivating terminated employees’ access to the Jaggaer
procurement system; refraining from creating generic accounts in the system and training
accounts in the production environment of the Jaggaer procurement system; improving
least privileged and segregation of duties risks by removing incompatible roles wherein
the requester, approver of the requisition, and the receiver of goods and services is the
same individual; and documenting and maintaining a Business Continuity Plan and a
Disaster Recovery Plan.

Work in Progress

The following ongoing audits are in various stages of completion:

Ongoing Audits

Audits Status
Conflict of Interest and Related Party Transactions Draft Report Issued
Admissions Policy Compliance Fieldwork in Progress

Cybersecurity Prevention and Detection Controls - Ransomware | Fieldwork in Progress

FERPA Compliance Fieldwork in Progress

Export and Import Controls Planning

(Page 2 of 10)

Page 61 of 125



Prior Audit Recommendations Follow-Up Status Report

Since June 1, 2020, University management has been able to utilize the OIA Panther Audit
Platform to update and report the status of prior audit recommendations. Upon receiving
the submission from management on the Platform, OIA staff performed a substantive
examination of the accompanying documentation or revised process to validate the status
of the recommendation as reported by management. The outcome from our auditing
efforts leads to either acceptance or re-characterization of the reported status.

Since our last report to the Committee on management’s progress towards completing
past audit recommendations, there were 33 recommendations due for implementation
through January 31, 2022. Based on the work performed, we have concluded that 27 of
said 33 recommendations (82 percent) were completed and 6 (18 percent) were partially
implemented. Management has provided expected completion dates for all
recommendations that were not completed. (See table and recommendation summaries
on the following pages.) We thank management for their cooperation and encourage
continued improvement.

The following graphs display an aging of outstanding audit recommendations as of
January 31, 2022, as reflected in the Platform, indicating the number of days remaining
before due for implementation and the number of days delayed for those
recommendations past due.

(Page 3 of 10)
Page 62 of 125



FI B0 Aging of University Audit Recommendations

Internal Audit

Outstanding Recommendation y Original Due Date Aging Graph

Days Past Due Mumber of Recommendations Average Complexity
Current 8 3
1-30 2 3

31-90

25
2.5

91-180

181 -365

More than 365

Flu it Pending University Audit Recommendations

Outstanding Recommendations Statistics by Revised Due Date Graph - Recommendations Due Within
Days Remaining Number of Recommendations Average Complexity

Overdue 1 E

1-30 2

o1-180

181-365 .
.

More than 365 Owerdue

(Page 4 of 10)
Page 63 of 125



AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS FOLLOW-UP

Total Due f Partiall
Areas Audited e Implemented araty
Implementation Implemented
Athletics Health Service Billing and
Collections Process and Contract 1 1
Performance
Grant Accounting - Foundation Funded 1 1
Healthcare Affiliated Agreements for 1 11
Student Placement/Rotation
Laboratory Safety 9 9
Nicole Wertheim College of Nursing 1 1
and Health Sciences
University Fleet Management 1 1
Financial Aid 1 1
Media Sanitization Guidelines and
3 3
Controls
Procurement and Competitive Bidding
4 3 1
Procedures
Review of Bank Account
_— 1 1
Reconciliations
Totals 33 27 6
Percentages 100% 82% 18%
(Page 5 of 10)

Page 64 of 125



MANAGEMENT RESPONSES TO OUTSTANDING AUDIT
RECOMMENDATIONS

WITH REVISED TARGET DATES

1. Audit Issue: Enrollment Status (Recommendation #2.1)

Recommendation:
Ensure that courses that do not count towards a program of study are excluded when

determining a student’s enrollment status and cost of attendance for federal student
aid.

Action Plan to Complete:
We will go back to the prototype and bring in the Academic Tech Team to begin
testing the prototype. This Phase should be complete by end of April 2022.

Original Target Date: July 31, 2017 New Target Date: April 29, 2022

1. Audit Issue: Sanitization Governance - Data Classification (Recommendation
#1.3)

Recommendation:
Finalize and communicate an organization-wide data classification policy, while
aligning Media Sanitation Guidelines with current practices.

Action Plan to Complete:

The Data Stewardship policy (https://policies.fiu.edu/files/560.pdf) was updated
to add more information regarding the storage and protection of confidential data.
The Data classification draft has been shared with some key stake holders in
Division of IT, HIPAA Committee, and some IT Admins for feedback on the draft
policy. We presented on the different levels of data classification and storage
locations for these data types with the ITAC and HIPAA committee. Making some
updates/changes to the draft policy based on suggestions or feedback from those
that reviewed it. Once changes are finalized the policy will be submitted to
compliance to go through the policy process. We have also developed a list of
approved storage locations for each of the data classifications. This information has
been shared with the ITAC and HIPAA Committee.

(Page 6 of 10)
Page 65 of 125



Original Target Date: September 30, 2021 New Target Date: February 15, 2022

. Audit Issue: Sanitization Governance - Tracking and Documenting
(Recommendation #2.2)

Recommendation:

Collaborate with Surplus to develop a tool to electronically document the details
required by NIST upon sanitization. Continue to promote the use of the Enterprise
Asset Management system.

Action Plan to Complete:
We updated the surplus form with the following fields: Method Used, Verification
Method, Media Type, Media Destination, and Verified by. Please see the attachment.

We are still working on the forms and process to digitize them. At first when we
reached out to controllers, they were already working on project to digitize the form
in PeopleSoft, but since then have discontinued that project. We have had a few
meetings with Surplus and Controllers to talk about the project and the workflow.
The process is a more complex than what we originally thought. There are multiple
forms that need to be approved, we are looking at the flow and the forms to determine
the best way to do this. Service Now is used to for the media sanitation requests and
we will be using ServiceNow to digitize the surplus form with some workflow so that
the right approvers get notified and can approve the forms being submitted. We hope
to have this process completed in Spring 2022.

Original Target Date: September 30, 2021 New Target Date: April 1, 2022

. Audit Issue: Continuous Training of Technology Key Contacts (Recommendation
#8.1)

Recommendation:
Collaborate with Surplus to develop an FIU-specific training on the surplus process
that includes media sanitization.

Action Plan to Complete:

This recommendation is in progress. We have reached out to the FIU Develop team
to get the training posted on FIU Develop as a training open for all users. Payment to
host the training on FIU Develop has been made. The presentation used at an ITAC
meeting which was used to talk about the surplus process and media sanitation
process is being tweaked to be used as the training materials for the training on FIU
Develop. Our goal is to have this training available by the end of the Spring Semester.

Original Target Date: December 30, 2021 New Target Date: March 31, 2022
(Page 7 of 10)

Page 66 of 125



1. Audit Issue: Spend Analyses (Recommendation #1.1)

Recommendation:

Develop more advanced spend analyses to better understand spending trends and
identify savings opportunities. At minimum, this should include analyses frequency,
assignment of responsibility, and monitoring/follow-up of results.

Action Plan to Complete:

Procurement Services has created a report in Spend Radar to capture spend monthly.
Part A reports contains total PO, encumbrance, and Pcard spend by Parent supplier
except for myFIUmarket POs spend. Part B contains Supplier Name and Supplier ID
so that we can see the Pcard and PO and unencumbered spend separately except for
myFIUmarket POs spend. Part C contains buyer name and PO number as well except
for myFIUmarket POs spend.

We are still working with Jaggaer to update our data in Spend Radar. They are
running behind schedule. Jaggaer has informed us that they should have it done by
the end of this week for August and September data. We will update the remaining
months once we receive the data from Jaggaer. Once the August and September data
is received we will upload the completed report as noted above, meet with the PA3 to
review the data, and take necessary action, if required.

Original Target Date: December 31, 2021 New Target Date: February 28, 2022
1. Audit Issue: Reconciliation Process (Recommendation #1.1)

Recommendation:
Continue exploring ways to automate the reconciliation process, where possible.

Action Plan to Complete:

While our transition to JPMorgan chase is relatively completed, there have been
delays in resolving issues with JPM Chase to align the BAI2 file structure to mirror
our current matching of data from the Bank vs. the general ledger. Additionally, staff
turnover and challenges in filling open positions in our General Ledger bank
reconciliation team as well as our FSSS team have greatly impacted the progress in
this implementation as well. Our current plan is for the Accounting and Reporting
Team along with the FSSS team to commence the planning meetings during March
and April 2022 with an expectation of getting the process automated as much as
possible within 12 months of completing the project plans. This is all dependent on

(Page 8 of 10)

Page 67 of 125



the continued support from the current staff. Moreover, if we continue to experience
high employee turnover, then this timeline will need to be adjusted accordingly.

Original Target Date: June 20, 2017 New Target Date: April 30, 2022

Investigation and Consulting Activities

The Office of Internal Audit receives complaints of alleged wrongdoing, including suspected
fraud, waste, and abuse. We have evaluated the complaints received and are currently
investigating those deemed appropriate for our office to investigate and have referred the
others to other appropriate units within the University for investigations. Substantiated
allegations that are deemed to be significant and credible will be reported to the University
President and Board of Trustees. We have no such results to report currently.

Our office continues to provide support, in collaboration with the Office of the General
Counsel and the Office of Compliance and Integrity, with the development of University’s
Fraud Protection and Detection Regulation.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Program Review - Internal Assessment 2021

The Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional Practice Framework (IPPF)
requires the Chief Audit Executive to implement and maintain a Quality Assurance
Improvement Program (QAIP) for the audit activity. The Office of Internal Audit (OIA) has
implemented a QAIP, which includes the completion of an independent, external quality
assessment review (QAR) every five years and ongoing monitoring of the audit activity, as
required by the IPPF. An independent, external quality assurance review of the OIA audit
activity was last completed in December 2019, wherein the Office received a rating of
“generally conforms,” the highest rating that can be achieved. The Office’s quality assurance
monitoring activity includes a detailed review of the working papers and report for each
engagement completed. This review is completed by multiple levels of OIA’s staff. The
Office’s monitoring activity also include a periodic internal assessment of the Office’s
compliance with its standards for engagement quality and operating procedures.

In December 2021, a senior staff member of the OIA completed an internal quality
assessment of the Office’s internal audit activity and concluded that the OIA generally
conforms with the selected Standards reviewed. The reviewer also offered several
recommendations, which she believed could enhance certain operational matters. The Chief
Audit Executive has developed a plan of actions to address all recommendations offered in
addition to certain other matters he believed may warrant his attention.

(Page 9 of 10)

Page 68 of 125



As recommended by the IPPF, the Chief Audit Executive is providing the complete internal
self-assessment report along with the Corrective Action Plan to the Audit and Compliance
Committee and senior management for their review.

Professional Development

The audit staff continue to take advantage of available professional development
opportunities. In December, five members of the staff attended the 11th Annual Institute of
Internal Auditors and Association of Certified Fraud Examiners Joint Fraud Conference.
Additionally, the office’s two Assistant Directors of Audit attended the Association of
Inspectors General’s Grant Fraud Red Flags, Lessons Learned & Best Practices event in
January.

Other Matters

In collaboration with the Office of the General Counsel and the Chief Compliance and
Privacy Officer, the Chief Audit Executive presented and discussed FIU proposed new anti-
fraud Regulation FIU-117 to the University’s Operations Committee, Deans Advisory
Committee, and Executive Committee. Being properly posted and vetted, the regulation is
being presented to the Audit and Compliance Committee for its review and consideration
and subsequently to the full Board of Trustees for approval and adoption at their March 3,
2022, meeting,.

At the Audit and Compliance Committee meeting of September 14, 2021, the Chief Audit
Executive informed the Committee that substantive revisions to the Audit and Compliance
Charter are anticipated once the University’s anti-fraud regulation is adopted. The above-
mentioned collaboration team along with the University’s Office of the Board of Trustees
have reviewed and made substantive changes to the required changes to the Charter, which
is being presented to the Committee for its review and approval at its March 3, 2022, meeting,.

Mr. Dayan Borges, who has been a professional staff member with the OIA for a year and a
half as a Senior Auditor, was selected to fill the previously vacant Audit Project Manager
position, through a competitive process. Also, the OIA has added a new senior auditor on
staff to fill one of two previously vacant positions. Ms. Leslie-Anne Triana joins the OIA with
combined auditing and accounting experience of 14 years acquired both within FIU and
externally. Regrettably, effective February 11, 2022, the office’s Audit Manager - Information
Technology position became vacant with the resignation of Ms. Maria Lopez. This leaves the
number of vacancies in the office at two —a Senior Auditor and Audit Manager - Information
Technology. The competitive job market along with the accommodations and perks being
offered to candidates continue to present a challenge for recruiting and retaining qualified
audit talent.

(Page 10 of 10)

Page 69 of 125



University Compliance

rlu and Integrity

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

Office of University Compliance and Integrity
Quarterly Report

Second Quarter 2021-2022

March 3, 2022

Page 70 of 125




FIU Board of Trustees
Audit and Compliance Committee
March 3, 2022

Office of University Compliance and Integrity Quarterly Report
University Compliance

Page |2
Fl“ and Integrity

FLORIDA INTERNATIONAL UNIVERSITY

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Audit and Compliance Committee

March 3, 2022

Office of University Compliance & Integrity Quarterly Report

The purpose of the Florida International University (“University”) institutional
Compliance and Ethics Program (“Program”) is to promote and support a working
environment which reflects the University’s commitment to operating with the highest
level of integrity while maintaining compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and
policies. The Program is designed to prevent, detect, and correct misconduct within the
University based on the elements of an effective compliance program as set forth in
Chapter 8 of the U.S. Federal Sentencing Guidelines and as required by Florida Board of
Governors Regulation 4.003.

The Office of University Compliance and Integrity (the “Compliance Office”) is pleased
to present the status update for the 2021 - 2022 Compliance Work Plan. The information
reflects progress on the key action items and other compliance activities for the second
quarter of fiscal year 2021 - 2022 (October 1 - December 31).

1. Provide Program Structure and Oversight of Compliance and Ethics and Related
Activities
The Compliance Office serves as a point for coordination of and responsibility for
activities that promote an organizational culture that encourages ethical conduct and
a commitment to compliance with applicable federal, state, and local laws, as well as
regulations, rules, policies, and procedures.

2. Standards of Conduct and Policies
The Compliance Office oversees the Florida International University Policies and
Procedures Library as well as the University-wide policy development and
management process. The Compliance Office provides support to the offices
responsible for developing, updating, administering, communicating, training,
monitoring, and ensuring compliance with University policy.

Page 71 of 125



FIU Board of Trustees

Audit and Compliance Committee

March 3, 2022

Office of University Compliance and Integrity Quarterly Report
Page |3

3. Training, Education and Communications
The Compliance Office trains, educates, and creates communication pathways to
inform the Florida International University Community of its compliance
responsibilities, regulatory obligations, and the University compliance and ethics
program.

4. Measurement and Monitoring
The Compliance Office identifies and remediates noncompliance through proactive
review and monitoring of risk areas. The monitoring plan is typically determined by
the evolving risks, new laws, and regulations as well as trends identified by the
Compliance Office in partnership with other units. The Compliance Office also
measures and evaluates the overall compliance and ethics culture of Florida
International University

5. Enforce and Promote Standards through a System of Investigations, Discipline,
Incentives and Corrective Actions
The Compliance Office, in consultation with the University President and FIU Board
of Trustees and in partnership with Human Resources, promotes and enforces the
Program and University regulations, policies and procedures consistently through
appropriate incentives and consequences for noncompliance. The Compliance Office
conducts timely reviews and coordinates investigations of allegations of
noncompliance and misconduct and provides guidance on corrective actions.

6. Risk Management
The Compliance Office partners with the Office of Internal Audit through the
Enterprise Risk Assessment to identify areas of compliance risk for further monitoring
and to assist risk owners in mitigating and managing risk.

Page 72 of 125



GZTI 30 gL °beq

*2Inpadol ] Sunered( Teurejul Surzijeury a10joq MO[PIOM JUDILIND djewoine o} wiojre[d ] jo Surwrerorim
pozireury “(s3ur[y ayeis pue [e1dpay apIm-Aysivarun Sumpyoern) wopeld Surrojluow pue ISpurwaI XLIR]A sjuswaImbay
doueridwo)) ayj 103 21npadoi Sunrerad reuralul jo Juswdo[eAsp Panujuod pue JUSWSSIssy Juswasordul] ssadol ] pajeiduo))

*MIIARY] aIreuuonsang) sponuo)) yodxy /aouanyjur uSaio uoneZLIOYINy

[PAeI] 10j ainpador] Sunerdd reuwrdju] jo juswdo[PASp PONUIUOd pue JUSWSSISSY Juswdsordur] ssedoi] pajerduio)d
“wA)SAG JuswadeueA 9seD) SUI[JOL]

IUjueJ [ed1 3 103 aInpadoi] 3unerad( eursiu] jo juswdo[aasp panunuod pue JUsWssSassy juawasorduwy ssado1] pajerduo)
2Inpadoi] unerad Teurejur azrumdo

03 ssado1d Teaoarddy [onuo)) jr0dxg Surrey reuoneurLiuy Jo uoreneAd pue 3unssy ur padeduy Tesorddy jonuo) rodxy
Surrely reuoneuIaiu] 10§ 3INPadol] unerad reursjuy jo Juswdo(esap pue JuawIssassy juswaAoxdwy ssa001 pajarduwo)
-arnpadoi] Sunerad( Teursyuy azrundo 03 moyprop reaoxddy ururer] (S5 D)

pIepuelg AJLImdag eje(] Jo uonenyead pue 3unss) ur padedur "MopfIop Teaorddy Sururer] (S [DJ) prepuelg Ajndag ereq
Ansnpuf preD) juswideJ 10§ 21npadol] Junerad reursjuy jo juswdo(esap pue juswssassy jusawasoxduwy ssa001J pajarduwo)
2Inpadoi] Sunerad Teurejur azrumdo

0} ssaooxd urusardg Ayreq pajornsay] 2ouerduwo)) [ensip jo uonenyead pue 3unss) ur padeduqg "SurueaIdg Ajre pajoLnsRy
aoueridwo)) [ensip 10j amnpador] Sunernd [eursju jo juswdo[PAdp pue JuLWISSasSy juawasordwy ssadorg pajerduio)
"2INPIJOL]

Sunerad Teurejuy azrwumdo 03 ssedoxd Sunroday Sururer] souerdwo) N1 jo uoneneas pue unsay ur padeduy Sunroday
Sururex] soueridwo)) Q1 10§ arnpadoi] unerad( Teursiuy jo Juswdo(esap pue Juawssassy juswaAordw] ssa001] pajorduo))
‘wrer301 oY} 93€N309§J3 0} UdNe}Iapun

suonouny pue ‘swrerdoid ‘sassaoo1d snorrea ay} sUIfWEas pue JuawWndop 0} sainpadoid urerado Tewrsjur dopasp 03 anuruo))

<

<

sainpadoid SuneradQ reurajuy asuerjduro)

*JOoNpuod [ed1Y)9 3FeInodud Jey) pue aInjnd [euonezruegdio ue ajowoid jey) 351330 ddueridwo)) ay3 Aq pajelrfoes
pue ‘pajeurpiood ‘pajonpuod sanIAnde werdord Jo IpMIINW Y} JO UOTJENUIIUOD SIPNIUT UB[J IOM [eNUUY gZ0¢-120Z UL

LHOISYAAO R HYNILONYLS WVIOOUd

vl o8eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3° vL °beq

"SUIOOUOD ddUdN[Jul UIII0]
ssarppe 0} sjusweaidy [euonewdiu] 105 98enduel ayejdurey padofaad(q ‘sousnyjur udwioy Surpredar aynjeig d3eig epLIof] A}
jo sajepuew oy} 9yerodIodur 03 smo[j ss9001d JuswaaIde Mau USI[qe)se pue suonnisul U310y Yim sjusuaaide Surnsixo ssasse
0} sSMO[P[IoM dO[oAdp 0} PANUIIUOD ‘SITeJjy JIWLPLIY PUR ‘[Osuno)) [eISUaD) 3y} JO DIJO Y} ‘SIeJFY [eqo[D Yim uoneradood uf
-a8essaw uoedYTOU-0JNE UOIRZLIOYINY
[PARI], pue ‘OpIno) O ‘O9PIA [OABI], [EUOLEUIU] ‘ADI[OJ [oAeI], Jeuonewrau] o} sajepdn Junnsar jo Junjerp uedag
‘suoneunsap [pAer} USIaIOof [[e ssoIde sjuswaImbar A103nje)s ay3 93eNnjd9fje 03 WLI0j UOHRULIOJUL [9AeT) jsod pue ‘aireuuonsanb
SuruLaIds ‘SMOTPIOM pazifeur dduanpjur udrIoy Jurpiedar aynjeig ajeig epLIo] Y3 Jo soyepuew ayj} ayerodiodur oy ssadoxd
(MV 1) 3sonbay uonjeziroyny [pAeL], 9y} Jo USISapal paje[duwiod “asuno)) [eIausn) jo 300 Y3 pue “A3o[ounds ], uoreuLIofu] Jo
UOISIAL(] 9y} “JuawdO[2A9(] JTWIOUODH pue YdILasay JO 01O Y} “IS[[OIFU0D) 3} JO 3OO Y} “SIrejjy [eqor) Yim uoneradood uf
‘ouanpjur udreroy Jurpredar aynjelg 93eig epLIof A Jo sajepurw ajerodioour
03 sassaoo1d Gurusards pue sgunsod qol ‘smo[pfIom Jo Juswdo[eAdp PaNUIFUOD “SOAOIL] A} JO DIFFO A} PUe ‘[9SUNO)) [LISUD)
3} JO OIJO A} ‘S92INOSIY ULWINE] JO UOISIAL(] Y} “uaudo[Ad(] dIWOUODH pue UdoIeasdy Jo DO 9y Ym uoneradood uf

SUONNJTISUT UDILSAI ‘[9ARI} USIRIO] - 9C'OTOT o

SI9UDIeasal US1a10] SUTUaaIdg - GCOTOL o

Sunaoday 1o uSRIO] - GTOTOL

SJUSWIDAISY [eIN) N [EUOHRUISIU] - 098'87 o

spenRuUo)) pue SPID) uIo] - T0T'987 e
:s3unPaW 99 TIWIIOd-qNG pue 010, se ], dodueridwo)) 1091 93 po1
"S9DINOSAI 03-08 pue ‘sGUrUTLI} ‘SUOTITUILJOP ‘S[eLId)eul
‘oouepng [einpadoid ‘surioy poduIl[ A[PARDRISIUI puR SIOBJRIUL A[PUSLI-Idsn SajerodIodur yormym ‘npa-niyjoruodirodxe
Q)ISqOM  [O0TU0D) 3I0dXg MU IO [PLIOJEW QA[JUBISqNS MIU JOo uonIppe pue spuswaaordwr ssadord panunuo)

<

SANIAIDY DUBUIIA0D) MSTY [€qO[S) pue dUIN[JU uSra1og

‘2Inpadoi] Sunerad Teuraul

azrumdo 03 ss001] uoneredsy uoneysany AdroJ pue Sururer], souerdwo)) parmbax 10y uonenyeas pue 3unsay ur padedug
‘sassaoo1d armyeudrs yuednred (D) ueg

[onuo) ASojouyda], 103 aanpadoi] Sunerad( rewrsiuy jo yuswdopaap urdaq 03 Juswssassy jusuaAordu] ssado1 ] pajoduwo))
‘2Inpadox ] Sunerad eursuy Jo

juswrdopasp urdaq 03 ssavoxd udredure)) asino)) aosuerduwo)) jo juswrdo[paa(] Jo Juawssassy JusuwaAoxdu] ssa001 ] Ut padeduy

G| @28eg

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3o gL obeq

"Z20g Arenue[ ur ade[d o€} 03 [[e UMO], SIDILasdy € 10j uoryeuasaid
JUIOJI9MOJ dO[9ASp 0} [9SUNO)) [EISUD) JO AP0 Y} pue JUswdo[aAd(] JTWOU0DT pue dIeasdy JO DIFO Y} YIM PIRIOM
"A1033yed ,paISI[-Uydjem , e Iopun [[eJ YdIYM 9SO} Se [[oM S SONIIUD POJOLISII-JUSUWILLIOA0S ‘G ] YHM Juawadedua JuriIoduod
UOT)ORIIP Tea]d apraoid pue sdusnFuI U319I0J dULAP 0} ,,dULPIND) AJLINDAG YOIedsay Pue adUSNJJU] USISI0,],, 9SIOUO0D PIZI[eur]
‘JuawaaIde yuswAofdws ue o3 yuensind Aorjod drysisumo JT prepuess s,N1 03 302lqns asimIayio jou axe (saahofdwa axIun) oym
srenprarpur £4q aamsodxa 03 30adsax ypm pajosjoxd ATy st J1 S,N1d ¥eys 2Insus 0} juswaaide uonodajord (J1) A11adoir renyoo@iug
ue Juawd[duWI 0} S92IN0SIY UBWNE] JO UOISIAI(] Y} pue Juswrdo[oAd(q dTou0dy pue YdIeasay] JO 30130 YIM JIOM 0} PanuIjuo))
*Aefop oym 1nooo suonoesuen; 3urddiys (pajjoruod-uou) sunnox
e} Sunmsua a[rym syuswaImbai 3ursuadi 310dxe ssarppe AJown pue A[fedrjewaisAs 0 paudisap st jeyp) ssadoxd maraax Surddrys
[euoneuIa)uT PaZIfenuad e y3nony sjuswdrys reuoneurajur aaordde pue MarAaI 03 JULINSUOD [0HU0D J10dXd YIIM PIIOM
‘So[npowr 3ururer) JOIIU0D 310dxd 92113 SZI[eUrJ 0} JULINSUOD [OIUO0D 10dXd Y)IM PITOM
*AyTunuIwIod AJISI9ATU( 10§ SaUT[epINS [9ALI}
uSra10y urpre3a1 }S0A01 ] 9} 0} SUOT}EPUSUILIOII PIssasseay] ‘surerdord AJ[Iqowr Juspnjs pue [9AeI} [eUOIEUIS)UI 10 suoriad
juapnys pue sa4ordwe Surpredar sUOIEPUSWIWIODDI ANSST PUE MIIAAI 0} SSUNIIW 99PTWWO)) [oAeIL], Jendar ur pajyedonre
sar3ajens uonuaaxd sousnyuI
u3rar0y 310ddns pue 105 Junodoe 03 sassadoxd [oru0d 310dxa Jo JuswIUIE S} SSISSE - S[OUO,) 1OAXT FIM DUCI[dWO)
sorLreuads juswadedus 1eqo[3 03 Surureyrad
sassa001d pue sam1[0d JUIUHTUIWOD JO S)IIFUOD PUE JSATIIUI JO SIIIFUOD SSISSE — JUSWFILIWIO) PUE }SOI91U] JO SPIJUO)
sndured uo syeuoreu USIAI0J JO IX9JU0D A} UI 3sLIe A[feryuajod prnod 31 a1oym sdusnjur ugaIoj anpun
PIOA® pue }0919p A[OAT}IS[9S 0} SIINSELIW dAT}L)UIAId SSISse — SIOJISIA pue SIOP[OY-BSIA snduie) UO S[eUOREN USIDI0]
:3urpnpour UoISSIW Yd1e9sal pue dIUIPELdL [EUOIFRUIdIUL S, JO IXSIUO0D [[EIDA0 S} UT YSLI 9DUSN[JUI
Uu31910§ SZITWIUIW 0} S9INSEIW AJIJUIPI 0} SI[NPOW JUSWISSISSE U} JO 99T} ISIIJ Y} 0} PIJL[II SIIATOL JUSWISSISSE PINUIFUO0))
50 Y} 0} UO}LJUSWNIOP PUE UOTFEULIOJUT dOUSN[JUT
uga10 Jruuqns 03 uriojje[d mau oy} Jo JusWIdO[aAIP YIIM 3SISse 03 (D) SIOUIDAOD) JO PIeOq S} WOIJ S9ATIeIudsaIdal Yyim 9N
"UOISSTWqNS ‘770 ‘T¢ Arenue( parmbai
103 eyep aArsuodsar 10y saurPpmg dojeasp pue “walsAs Sunrodar ayy 03 syuswaaoxdwr ssadord axewr ‘suonsanb 03 puodsax
‘SJuaWIDIMbaI dEdTUNUILIOD 0} [9SUNOD) [EISUID) 33 JO DYJO Y} YIIM PARJIOM S}oeIu0)) pue sy udiaro,] Jurpredar ainjelg
djeIg pue 1Oy uonednpy IYIIH £1T Uonoag o3 yuensind juswarmbar Suniodar soimos uldreroy 03 asuodsar s, pareurpioo)
-durpeap Suntodar T¢ Arenue( 105 uoneuLIojuI dAIsUOdsax Sunisanbar s1opoyaels A3Is1oATun 493 03 93essowr
uonedRoU JUSG ddUINJJuI Udreroy 3urpredar ajnjelg ajeig epLor] 9y} Jo seyepuewr a3 ayerodroour o) sanred udreroy ym
spenuod pue syId 103 saurppms 3uniodar mau jo Juswdo[eAap pazifeury esuno)) [eruan) Jo 3dFO Ayl Yim uoreradood ug

9| o8¢y

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 30 9L °beq

[InJ 3xau ay ], ‘'syuawaambar Aj1x3ajuy YoIeasay] pue sdousanju] udraio,] 0} asuodsal [euonninsur s,N[ 9y} SSNISIp 03 70T ‘61 Arenue(
uo p[aY 9q 0} [[eH UMO], YydI1easay e 10J uonejuasaid e dojeaap o3 juswrdo@asg srwrouody pue yoreasay] Jo a0 Y3 YIM unjiom
uaaq sey douerdwo) jo 20JO Y3 ey} payrodar ay ‘Afreur ‘s3ururer} 9soy} I0j SadUSIpNE A} dUlAp 03 Juswdo[ead drwouody
pue Yyo1easay Jo 20130 a3 YIm 3unjiom st 205jo soueriduwo)) ay pue pajarduod usaq aaey sanpowr 3ururer} jonuo)) 310dxqg sa1y)
Ay} yey) 310dax 03 Uo JuaM S 'ssad0ad Jeyy) paydune] }SIy M JUIS PIATIIAI Yoeqpasy woly Surynsar ssadoid Juiddiyg reuoneursjug
3} 01 opew syusunsn(pe uo parrodar 9y 4SIL ‘SOATIERIU] STY [eqO[D) 9913 JO SNJe)Ss 1y} U0 pajrtodar yueynsuod sjonuod odxa s,N 1

‘udreduren suonyeorunuwod € Jurpredar seapr oyads pue smopprom pasodord pue Surnsixe 9y uo saquIaW
3010 Sk, 9y} wog deqpasy papnpur Sunsaw oy, aderd ur ynd are sessadoird pajewroine arow ‘wia) I3UOT S[IYM PIYSI[e)sd
U93q dALY Jey} SMO[PIOM 3} UO Pa3Iodal s9a)Iuuodqns Y], ‘S90IN0sal ATessadau [eUonIppe JO UOISSNISIP WS YIM “IeJ snyj}
asuodsal Teuonymnsur s,Nq Jjo Arewrwins e pue sjuawaiinbar A101n3e)s 3} JO MIIAIIAO JOLI] B pauTejuod 310dal aa)ruuwodqns yoeg

99)TUILIOD NS DBD JO SIOM dY} JO snjeys oy} SurpreSar s3uneawr 9010, se], [[Ng 1e[ndai1 je speq 310day o
S9DINOSII [PUOHIPPE WId}-193UO] PUE ULID} }I0YS PIPUIWWIOII AUk 10§ siseq 9y} do[oad(q e
swroprerd N1 Sunsixe uodn Surpng pue urderaad]
J[IYM premioy SUIAOU 33NJe)S S} JO SYUSWIDIINDII 3} SSAIPPE 0} SMO[PIOM puR S3ssa001d S[qejrpne “pajetiojne 910w 9jed1) e
S9DINOSAI S[e[IeA. JUALIND SUISN S9JNJL}S S} YHIM oURI[dW0d 10 SUOHN[OS WId)-}I0US 9)La1) o

:S9A1I03[qo SUTMOT[0F 9 3IM PaxSe) aIe S99 TUIIO0INS ],

3unroday 1oenuo) pue sy udeIo] e

suonnINsU] Yoreasay| ‘oAel] udrero] e

SJUAWRRIZY [eIN)[N)) [EUOIEUIdU] o

SI9UDILISIY USI9I0,] SUTUIRIDG e

:SMOT[OJ Sk dI€ S99)3TUIL0dqNS IN0J 3],

-apewt ssardoid Surpredar ad10 Mse], [[NJ 9y} 03 3oeq partodar seepTuruIodqns Inoj ayj jo yoea ‘ayepdn aane[sida ayy Surmoloq

‘dnoi3 ay3 03 oyepd ) aane[si3da] aousnuI
ud1a10, € pajuasaid sirejFy AJUnNuuIo)) pue JUSUWILLIIAOL) JO 90IJO) 9y} “‘epusfe s SUrjeaull JUaLIND 9} JO ATewruuns e pue Surjeauwr
snoraaxd ayj Jo dedar Joriq e 101V ‘TZ0T7 ‘6 TOqUIDI(] U0 Py SURSJN 9910 S, S [qO[D) Pue 2duanju] uSaIo] pairey) «

*$9859001d MITARI UOTJZIIOYINY [9ARI] pue ‘Mmarady Surddiyg [euonjeursiu “unisaidg JUaweaIdy [EUOTIRLIDIU] “GUTURIDG
axreuuonsan) yuedrddy esip ayj jo 3red se porrad Suniodar oy Sunmp smoraax yoreasar aduerduwod [ensia gGT paonpuo) <«

L] 28eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
70T ‘€ WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3° LL ®beq

dnoxn SunyIop) SAIOI[O] SOTYI JO IOqUIDIA

(OV.LI) 9anrwwo)) s1ojensiunupy A3ojouyda ], uoryeuriojuy ut juedonieJ

dnoi3yrop) ue[J uondy uonnjosay (YD) SWYSKY [TALD) JO 01O Y3 ut yuedonreJ
s3urarrg Suruuel asuodsay T-AIAOD 2onTwwio)) suonerad Aousdrewy ur juedodnre g
s3uneow wea ], drysiopea] Aeg aukeosig a3 ur yuedonre

dnoa3xI0 A\ 1S2193U] JO IIFUOD) /ANARDY SPISINQ Y} JO IOqUIDIA

99)3TWIUIO)) SINSO[ISI(] INSUII] [EUOISSIJOL] Y} JO IOqUIDIA

dnoxn) Sunjrop AN[IqIssedoy 1eySI( 943 JO IOqUIDIA

90104 MSe], [OYOd[y pue Sni(] 9y} JO IDqUISA

dnoin Sunyrop) aouerdwo)) A3ojouyda], pue sprepuelg Jo 93IISU] [eUOTIeN 9} JO IOqUIDIA
d9pIIIwIo)) ADI[0J $S900Y Surp[ing A}SISATUN Y} JO ISQUIDIA

99)}IUILIIO)) [OARI], [EUOTIRUIDIU S} JO IOQUIDIA

dopTIIWIO)) JYSISIOAQ) UOHEIDOSSY dNRURY 93eI3I[[0D) [euoneN Y} JO IoqUISIA

dap o)) suonerad() 9y} JO IqUISIA

[IDUNO0D) AIOSIAPY S,Ued(] 9y} JO IoqUISIA

dnoin) yuswadeueyy sty astidiojuy oy Jo IreyH-0D)

sopTwwo) (30 Adeard pue syysry reuonesnpy A[rure) vV Idd oU Jo 1reyd-0)
APIUIWO)) 1OV ANIGEIUNODDY pue ANJIqe}IoJ 9dueInsuy Yi[es] 9y} jo Irey)-0D)
dapTwrwIo)) uosrer aduerduwo)) ay3 jo ey

9P IUIWO)) ADT[O ] Y3 JO Irey))

99)IUILIIO)) }SDIDIU] JO JDI[FUOD) [eUOTINISU] Y3 JO Irey))

90104 Yse], dduanyyuf USDI0] pue STy [eqoo) 93 Jo IreyD)

wnRIosuo)) aduerdwo)) weysAg AJISIDATUN 93e1G Y3 JO Irey) <«

-0} pajruul]

JOU Jnq “SUIPN]OUT SOATJRTIIUT PUE S99)IILILIOD ‘S9DI0J Sk} [eI9Ads Ut oyedionaed 10 /pue pes] 03 sanunuod 30130 duerduwo)) ayy,

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA

saAjeIU] paje[ay-aduerjduio) YO pue sadaPIumio)) ‘sadio dse] ur uonedmnnre

“wmaur oy} ur Surmdoo (rerrdoxdde pue Aressodau se) 9010, MSE, [[NJ 9U} YIM UOT}LITUNUIWIOD
pue ‘3ururen; ‘s3unEaWI d0U-pe pue JIOM dPIUWWOI-qNS JUedyTudIs YIm gg0g YoTeN ut aoe[d ayey [Im Junoawr 9010 se],

g| @a8eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
70T ‘€ WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3o gL obeq

“Buneawr sen IO JYSISISAQ) UONRIOSSY dNB[YIY 91e13a[[0)) TeuoneN [[ef ay3 ur pajedonreJ

‘sy10ds Gurids 103 surioy uoseas aonoeld pue Surde[d pue srepuated wrea) paypny

‘sansst AIqI3Ie [eryuajod payUapPI pue passassy

‘sarenperd urids 10§ ULI0] UOTJEDIJLISA TeUTy pauTeIqO

‘s9jaTe-yuapnys 3urids 103 ssadoad suorssturpe pajoiduro))

"SBYIe-1USpPNIS [TV POLJIHIDIY

“JUSPISIJ PUe I0101I(] SONR[YIY Aq pajarduwod ‘eoueriduo)) jo uonejseny pajepuews paynuqng

‘soonpoeld 0} SHSIA 931S-U0 Y3NOIY) S310§9 SULIOITUOW Pausiy3Io]

"S9YDL0D PUE SIII[YIL-1USPNIS 0} PIAJLUTUISSSIP PUE UOTILITUNUIWIOD UOHedINPH SN Pajei(

"S93Ie-1UdpNIS 03 Spunjor

pue pre 3urszadsip jo ssadoxd a3} pue uone[sida] pre [eroueuy a[qedrdde ssnosip 0} pry [erueur] Jo 905J0 Y3 YIM BN
*s9ss9001d suorssrurpe [erdads ssNOSIp 0} SITeJJy JUSPNIG PUE SUOISSTWPY YIIM 19

*SaNSST SUISISWD 90 PUe Y JV ‘S[NI “UOTIR[SIZI] MU MIIASI 0} I9JU)) dTWIPEIY Y}V JUSPNIS JO JJeis UM 19
‘surea) pue sayoeod juaurjredap

SONRIYIY ) uo joedur ferjusjod oy} SUTUWLISISP 0} pue uone[sI3a] Surpuad pue Mau [e MITAII 0] JJeIS ATINIAXS YIM PN «
‘SuUOTe[Y [PUIDIXH WO dAT}LIUasaIdar B pue [9SUNo)) [eIauan) Jo 3dIJO 3} YIm

drysrourred ur sayoeod pue Jjess [re 107 Suturer} uorednpy sa[My (UOTRIDO0SSY JHIYIY 91eI33[[0D) [euoneN]) VVIN Paionpuo)d)
*103eUTpI00)) ddueIdWwo) mau papreoquo pue ‘pairy ‘ssadold Junmioar pajarduro)

‘wrexdoxd TIN YVOY 92 9sea[ar 03 YD TN UYIM pataulreJ

JoeoD) pea] Yyoea YIIm s3urasu }onpuod

pue juensuod 10j 31sta sndured peayreads 03 1001550 SuneradQ JoryD) /1010911 SUI[YIY 9ILID0SSY I0TUSG YIIM patoupe] «
‘uonMInsur sy} 103 (YJV) 31€yY SSaI1301J dTWDPpedy JIWNS 0} JULNSUOD YIIM PIIOA <«

A A A AAAAAAAAA

A A A

saAnyenIu pue JYIIsrAQ dueriduwio) s>V

(dVH1) wexdox] yusuwedueApy uoneonpy diysiopes ayj Jo I9quISW e SI 1030 Jue)sissy aduerduwo) «
wexdor] diysiopea] [enuapIsai ayj Jo Iaquuawl e st pdeuey souerduio) «

6| 28 ey

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
TT0T 'S WIeN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZTI 3° 6L °beaq

‘1sanbai 1oy je weay diysiepes| uonepuno N1 3y} 03 uoneiuasaid Funjew-uoIsap pue dIYsIapea] [edIY12 Ue pajonpuo))
*A9AING SSaULATIORJJH 901330 dduerdwo)) Aysaarun ayj jo synsax Suniodar pue Sunaidisjur ur 3sIsse 03 JULINSU0D YIIM 1IN
"IOIABRq

pue dnysiapes] reonpie Surpredax suonsonb pappe yim AoAIng ssausaaneyyg 20uyj0 dduerdwo) Aysisarun N1 paserdwo)
“Sunyewr uorsIap [edry3e uo siseydws ue yrm 1eps[sma aduerdwo) 170z [Ted payoune|

<
<

sanfe A 310D s,NI azijeuoneixdQ

*dnoi3srop) Ad1[0 93 Aq PIISPISUOD pUE PIMIIASI

aq 03 sajepdn pauued ypm yromowrery juswdopasp Adrjod jo juswissasse panunpuo)) - pireddrodg dnoiny JurjIopn AOT[o]
‘(suonyeysayre Aorjod

pue s3ururen) diysiopes] Ajsioarun 10y syse} aouerdwod parmbar jo snyeys ayy Suneorpur s3uneajy preog AIOSIAPY suea(]
pue apTuwo)) suonerdd( Yy} 3 YIuow yoes pIedalodg dAIINISXT Ued(] /IUdPISAI JIA Y} PAJUasal] — PILOqUSe(] dATINISIXT
"UOISIATP IS} UI}IM SOATJRIIIUI PUE SINSST paje[orx dduerjduiod ssaxppe 03 SUOSIer] 493 Y3Mm J9A - preoquse(] uostery adueriduio))

<
<

A[Iqeiunoddy pue PYSIs1dAQ

"[00} unTpNE SPIOJAI [EDTPIW DTUOIII[S U J0J IOPUIA M JOBIJU0D TLIA-3UO € PaINdag

"JeurIoy

OIUOX}D3 Uk OJul sa[npowr a3 Surzieury uedag ‘suonejussaid anr Aoeard vy JIH padueape g1 jo juswdofaasp pajaiduio)
‘310day] Teruuaig a3 jo reaordde pue marasr azifeuy 0} (QOV) 29PTWWOD) NI pue [OYOI[Y U} YIIM PIIOA

"3yep 03 syuswrysiiduwoode pue 310339 adueriduwod AdeArr

VVdIH S,NI4 Surpre3a1 (NODMH) SI01II(J JO pIeog ayj pue s9PIUo)) Jpny pue adueurty NOH-I 94} 0} PAjUasai]
‘Juawrdo[aAsp [eury wpun APUuaLInd saareyussaidar oy} pue siourwr 3urpredar

ampouw 3ururen 1a3re] e jo 3red st Jururen) oy, ‘yusuryean; pue 3unsa) Ure}Iad 0} JUISUOD 03 SIYJLI I8} pue siourw Jurpredar
aonoer] LAnoe] dnoin (JNODMH) SUDIPIIA JO 933[[0D) WISIIdAA MAGISH Y3 10§ o[npowr Sururernj e pajuasaid pue padopessag
*A3ojouda ], uoreULIOU] puE

oueridwo)) AJISISATUN JO DIJFO “[9SUNOD) [eIdUSL) 33 JO 90O Y3 YNM Suneaw Suruue[d sapmuuwuod v [ ut payedoneJ
‘Surjeswr

OPTWIWOD YV JTH A[yuowr oy} jo 3red se uorssnosip Adearr] (A}[iqejunoddy pue Aiqeito adueinsu] YieaH) VVJIIH Pl

<

saAnenIu] pue JYSIsrAQ dueridwo) sirejyy YijjeoHy

oL »8¢eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3° 08 =beq

‘Gurureny pue Adrjod ‘weiSo1 ] uonjuaAalL ] Y [, AUap] epdn 0} UuonEISIUTWUPE dDULULJ YIM JIIN
"S[OIFU0)) AT0JUaAU] pue JIomaurel] Ao10J s,N Sunrepdn Surpregax yueynsuod Ayred pirgy yum o
*Ao110J SUnUNOoddy UOdNISUOD) 3y} JO JUSWdO[oAdP I0J 9DINO0SI Se PIAIDG
-ayerduray Aorjod pajepdn
ayy ojur 31 Sunerdagur ‘1O AJIsIATUN Y3 paudife pue Adrjod 3sa193U] JO PIFUOD) YV 93 Jo juswrdo[aasp ayy ut pajedonre] «
‘sudredured uoryedorunuIwod pue sampadoid dojpasp pue sarjod 3unsixe ayepdn 03 sTOUMO ADI[OJ UM PIOJIOM  «
*ADT[O ] 3S9I93UT JO IDI[FUOD) [eUOTINIRSU]
A} azijeury 03 Juawdo[aAd(] JTWIOUOdH pue YdIeasdy 9010 Y} PUE [9SUNOD) [EISUSL) JO IO Y} YIM SIOM 0} paNURUo)  «
"UO[}DA}d( PUE UOUDASL] prel] - uone[n3ay £L1 - NI 9ZI[eulj 0} IDYJO [PDURUL] JDID pue UOHeNSIUNUpPY
pue 2dueUL] 10J JUSPISILJ IA IOTUIG S} PUE “[OSUNO)) [LISUID) Y} “DARNIIXH IIPNY JOIYD) 9Y3} YIM NIOM 0} panunpuo) <«
‘ssad01d yuawrdoaaap Adrjod oy jo sadeys snorrea Jurmp sraumo Adrjod yim pajnsuo)  «
‘Bunsod 03 1orxd sy IO suonerad 9y} pue [1oUNO)) AI0SIAPY sues(] 9y} Aq ssad01d maraax
arerzrdoxdde ayy ySnoayy sawrjod pasiasr Apuedyudis 10 mau Surraysn Surpnour ‘ssadoi ] yuswido[pas Ad1o ay3 padeuey  «

A A A

SS3201] “—QUE&O~U>QQ %U:Onm rard \réed i\ T4

‘suonjedr[qo pue sanIIqisuodsar
334ko1dwg ajejg 03 pajefax samIfod sdO1YId S,A}ISIDATUN) Y} pue SIoMmauwrer] AdI[oJ AJIs1dATU) Y} 0} sajepdn pue dnoin Sunjiop
A>1104 3y} Jo JYSISIdA0 “‘Pnpuo) jo 3po) pajepdn ayj jo youne] ‘saanpadord pue saprjod Ajsisatun Sumiojud ur sPUMQO

A>110g 03 sap1aoad ad1330 ddueriduro)) ayj) sadimosax pue }roddns 9y} Jo uoryenuUIUOd SIPNOUL U] JIOM [eNUUY ZZ0Z-TZ0Z UL

SHIOI'TOd % LONANOOD 10 SAYVANV.LS

"D0g a3 03 pantwqns pue reaordde 103 sap o)) aduerdwo)) pue jrpny ayj 03
panTwqns pue paja[duwod usaq aours sey weirdo1 sduerdwo)) AJISIDATUN [EUOTIeUIaIU] EPLIO] 93 JO MIIAJY WeI301 ] [eUIIXy <«
"SuOIepUAWIIO0AI s 310da1 Y} ssaIppe 03 sadinosal pue sanuorid ajerrdordde ssasse 03 ue8ag prrom ayy
punore saruedwod urped] jo saonoerd pue swerdord sy jsurede Junjrewnyouaq SOPNOUT YOIYM “I0SSIsse [euralxa ue Aq paredard
uonenead [euonjerado 1adesp e ‘wnpueIOWSN SSOUIATIORJYH pue U3ISa( AJSISOATU[) [EUOIIEUIdU] EPLIO[] 9} PIOMIIADY «
"SUOTIEpUSWIIIO0AI § 310daI 3y} SSaIppe 03 saoInosar pue sanriorid ayerrdordde sururieyep o3 “1ossasse
reuraxe ue £q paredard ‘wrerdorg soueriduwio)) AJISIDAIUN JEUOTIEWISIU] BPLIO[] 9Y} JO 310doy] weido1 [euIa)xXyg o) PoMIIAdY <«

werso1d aduerduro) Jo MI1AIY Ted X IAL]

Il o%ey

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
TT0T 'S WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3o 18 °beq

‘samrjod Ays1oatun mau Suny3IySTy U0T309s B SOPNIOUL UDTYM IDPI[SMIN doueriduwo)) [Te payoune|

"[00} uonEdTUNWIWOD AdT[0d € Se 19)33[SMaU S)T 9ZI[HN 0} SIOINOSIY UeWN] JO UOISIAI(] 3} YIM SIOM O} PaNUIIuo))
*Aor70d SunedTUNUIWIOD JO SPOYIdW MdU SNOLIBA AJIIUSPI 03 SToUMO Ad1[od 3Im I0oM 0} panunuo))

‘sudredured Aorj0d 103 9oustpne ayerrdoxdde pue Aouanbaiy ayy surursiep 03 soumo Adrjod yiim yrom 03 panunuo))

A A A A

SSouaIeMy AdI[0J AJISIOATU() dSLIIDU]

‘parepdn ApAnjueisqns

10 pojeard are sarod mau se sud argoid ysur e Jursn sroumo Adrod ypm suSredures Aorjod pajeurpiood pue paynuepy <«
*Aressadau st ururer) pajerdosse wyeym pue sudredured uoryeorunuuod Aorjod

renprarpur jo Aouanbaiy pue yypeaiq saunuialap 03 maradr Aorjod apIm-AISISATUN TZ0Z-020Z Y3 Wog SIsATeue ejep pajerodioou] «
‘dInseaw

uonednnu pue [oRuod e se saijod AjsIoATun apnpur 0} WO e[ ST NI MON 93 JO SUTWEeaIIM 3} JO USISIp panunuo) «

sapI[oJ AJisraArupn) 03 yoeoidde juswaGeuey sy

"SITeJJy [EUId)XH PUe JUSWUISAOL) ‘SUOT}EDTUNUIWIO)) JI391e1)G YIIM UOHBUTPIO0D
urpniour 4nojo1 pue youne[ onpuo)) jo apo)) 1oj udredured suoredTUNUILIOD dAISUIRIdWIOD e Jo Judwdo[PAdp panunuo) <«
"JoNpuo)) Jo PO S} OJUT SISp[oydeIs Aoy Aq SUOISIASI pajsad3ns pue yoeqpasy pajerodioou] «

$NpU0 Jo 3po) NI4

*Aorjod syure
pUB SUOTJUSAUJ dZI[eurj 0} JUSWdO[2A(] JTWOU0DF PUER YoIeasay] JO 91O Y} pue [9SUNO0)) [eIdUdD) JO OO U} YIM PIOM <«

Tl 28eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
70T ‘€ WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3o zg °beq

uonga[dwiod % /66
Sururer] sorseq OV A1RD NI <«

ayer uona[dwod o4 z'66
JusWASpa[MOWDY AJI[OJ NI e [PARL], «

arer uona[dwod o007 e
JUSWR3PIIMOUDY ADI[O] SSaULNIT pue ‘adew] ‘DureN 19} yV-Juapnig  «

arer uonddwod 9001 e
JUDSWRIPIA[MOWDY ADT[OJ ANTIqISSANDY [eN3I(q  «

:Zurpnpdour jyejs
pue £ noey Lyisoarun o) sugredure) Sururer] AuswaSpaimowy Ad110 dduerduwod aary pansst pue ‘padoaaap “pausisagq

UoNEdUNUIWIO)) pue “‘uonednpy “Sururer] pa[npayds pue [enuuy gz0g -120<

‘uonejudrIQ dLofdurg maN ur uonjedmnred pue ‘sajepdn sduerdurod pue suorjejuasaid
‘SUOTJEITUNWIWIOD JANISUIS-dWI) ‘SIJISQIA [onuo) podxg pue Ludsjuy pue aduerpdwo) ayj “1d)3[smaN duerdwo)
s,NI1 ‘sanmunjioddo p(euonyeonps judwjoruad-j@s ‘suSredwred Sururery dduerpdwod Arojepurwr YSnoryl pajedTUNUIUIOD
UOHRULIOJUT JPNOUl SMO0JJ ‘ssdudreme dAojdwd aseamur 0} adyyO duerdwo) a3y} Aq pajej[oe] pue ‘pajeurpIood
‘Pa3PNPUO0d SIPIANOE UOHEIIUNWIWIOD pue Uonesnpa “Sururer) }snqol Jo UOIeNURUO0Dd SIPNIUTL Ued NIOAM [enuuy ZZ0Z-120C Y.L

SNOILVDINNIINOD 2 NOLLVONdd “ONINIVI.L

3110 3s9193U] JO IDT[FUOD) [euonMISU] - 00T 0ST

9INPID0IJ Pue AJI[O JUSWRIURIIY JIOM I[qIX] - THT 0FLL
aINPad0I pue AdI[O] Syusje ] pue SUOLIUIAU] — 100 06ET
Korjog uonezieyide) SunuUNoddy UORONIYSUOD) - GE0'OTLL

A A A A

:ssa001d Juawresiopua y1omawrer] Ad1[0J MIN 3y} y3nony; sawijod mau moj paraysn adueriduio)) AJISIaATUN JO 901FO YL,

[9suno) AI0SIApY sued(] pue )10 suonerdd ayj Aq pasiopug pue pamMaTAdY SII[0J ANSISATUN MIN

¢r| 2a8eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
TT0T 'S WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZTI 30 ¢8 obeq

papreoquo a1e A3y se seakofdus mau 10§ sSururer} A[eoMm-1q dAI[ }ONPUOD) o
Sururen sonpg pue souerduo)) ssusrradxyg sakordwrg maN «

JUaWI[OIUd-J[3s 10J uad() e
Sururex], soueridwo)) JusuwaSeuey SPIOdY <«

JuaWI[OIUd-J3s 10J uad() e
Sururer] 9s UNOUOIJ pue aweN ISIL] UasoyD) N[ YL <

G0/ :pauren} saakoidwry o
juswWI[OIUD SUI[[OY
(sse00y suonnjog sndure)) 103 parmbair yuawjoIus) soiseq V] <

7€ ‘pauren) saakordwy e
juswWI[oIud SUI[[OY e
(eyep parjoruod
-Aoearrd ureyrad 03 ssadoe 10§ parnbar yuswijoIus) I 10J (SSO-1DJ) Sururei] prepueig AJLIndag eye(] Ansnpuj pieD) juswihe] «

8¢T :pauren) saakojdwry e
juswIf[oIuD SUI[[Oy e
(eyep paqjoruod
-Aoearrd ureyrod 03 ssaooe 10§ pasmbair yuswioIus) syueydISTA 10J SuTuTel], pIrepuelg AJLnsag eye(] Ansnpuy pre)) juswieJ «

0G¢‘T spauren syuapnys pue saakojdwry e
juswIf[oIUD SUI[[Oy
(uonyewurojur yireay pajoajolrd o3 ssadoe 10j pasmbar juswijorud) soiseg VIJIH <«

Judwf[oIua-J[3s 10j uado pue SuroSuo are yey) sugredure) Sururer] uaads panssi pue ‘padofaaap ‘paudisaq

UOT}e[edsd Ul AJUaIIn)) e
JUSWRIPI[MOWDY UoneN3ay soderoadg dIOYod[y <«

vl 28eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
TT0T 'S WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3° v8 obeq

UOT)e}S9)}y ADI[O] SYUauwImMbay Yooy D) AI0)SIF] [eUTWIID) pue punoidydeq «

‘udredured [euoryeonpa ayepdn
03 yuaunyreda(q 9010 NI Y} PUE SIOINOSIY UeWN] JO UOISIAI(] Y} “[9SUNO)) JEIUDD) JO 30IFO Y3 YIIM SUIjeurpIoo))
109[39N pue JUBWIUOPUEqY ‘Osnqy PIIyD Jo Suntoday A1oyepuey «

‘[PUNO0D) AIOSIAPY SITeYD) pue ‘99 Tuuo)) suorjerad() ‘SUosTery adInosay Uewng] ‘Iouno)) AIOSIAPY sued(] 9y} 0} uonen3ay]

saderaAag dI[OYOI[Y a3 Jo syuswaInbax oy yuasaid 0} SITeJJy dIWRPEDY JIIM PajeurpIoo)) “SadInosal pue ‘uoneuriojur “‘Aorod

Sunyedrunuwuwod 170 [[ed U SITeJjy SIWUDPedY PUe S90IN0Say UeWNE] JO UOISIAL(] 9} WOIJ Apurol pansst aq 0} WNPULIOWA

APIM-AJISIDATU( I0J [9SUNOD) [EISUDL) U3 JO DO Y} PUE ‘S90INOSIY ULWIN]] ‘SITeJJy JIUDPLIY UM PIJeuIpIoo)) e
UOTJUARILJ 9SNqQy [0Yod[y pue 3ni( aoe[dyiopz /snduwre) sa11-3niq <«

*$901n0sax pue Adrjod jueas[ar 03 3upjul] pue ‘sreurgqam [euonednps Jununouue ‘syuswarmbar
Mau 3y} unedrunuuiod 10z [[eq Ul S92IN0say UeWN] JO UOISIAL(] 3} pPue Juswdo[oAd(] STWOU0DY pue YdIeasay]
JO 90O 9} WOIJ JFe)s pue A3ndey 0} Apurof pansst WNpUeIOWSA 9[IAd dINSO[ISI(] ISAINU] JO PIFUOD) /ANATDY SpIsinO
renuuy 9y} yam udie 03 uSredured SUOHEDTUNUIWIOD dPIM-AJISIOAIU[ 93EID 0} “}SOA0I] Y} JO 9OLJO A} PUE ‘SIDIN0SIY ULWNE]
JO UOISIAI(] 9y} “YuauwIdO[oAd(] STUIOU0DT PUe YdIeasay] JO 9010 Y} ‘[OSUno)) [eISUL) JO 30IJO) Y} YILM PIJRUIPIOO))

KDT[0 3SI93U] JO PI[JUOD) <«

*3s1n0)) AJ1INdag 19q4D) /eye( 93eIoAa] 03 A30[0UNdd ], UOIFEULIOJU] JO UOISIAI(] 9} YIM SUNeuIpIoo) e
AJ1Indag eye Ym oyl (1 Sunuaadi - s3e[] poy «

SIdp[oYadNeIS A3 Y3Im uornjeurpioo) pue sugredure) suonesrunuuo))

[oruo) yodxyg «
uoryen3ay] Uond939(] pue UOIIUDALJ Pner] «
ue[ asuodsay juapou] «

soiseq VA <«
1S2IDU] JO PIFUOD [EUOHMTSU] <

:Surpnpur jyejs pue Ajnoey
Ayisraatun) 103 suSreduwre) Sururery AusawaSpaimowdy £d110 ddueriduod padofaasp pue pauSisap - zzoz Suridg ur Surypune

cr| 28eq

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

depTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue jyipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3o g8 obeq

Sunaodax gD 103 uSredwre)) suonedrunuWo)) USIsap 03 juswipreda 1[0 NI Y3 YHM 1PN
‘uorye[n3ay sadeI1aaag dI[OYO0d[Y 9y} 03 pajea1 udredured suoredruUNUIUIOd
ugdrsop 03 sIdqWW DIOPSE], , OV, SSnIJ YO pue [0Yod[y pue ‘uonepunoq NI Y} ‘SIejje juspnig Yim RN
‘soaAordure
Pa10937e JO s1os1AIadNS 03 90TJOU PIPIAOI "UOTIe[edsd [[NJ SUIMo[[o] 9331duod 03 pafrey oym asof} Jo safy [ouuosiad [enprarpur
ay) ur wnpuerowaw aduerdwod-uou pade[d pue sudredwred [g0z-0g0¢ SUTUTEWDI [[e I0J SIDIJOU UOHE[edSd [eulj juag e
‘1eaA o[qeordde a3 103 Sunyer souerduwod (JqJ) SS9001] 9OUS[[90XH OURWLIONIDJ
ayy sypoeduwr yorym oy Jeuuosiad royy ur paseld sem uoneoynou e “‘porrad uomperesss oYy Surmor[oy dsey aouerdwod
paxmbar e ajoidwod jou prp oym seahojdwa asoyy 10j jey) 2INsus 0} suone[ay] Ioqe] pue sAo[dwg UM pajeurpioo)) e
‘surea) IR} 03 syse} pajefar-aoueriduwos 3unsrduwod jo sosuelroduwr ayj Sunedrunuwod Yjrm adue)sisse
1Y) aderaas] 03 sajer uonddwod jusunredap [enprarpur Surpre8ar SJUSPISAI] JIA pue sued( UM PIJedUNuuio) e
:ss9001d uoTyR[RIS? A Ul Apjuerimd sudredured 10,
‘sudredured 1oy 103 sajer uora[dwod SZIWIXeW 0} [000301] uore[edsy paaoxduwr oy paderaaa]
‘(louuosiad suorjerado pue Yoreasar ‘speuorssajord 90ualds Yipeay ‘Sururen) diseq) sdururer} [0RU0)) 0dxg 991U} PIZIeur]
‘so[npowt 3ururen} Yy J[H padueape
jo juswdoaAap panunuo)) ‘s3UTUTERI) Paseq-d[0I SUTWLISAP 0} S}UN Pajodjje YIrm sdunasw souerdurod sirejge jyeay pajonpuo))
"Syun saregge yireay [re 1oy 3rodoar uonarduwos Sururery A[oom pajeurwuassIp pue pasoer],
"I9ID[SMIN SIaeIA 2duerduo)) Jo uonIpa [[ej payoune|
"$S900€ SU01N]0S Snduiy)) PINUIFUOD pue [eHIUI 0} pan} ssa001d pajewroine Y3Snoayy AR 03 3ururen v Y H dul[-uo padopasq
"To0}
uonedrunuwwod Adrjod pajepdn /mau e se 1013a[SMIN] YL Y} 9ZI[IN 0} SIDINOSIY ULWNE] JO UOTSIAL(] O} YIIM JIOM 0} PINUIFUOD)

<

<«

A A

A A A A

<

SANIAIPY werdor uonednpy pue Jururer],

*ADT[OJ AISIOATU JURAS[I 0} SUI] YIIM SUONISaN) paySy Apuenbai] jo sar1as e ySnoiyy 10)319[SMaN

s1apeA duerduwo)) 1707 ToquIDAON] 93 Ul ,saakordwy pue s100gj30 dI[qnJ I0J SOTYIF JO 9p0D) BPLIO]] JO 93€1S PAOIYSITYSI]

Ao110 131D /SaI[O] SO  «

*T20Z I2qUId(] Ul paydune] Yorym udredured uorjeisajje pue UOHEITUNUIWIOD B PIJLUIPIOOd S9DINOSIY UeWNL] JO UOISIAI(]

A, 'SaINpadoi] pue Ad1[0J MoayD) punoidyoeqg parepdn ysiqnd 03 s901mosay wewni jo UOISIAI(] 9} YIIM PIJRUIPIOO)) o

91| 28 eg

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

depTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue jyipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3o 98 °beq

‘S[erIayew SUTIdIA R TI0)) dduerdwo) pue yipny
20T ‘€ YoTeN 9} Ul papn[dul Sjnsal AdAIng ‘juswssasse ay) ur pajedonred ssafoidws (pp’c 1040 "seanenIur pue sanriorid
so1yje pue aduerpduwos Surururialop Ym jsisse o} eyep rayped o3 drysiopesy reoryze Surpreda suonsanb jeuonippe yiim saakojdwa
AJISISATU) 0} JUSWISSISSE [enuue SnowAuoue ‘Arejunjoa pajajduo)) - JUsWISsassy paseg-AdAING WeI301 ] SOII pue soue[dwo) «

‘oW adueuLIoyrad e se A[ejeindoe
aIow SO1YPR pue dduerdurod ssasse 03 s1osiazadns moqe 03 syuswarmbair aduerdwod jsurede sjuswainseaw fesrexdde saafodwa
97e139jUr 0} SIDINOSIY UeWNE] JO UOISIAI(] 9} YIIM UOHEIOJe[[0D PINUIIUO)) — [00], JUSUWISSISSY WeI30I] 90Ua[[o0Xy doiojdy «

‘S[erRyew SUT)IIA] 991 TUILIO))

doueridwo)) pue JIpny ZZ0g ‘€ Y2IeJA 243 Ul papn[oul ] [[IM WNPULIOWA] UOI}EPUSWIUIONRY pue SUTPUL] MIIAY SSOUSATIIJFT

pue u3Isa(] AJNSIOATU [EUOIIRUIdU] BPLIO[] "S[eLIdjewl SUNd]A 9930 aduerjdwo)) pue Jipny Iaquiadd( Y} Ul papn[our

sem werdor souerdwo)) AJISISATUN Y} JO MIIAIY WeI30I] [PUIdXT 'SSOUIAIDSJJO pue UJISop s,werdol] 9y} JO MIIAAIL
[ewre)xe ue pajordwod Aysiaarun ayy ‘g0 uonem3ay HOg Aq parmnbair sy - JUSWISSasSy WeI301] souel[dwo) WeIlsold [N <«

‘suonsanb eyrod pue ‘suonedTUNUWILIOD ‘SMO[FIOM

}S9IDIUI-JO-III[FU0D 0} syuawaAoxdwr ssadoxd ayewr pue ssasse 03 }SOA0IJ Y} JO FO Y} PUE ‘SIDINOSIY UBWNE] JO UOISIAI(]

o} “yuawrdo[aAd( JTWIOUODH pue YdIeasay JO 2O1FO Y} “[OSUNo)) [ersudn) jo 20130 ay3 woiy uonedonred Surpnppur dnox3yropn
}S9IDU JO IDIFUOD) /SONIAIDY dPISINO Y} YIM APOoM BN - JUOWISSOSSY WEBISOI] JSoIoU] JO JOIJUO) /SoRIARDY opISiN) <«

SJURUWISSaSSY pue sMIIAY dduerduwo) pafnpaydsg

‘sjrun Y30 yum drysisuyred ur ad1330 Isuerdwo) ayy Aq
PALJIJUIPI SPUDI]} SE [[9M SE ‘SUOI}E[NS3I pue ‘SME] MU “SYSLI SUTAJOAd Aq PIULIOJUT SJUIWISSISSE PIJIIUSPI [BIdA3S SUIPNPUOD 0}

uonIppe ut sjudwad werdord Surrojruow pue JuswRIMSsEIW 1E[NSI JO UOPENUTIUOD SIPNIUT Ue]J YIOM [eNUUY ¢Z0Z-1Z0C UL

ONITIYOLINOIN 7 INAINHINSVAIN
“UOISS9S UOHBIUSLIO dduRLIdd XY aahojdug mapN oy ur uonyedonaed ysnoayy Apoam-1q S9IIy MaU urerj 0} PpoNURUO) «
‘sugdreduren souerduod
JO SUOTEdHTIOU puUe SUOTIEIIUNUIWIOD 9JEUTWISSIP 0} $9ssa001d pajewroine jo uSrsap oy urdaq 03 ] JO UOISIAI(] 9U} YIM PN <«

L] 98 ey

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130
TT0T 'S WIeN

doprurwo)) souerdwon) pue ipny

sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 30 L8 °beq

‘suonr}ad [9ALI) [EUOTJEUIUT ¢TT J0J SUOIIEPUIWILIOII PIPIAOId pue PaMIIAIY — 90 TUIWIO,) [PALBI], [EUOTEUIOIU]

*S9559001d MITADI UOTJRZLIOYINY [dALI],

pue ‘marasy Surddryg reuoneurouy “SuUruaaldg JUaWedI3y [eUoneUIdU] ‘SuTuaaldg arreuuonsang) juedrddy esip oy jo yred se
porrad Sunrodar ayy Sunmp smaraar yoreasar aouerduwod [ensia g6 paonpuo)) - SSUTUL2I0G ooueT[do ) [eNSIA [0IJUO0.) F0dXy]
“UOT}EULIOJUT DAT}ISUIS 0} ssa00e ured 0} puuosiad A3oouyds ], uoneurioyu] 10y pue juswded 10§ spIed

ypaxd 3undaooe syueydrawr se SIom 03 sfenprarpul g9 pasoidde pue paurer] -Teaorddy pue Sururer] Ansnpuj pie)) JUSWAeJ
‘syuswaanbar souerdwo)) 1oy3o pue Aorjod Aysioarun Suissarppe pue urznuord o3 yoeoxdde paseq-ysi s,201330 soueriduwo))
3y} 10§ 9pINg € Sk 9AISS 0} PINUIUOD IPNY [EWIIU] JO OO Y} Aq PAjONPUOD JUSWSSISSE NSLI 9SLIdI0jud 9 ] - JUSWUSSISSY STy
‘suorssTuiqns paimbai 103 ssaoo1d uonyesyLaa e pue sioje[ndar £q sndured sy Inoy3noayy sxouired ssauisng jo pajsenbar

SWId)L 10} SIUI[PLIP SIPN[IUI UIIYM Iepuded Jurioyruowr adueriduwo)) oy} paisjsiurwpy - SULIOUOA Tepuo[e ) oouerduio,)
‘sa13ayen)s uoryednIua

130 pue yuawrdoraasp arnpadoxd pue Aorjod ypm syusunredap sysisse 1o /pue “‘Gururen ‘oouepind sapraoid 90130 soueriduwo))
Y} “(ODD Y3 03 9SINOD JO IO} LW € Sk PAJLdIUNWIWIOD ATk YOIYM) ‘SSUIpUL) JIpNe Uo paseq ‘SIS}EW pue syipne paje[ar-adueriduiod
Surpaedar yipny [eUIdiU] JO DFO Y3 03 2duepms apraoid 03 panunuo)) - IpNy [CUIIU] (HIM UOREUIPIOO) pue dIysioujie]
‘sasodind

uonednnu sII 10§ sanrande feuonerado rojuow 0} pue suonerado Ajsiaarun ojur sduepms aduerdwod INLIIUOD Yjoq 0}
sdnoi3 jo Ajarrea apim e ur uoredonred panunuo)) - SSATTERIU] ooUeI[dWO0)) I3 PUE S99} TUIWO,) 'Sa010,] Jse], ul uongednie]
‘SjudwdINbaI VYN 10 SMe] 9)€)s pue [erdpay Yim aouerjdurod ojur

sarrmbur reuza)xa jo Jy3rs1an0 10 “‘voneurprood 41oddns apraoid 03 panunuo)) - SUOHESNSIAU] 10 Sjsanbay couerdio)) [euIo)Xy
‘steaoxdde jonyuod j10dxs voneZLIOYINE [9ARI) 9T 0}

papuodsar pue pamaraar 201FO ddueriduio)) Y], 'SUOIIeZLIOYINe [9ALI} [EUOHEUWIIUL [[e 10J direuuonsanb [onuod j1odxs ue 10y
12A01dde ue se pue 991 TUIWIO)) [9ALI], [EUOTIEUIS U] 9} JO IOqUISW € SE [DART) [EUOTIeUId UT J}IM PIJeId0SSe SYSLI I9}0 pue [01U0d
podxa sassasse pue siojruowr O dduerdwo)) ayy ‘sirejjy 1eqorD Yim uoneradood uy - SULIOITUO[N UOHeZIIOUINY [9ABI],
wd)sAs Juswaeurw ased ay} ur uoneurrojur jo ugemndod oy Suraoxdur 103

Spoyjaw [euonIppe AJIjuapI 03 suone@y Ioqe] pue aakorduwry yirm pasIop) ‘pantwqns syrodar [Te jo Sunjoen pue MarAdI apnour
0} SUIT}OH JOYjueJ [edIyig Y3 Jo JYSISIDA0 pue uonensiurupe apraoid 0} panunuo)) - MIIAIY 9Se.) SUIJO] Jojue] [eoriq
"SY[SLI 9SO} ssaIppe 03 sdajs aAnoeold axe) pue SaInsodSIp urerad Aq pasod sainsodxa ysi ssasse 03 ssadoxd

MBIARI ST} ySnoxyy sioupred AJSIDATUN YIM YIOM 0} PINUIFUOD) - SSID0I] 9INSOISI(] JSOIOIU] JO PIJUO) /SINIARDY 9pISinO

<«

<

sjudwd[g weidol] SULIOJTUOJA pue JUIWAINSELI]A SuroSuQ

8Ll 28 ey

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3o 88 =beq

aoueridwo)) Jo UoneISaNY - VVON o
eje(q Hoddng reueur pue sajey uonedonre J werdol oua[Yy uo 1roday ay[ - ¥odey VAVA - VVON o
HpNY PIV Uspnis [BIopa] e
310day 31pa1)) yuswke uoning saakojdwyg
yoday] 9s pue a1e)) [eWIUy [EUOHNITISU] o
SUBOT SUDIS ] :}0V uoneonpy IYSIE] e
(rerouan)
I0)IpNY ePLIOL] JO 9jelg 10§) sferoueur] (sadouri] 3ununodoy paydeddy A[ensusn) Jvvo (WwasAg AJISIoATun 91eiS) SNS o
(0211~ wirog) WInjay XeJ] asxy AduaSiawy pue asmpuel /owodu] a3erodio)) epLol] e
uonedynId) ANyiqrsuodsay] eroueur] jo 110day (ISV) ue], 98e10)g punoI3-aAoqy e
syroday] ainsopasi(] 3urAqqo [eIapa SITEJJY [eI9Pa] JO DIFO o
110day] ANIqepPIOJY S[ELISJEIA [EUOTONISU] PUR YOOqIXd[, [ENUUY o
UONJEISPISUO)) IOPU[) S99,] MIN PUe S99, 0} SISLAIDU] o
110day A3o3eg 211 TENUUY UOT EINPY JO Jusunpreda( N Y3 pue ‘seforduwry ‘Sjuspnis e
yodoy 1oy Ajunodag sndurey

:porrad Sumprodarx sty unpim swagt souerdwod

3uIMo[[0] 9} I0J SUOISSIWNS JO UOTEDHYLIDA 3dS 0} PUE SIUI[PEIpP JO WY} purual o} smoulred ssaursng yrm pajedtunuuo))
“oeqpasy yuswaaoxdwr ssadoxd 1oyyed pue

suonysanb romsue 03 pue wrojre[d mau a3 ySnoryy sreumo syuswaimbar soueridwio) apmS o0y (Arenue[ 10j) owdp pa[npaydg
‘sysey aoueridwod jo uonardwod

1Y) Ajuroa 03 wrope[d mau a3 y3nonyy swumo syuswarmbar soueriduwio) apms3 03 sperroin) pajeurwassip pue padoasa(
"“ULIOJ e[ J XL e syuswaImbay] soueridwo)) pasordde pue pajsay,

‘uonouny Surrojruow adueridwo) sty 3oddns 03 wropeJ

XLIJe[A syuawaanbay] aoueridwo) pajewoine ue 03 sjuswasorduwr azijeury 0} AS0[OUYDa ], UOL}RWLIOJU] Y}IM SIOM 0} Panunuo))
"suorssIuIqns parmbai 10y ssado1d uoryesyLaa e pue sioye[ndar Aq sndured ay} ynoy3noayy

soupred ssauisng jo pajsonbar swvir I0j SaUIPESp SIPNOUI UYdIYm Jepud[ed Juriojiuowr aduer[duwio) ay}) paroisiunupy

<

SuniojruoA repuare) dueriduwo)

61| 28 ¢ed

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3° 68 =beq

*SUOTIEITUNUIWIOD SNOLIBA UT ATeIqI AJT[0]

AU} pue ‘9}SIM [0TIU0)) odxg mau ay} “931sqap ddueriduwo)) 9y uo SUIIOL] IoyjueJ Tedryiq NI 23 arowoid 03 panuryuo))
‘passaIppe pue passasse

are syrodar axnsud 03 s1o3ednsaaur paudisse m dn mojoy pue sprodax saurpjoy jo snjess ayj Jo SurIojyruow Iendal panunuo))
‘310da1 9y} Jo axnyeu dyads oy} UALS JUeAS[DI 9q Aewr Jeiy} N ¥e sedInosar pue yroddns reuonippe o0y 1o310dar

ayy jurod 03 pue “pamarasr 3urdq sem ‘paATedal usdq pey poder ayy jeys wiaryuod 03 193rodar payuLpr Yoes 03 papuodsay
"310da1 yoed JO UOTIN[0SAI djewWr}[N S} pue UOTESHSIAUL S} UI PIAJOAUL

aq 1snuwx ‘Aue J1 ‘puuosiad AJSISATUN I9YI0 Jeym pue ‘Snjejs IOMO[OPSIYM ‘asuodsal [eniur pue sjerpawwil s ANSIDATUN
Ay} SuTULId}AP 0 sp1odar [[e SUIMarAaI UM PaySe} “@ARNIAXH PNV JOIYD) SY3} PUe “S90IN0SIY ULWNE] J0J JUIPISAIJ IIIA IOTUSG
3y} ‘100130 ddueriduio)) JornyD) oy} Jo SumsIsuod ‘ 9P TWIo)) MIIAY sytoday aurpor] ay3 Aq syrodar jo adern ayy pajeurpioo))
*MO[PIOM JuauGeurw ased do[oAdp 0} SDINO0SIY ULWINE] JO UOISIAL(] 9Y3} YHMm Joujred 03 panurjuo))

‘3unaodar pue ‘maraar puan ‘vone(iduwod eyep

‘sy10dax uado g jo Sumyoer; pue MarAdI JUaWIUIISSe dPN[OUL 0} SUI[IOL] IOYIULJ [edIY3T NI Y} JO UOIenSIUIuIpe panumjuo))

<

<

JUI[IOH Iayjued [ed1y)q AJSIDATU() [PUONEWIdU] ePLIO]] 3y} jowoi] pue 41oddng “1a3sTuruupy

“(dAd) $$9001] 9OUS[[9DXH DULULIOJIDJ ) UT UOISN[dUT 10] syse} aouerjduwod pajaduwod jou

aael oym saakojduwa jo s1osiaradns uriojur 0 walsAs e juswra[duur 01 s90IN0saY ULWN] JO UOISIAI(] Y} YIM SIOM PIanunuo))
‘sy[sey adueriduwiod parmbar 9jordwod 03 ainyrey

jo seduanbasuod ajesrunuIwmod pue uonsdurod adeInoous 03 (000301 UOHe[edSH OJUT SIOSIAIdANS Sul] J0aIIp pajyerodiodu]
"[020301J uotje[edsy a3 Surmoroj syse} aouerjduwod

paxmbai 9391dwod 03 [re] oym saahojdws 105 saouanbasuod asud 03 S90IN0SIY UeWNE JO UOISIAL(] Y} YIM YIOM PanuIiuo))

<

<

<

(JTd) $S9201J 3OUD[[IDXH DUBWLIOFIdJ Y} YIIM sdjse ], duerjduro) jo uonardwo) ulipy

*SUOT)OE dA}IALI0D FurpIregar
srouyred aduerdwos 03 asuepmS pue JyIisidro Furpraoid pue ‘sysej dduerpduwod jo uond[dwod 10j s3pan jusdwrdo[d2A3p
reuorssayoxd Surpreme ‘Ayrjiqejunodde JYSI[YS1Y 03 , SpIEd2I0DG,, JO SN IAIIIIFJD SuD[ew ‘QUIIOH JIdYjue] [ed1Y3] Y} SUI3sI2A0
‘SMA1ARI pue suonjednsaaul ur Sunsisse 3dIJJO dduei[dwo) sy} Jo UOIENUIIUOD SIPN[IUT Ue[] NIOM [enuuy ¢Z0Z-1<0¢ UL

SNOLLDV HALLDAYIOD ANV SHALLNADNI ‘ANITIDSIA
‘SNOILLVOILSAANI 40 WHALSAS V HONOYHL SAYVANV.LS A LONOId ANV ADYOINH

ol o8¢y

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZT 3° 06 =beq

‘suore3Iqo

A101e[N331 YYDN [Te Y3m aduerduwod arnsus 03 souerjdwo)) AJISISATUN JO I0J0IL(] DUI[YIY ILI0SSY YHIM PIIOM

“WIDISAS JUsWDGLURW 9SLD MAU 9} ojur juswadeuew jure[duwod v [YH] 93eI393Ul 0} JI0OM PINUIIU0))

"SUOT}e[OTA

VA parodar e 103 (eyerrdoxdde j1) uonoe 9A1I081100 pUsSWILIOddI pue 93e31SaAUT 03 dNOISYIOM V1T PIM 19N
‘JuwRRI3y Jururedreq 9ATIOR[0D) YIIM Juswudife

ur sem ssad01d uoneedsa A}noey 2Insus 03} [9SUNO)) [BISUID) JO DIFO Y} PUE ISOA0ILJ Y} JO 90FO A} YIM pajeroqe[joD)
‘uorjeredsa 3urmorjoj sysey aoueriduwod parmbar ajoiduwod 03 [rey oym saakordws jo saf1y [puuosiad 10y sowrawr ayedwsy pajyerq
‘syjsey aduerduiod pambai a3a1dwod 03 aanyrey 105 suonoe aanda110d djeridordde dofarap 03 sadINOSAY ULWINE] YIIM PISIOAL
-2ouepIng 10y sysonbair 10 suonednsaAul SUIMO[[0] SenLIOYINe

arerrdoxdde ayy 03 3onpuod [edIYYe JO spuawRAOIdWI pue SUOTOE SATIALIOD 10§ SUOHEPUIWIOdAI Jurpraoid panuruo))

<

<

1PNpuU0)) [edIY3g Jo JuswaAoiduI] pue SUOIPY IAIIIII0)) 10 SUOLIEPUIWWOIIY dPIAOL]

"S9SED QUITJOL] JOUJUE ] [edT} WL SUTWIIa)S suore3dnsaAul uo ssaxdoxd 1ojruowr 03 sprodar AJeom pajeuione pomarady <«

"SuOISSIIINS 310daI SUI}OL] IoYIUe [edT}H I0J WIISAS Juswadeur ased ay}

0} $S900€ dABY JOU OP OUM S}UN [EUIIX AQ UOTIN]OSII JO UOHBIUSWNIOP PUe UOIIeIIISIAUL 9} d)e}I[IDeJ 0} Wwiioy pajuswadwy <«

el o%ey

yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YN

dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZI 3° 16 °beqa

"SUOT)ESZI[qO PUE SOATIEIITUT [EUONITISUT PUE SJUSWAINDbaI 9Ae[SI39] Mau Y3no1y} 1ndd0 A3y} St SIop[oyaxels

A3y 19yj0 pue [PSUNO)) JeIdud) ay} Jo YO Iyt yim drysroupred ur sysur Surdrowe ssarppe pue MIIASI 0} PIaNURUO) <«
“wIope[ g

yuswadeue]A Sy astdIojuy JoyjueJ 9y} Jo Juswadeuew pue juawdo[oAsp SSNISIP 03 JIPNY [EUIIU] UM }99W 0} PINURUOD)  «
*AJITIqeIuUnodOE Jo wdsAs e Jurdojaasp pue sradeuewt YSLI pue SISUMO YSLI Suryedonpa Aq

astidIojus a3 sso1de YSLI pagnuap! Sunedniur 10§ ssad01d e do[aasp Ioy}ing 03 9SATINIAXH IPNY JOIYD) Y} YIIM Jo2W 0} PINURUOD)  «

sajdpurig JusawaSeureA] STy SuIpIeSay sIPUMQ MSIY djeonpq

‘Surures] snonunuod unjeji[oe) pue sainsedw JuneSnu pue sjoruod 1ddoid Sunuawaidwr Aq sysux
paIyRURPI £33 03 Surpuodsar pue SUOISIIAP PIULIOJUT MSHI FUDJEW UT SIdUMO YSII SunjsIsse Surpnpur Sromawer] judwaeuey

sy astadiajuyg ay) Jo asn aAnRdaJJd Junjew 3d1JJO duerdwo)) 3y JO UOILNUIIU0D SIPNIUT UB[J JIOM [enuuy ZZ0Z-120Z UL

LINHINAOVNVIA ST

| o8ey
yroday Apreyreny) £1i8ayuy pue souerduro) Aysivarun Jo 2130

20T ‘€ YoTeN
dapTwiwro)) aduerduio)) pue yipny
sa9)sni], Jo preog NI



GZTI 3° z6 obeaq

120z 249YdsipIo

1202 ‘8T JoqwanoN S92IAJSG pue eje( J032al4i ‘uoisiny] |esN

WNPUBIOW|A| UOIIEPUSWIWO0I3Y pue Sulpul

MBIADY SSOUDAINIRYT pue usisaQ
A}ISI9AIUN [EUOIJBUIDIU| BPIIO|4

~11404d 'SSANISNE LYYIS ‘00D

ALISYIAINN
TYNOLLYNYA.LNI 7 =_h m z m :m w

Vano1d



GZTI 3° ¢6 =beq

1517 M3IAJDIU| Y XIpuaddy
SSAIIUDDU| pue ‘BuldIdSIq ‘JUswWadJojuy .
3uijipny pue 3ulIOHUOIN
Suol}edIuUNWWOD) pue 3ululed| .
SpJEepuB}S USIIIAA o
24n3|nD |e21Yy37 4O suo13dadiad Sulnses|n e
24NJ2NJ3IS puUB $324N0SY WedSodd

SUOI]109G JULWISSOSSY/

MJewyouag pue ‘paedalods ‘ASojopoyisia

d|queald

SJU9U0)



SZI 3° v6 obeqa

"N14 YHM MJOM W04 PIALISP UOIJRWIOJUI pUE Blep Se paljijuapl
97 j0Uued pue Sjud|[d 349Ydsiyig 49430 JO uoijew.oul Jejiwis yjim pajedasd3e S| ejep pue uoljew.dojul yons
AgaJaym wuoy e ul ezep 3ulpaoddns siyz sasn ATNO 249Ydsiyig se Jej os ‘sjual|d a4aydsiyyg 4943zo 4o auop
S9sA|eue Jay3jo pue 3upjdewyduadq 94n3n4 104 PIALISP SEM WNPUEIOWS|A 943 YdIym wou} ezep 3uipioddns pue
uoljew.ojul [earsawnu ay3 asn 03 3y3s1J ay3 suielad aiaydsiyig (q) pue s3ysry Aueyaradodd yons yiim aaajialul
0] UOI}oe 93 e] J0U ||IM 31 Jey] s9au3de N]4 pue ‘(,s1y3ry Alersrudodd,) seidojopoyiaw ayj 03 s3ys3ia diyssaumo
AJejarudoud aAIsn|oxa sulelad auaydsiylg (e) :3ey3 3dadxa N4 Aq paumo si 3oday Siyl ui uoljewoul ay |

'949ydsiyiz Aq padojanap ASojopoyisw e 3uisn ‘weldosd N|4 9Y3 JO MIIAI S,243YdSIYlT WOJ) PIAIISP S49M
SuOollepusWWOd3J pue ‘ejep upjdewyouaq ‘ssuipul ayl ‘Ni4 40 1sonbau ayj je sausaydsiyyg Aq paledauad sem
(,WNpueIOW?S|A,) WNPUEIOWS|A UOIIEPUSWWOI9Y pue Sulpul{ 3ulmo||oj ay] "wet3o.d adueljdwod pue soIy3a
S, AJISJ9AIUN BY3 1en|eAs 0] (,249ydsiyrg,) D11 ‘@49ydsiyig pauielald (,N14,) A}SISAIUN [euoljeulalu| eplio|

a|quieald



GZI 3° g6 °beq

MJewyouag pue ‘paedatods ‘ASojopoyiain



GZT 30 96 °bea

*AJISJ9AIUN 3] SSOIDE SUOIIDUNS SNOLIBA WO}
SJapes| |euoljelado pue Jojuds Y3M SMIIAIDIUL pUe ‘pa3HWGNS UOIFBIUSWNIOP ‘ASAINS (DT) eIUD130NY SOIY3IT
1202 S,249ydsiylg 03 SI9IMSUE S, M4 UO WNPUEBIOWS|A SIY} Ul SUOIIEPUSWIWOIDI pue sSulpuly INo paseq I

aul|diosiq pue Jusawa4oju] U01309319(] pue SulIoHUOIA suoljesiunwwo?) pue Sululed |

$924N0SaY
pUE 21n30N.31S WeaSodd

24N}|ND |edlyls wc_.hjmmw_\/_ SpJepuels UajllipA

:s92130eud pue sweua3oud s,N|4 JO s3oadse SuIMOo||0J Y3 3B PaX 00| S95S920.d JusWssasse s a4aydsiylg

"1sonbau s N4
Je weadoud soueldwod N|4 3Y3} JO MIIASI S} Pa3ONPUOD 343Ydsiylg ‘TZ0Z 42qWIAON Y3noayy 120z A|nr wo.4

ASo|OpoY3a|N JUSBWISSISSY

AIVINIWNS FATLNDIXA



GZI 3° L6 °beqa

AINIDIAN 1SoMOT]
‘3uiepdn ajeipaww] pue juediudis 3ulainbaud ‘351Xa 30U S90P J0 JUSISEeU S| JUSUOdWOD VY UOIJUDY SPIIN : I
‘pado|aAspuUN 3Je U0 Aded1}4d ‘AduUsIdIfS oe|
sjusuodwod 4ay3o 3ng ‘sad13oead Auasnpul Y3m Jus3sisuod 9q Aew Jusuodwod v (p1jos Suipua.] ‘UoIually SpasN ¢
"B3Je S|y} 92ueyus J0o dA0.Idw] 03 3SIXD S313UNII0ddo |BUaASS 19A ‘sad130e.d Ausnpul YM Jud3SISUOD A||edauaq) :pljos o
"JuswduUeyuS
10} sa13iunoddo swos Yiim syaoes Auew uj 3uoals AISA ulpusdl aJe sjusuodwo)) {8uodls A1a A Sulpuaa] ‘pijos v

Juswa|dwi
0} aJidse pjnoys suoijezjued.o jeys 32130e4d sunyew Jo 3uipes ‘sjusuodwod/we.adold ssed-ul-3sag ‘8uoais AJDA

uondriasaq ajeas Ayinleln 9]eas Ajinleln

"J913 yoea 394dJajul 03 moy Jo uoljdiidsap
B pue ‘92U3.43J3J |ENSIA 404 UOI}eD1J1SSe[d 10]0D S} ‘wea3oad ay3 JO JUSWa|3 Yoes 3q1J42Sap 03 pasn sJal} Ajlunjew
9Al} 93U} 9JE MO|9g "PISSOSSE JUSWS|D YIEed J0J Uol}edi4isse|d Ayanjew Asewwns e sapiAoJid paedalods ay |

AS0|OpPOYID|A JUSWISSISSY



GZT 3° 86 =beaq

suol3edlUNWWOD pue Suluies} dAosdwl ‘suawa|d wesgold J0)UOW 03 dNUIIUOD
$924n0saJ paywi| udAIg pakojdwa Ajjedi8aiells saloualadwod yels
sjuawa|d weigoud Jo UOILIUBWNIOP [BUOIIEISMO JUS||9IX]

$5920.d JO SSBUDAIIDYD ‘WIISAS Ul 1SNJ] 91BN|BAS 0} SISSAULIM JUBdIIUSIS pue s191iodad Jo suonsanb uonesisaaul-isod paiasdiel sy
papaau Suipinosas aA11eSIISAAUL [RUOIIIPPE 3J3UM 335 03 S9WI] UOIIN|0SAJ 3SED JOHUOIA
1003 Sunjoesl 3yl ysnoaya ssed yaiym suolesiisanul ||e uo sisAjeue asned 1004 ageinoduy

sweugoud ANsIaAIUN 13430 03 UOSIIedW O WO} UOIIBUWIOU] JO 3SN POOD)
sdnoJd snJ0y/SMaIAIBIUI JB1S ‘DUI|10Y ‘SUOIIEN|BAD WO} SPUDI} UO PASE] UOIIISS UOIIEN|BAS YSII palasiel a1ow 4oy Supjse JapIsuo)
Supjoeuy [enuew a3e|das 01 |003 SupdeJ} JUBWIUIRLISIUS pue WIS Jusawa|dw|

91BAOUUI PUB JO}UOW 0} dNUIIU0D — SuoJls Jeadde syioya Sulured|

Adorepuew Sujuiely Josiaiadns axeln

'SS9UDIBME 32JN0SA 3SBIDUI ‘S3d3IU0I SIIYID SSNISIP 03 SUOIIDUNS JBY0 YIM UOIIRI0QR||0d Ul SUOIIBdIUNWIWOD palasdiel 91eal)
SUOI1edIUNWWOD 198181 PUE 31BUIPJO0D J3113q 03 Ue|d SUOIIBIIUNWIWOD JedA-13nwW e 31eal)

JeaA sy Inoy3nouy3 sa1doy sa1Y1a/2oueldwod uo s3u0dad 19241p JI9Y3 YIIM SUOIIBSISAUOD Je|ndal aAey 0} sia8euew ajdoad a8einoou]
}4B1S YUM SMaJAIR3UI pue ‘sdnoJ8 sndoy ‘shanins asind palas.el Japisuo)

2oueping a1e3s Suiisixa o1 |eausawalddns — aoueping uaijddns Suindope Japisuo)
2u03} 91en|eAd — Suouis si ssad0.4d uoledljgnd ‘malnaa ‘UoI3dNIISUOI Adljod
pazijeul} uaym 1oNPUO) J0 3P0 Mau azplgnd pue ysijgnd

weJidoud anoidw) 03 S32IN0SAU pUE SISIHWWOD JO 3SN JUD||2IXT

SUOIOUNS PUB | Og YIIM SSIDIE PI|0S

9331w wWo) ddue|dwo) pue Ipny wodj Indul MaIAaJ dduew.o)lad azijew.lo
a1endoidde se jog a1epdn — spaau 924N0SaJ 91EN|EAS PUB JO}UO|A|

s1aAlQ
L E)]

pJed23.402g Alewwng

1% [|e42A0

1% auy|diasiq pue Juswadiojuy

1% uo132932(J pue SULIOHUOIA

< suojjedluNWWo?) pue ujuies |

a4n3nD [e21Y33 SulInNses|n|

74 SpJepue}S USIIIM

$924N0S9Y
pue 21n3on.3s weJgoud

ajess
Apanjey

JUSWISSASSY/

A1o08a1e) JUdWISsassy



GZT 30 66 °bea

W0 SoIUBdWOD|EDIYJOISOWSPIOM MMM//:S033Y Je 9|qe|leAe si saluedwo?) (821413 3SOIA S, PIIOA TZOZ Y3 4O 31| |INs3Y. L

"uolysanb jeyy samsue 03 asoyd Auedwod
3y3 Jay3aym pue d130| dixjs AsAins uodn 3uipuadap uolisanb Aq salJeA saiueduwod payJewyduad Jo Jjsquunu 3uijedidiyied ay |

Su130E43U0D) JUSWUISAOL) pue
‘4o |eIDUBULS ‘SJUBYNSUOY) ‘SIDIAIDG SSaulsng ‘@1eMOS ‘S3oNpo.d

[EDIPSIA ‘SDDIAIDS |BDIP3|A ‘USISO/8ultaaul8u] :saliasnpul sajupdwio) |p21Y3q ISO| S,PI10 Y3 JO SSefd

120¢ S.249ydsiyig Suipussaidau sajuedwod 9€ T

SUIMO||04 B} WO.J SWOD PUB ‘SNUSASI UGG$ pue uqT $ usamiaq
‘s9aAo|dwd 000‘SZ PUe 000‘0T UsaMiaq Yiim saluedwod ZT

$199( 9ZIS :Z# JUsWSag yJewyoduag S93.10UOH TZ0Z ‘T # Juswsas yJewyouag

"s9|1jo.d
SIJ Je[lwis Yy3M suolieziued.o Jo sad130ead ay3 0jul MIIA dAI3e edwod e apiAo.d 03 S3NsaJ ASAINS DT S, 3uliaauead apisduole
pa3uasa.d 3Je S39S e1ep dJewyduaq oM} 3say | ‘N4 Isulede yaewyduaq 03 s}asejep oMy paljiauspl a4aydsiyig ‘eyep siyy wo.4

"P|4OM 33 punoJe wo.} saluedwod ulpes| Jo sadi3oedd pue sweidoud ay3
ojul sjy3isul sapiAo.d 33s ejep siy] 39S elep (D3) 130N $21Yi3 120Z S,249ydsiyi3 wouy sjuiod eyep suiejuod 3ioday siyl

)Jewyousg Nl4 9Y1 Inoqy



T AN

3o 00T =

s3UIpul4 JUDWISSISSY



GZT 3° 10T °beqa

N UL

JUIHASIHLI

‘weJ3doud

1ey3 JO 1Y3ISIDA0 3|geuosead 3s12Jaxa Aayl Jayiaym pue
‘suoljesado pue Jua3U0I S} Jnoge 3|qeadpajMmoud] ale Aayl
J9y3aym ‘weadoud aoueljdwod ay3 ul pade3ua AjaAIoe aJe
Ajlaoyine 3uluiaA03 S, M| 4 4O SIaqUUDW JI MIIASL IM ‘Ajjeul

¢ssauisng ay3i 4o Ajxsjdwod

pue 3zIs 3y} Jo} pajjels Ajjeludoadde weadoud sy sl

‘JJOYS U| ‘S|enplAIpuUl 9SOy} 0} pa3ed0||e ua3q aAeY Ajluoyine
pue $324n0S3J4 MOY U0 pP332NpuUod OS|e S| uoljeujwexy

¢.Qlgerayl jejeas, e aney weuadoud adueldwod ayj Suiuun.
9s0y3 o 'sal3l4014d jeuolyeziuesdio 3noge 93essawl e Spuas
uolleziue3Jo UaAIS e Jo JJeyd [euoljeziueduo ayj yeys ‘oaJige
9M pue ‘(232 ‘dD30 ‘0O4S MN “DSSN “DIO-SHH 23S rOd
SN) SJ1031e|n33. JO A}alJeA e WO} 9pedap 3Se| Y3 JOAO Panss|
duepIno |]auuosiad |9A3]-y31y 03 paudisse si 3Y3ISI9A0

$S924N0S9Y pue
9duel|dwod Joj Alljigisuodsad [|ed9A0 YdIym Ul Jsuuewl ol —.-H_.U—.-Lu.m ENLMOLn_

33 pue 24n3onJ3s welSoud sajen|eAs 1s414 a4aydsiyig ‘s|ana|
924N0SaJ pue 24n3onJ3s weadoud ||eJaA0 S,N|4 SUIMaIAJ U| I NOILD3S

SNOILVYIAISNOD AIA




GZT 3° ZOT °beq

*AjIsed aiow sal}IAIOe

pa3jeulp100d 95e.49A3| pue $32.1n0saJ d|ge|leAe Jo Jamod ay3 yaojun Aj|n}

0] AMISJIDAIUN DY MO]|e [[IM SIY} ipaudije A|950|d a40w aq p|nod aj3adde
3sia pue }28pnq a1aym sade|d SulAjiuapl wody yauaq Aew weiSoad
9oueljdwod ay] ‘(suoljejndai mau ‘dlwspued) JuswuodiAus Suidusjjeyd

e U] $924Nn0saJ pajlwl] 9z1j13n A|9A131s0d 0} A}ljiqe [euol}ddIXd ue SMalAIjul
pue uorjejuswndop ysno.ayjy pajesjsuowap weasoid asueldwod) ay|

Wwbab0.4d aAo4duwil 0] $32.4N0Sa.1 puUD $323111WILI0I JO 3SN JuU3|[2IXT]

‘uoizduny weaSoud aA132343 03 Juauodwiod [e1dnJd e si siy] "a8ueydxa
JU3||2IX3 puUe }SNJ} JO [9A3] PI|OS B DA|OAU] SUOIIIUNY JBYJO pUE ‘saalsna ]
Jo paeog ay3 ‘diysiapea] A}ISI2AIUN YHM JUSWISA|OAU] pUE SUOI}DeIDIUI
1By} ‘|E9ADJ SMIIAID]U] pUE ‘pajelisuowap sey Jjels adueljdwod ay|

suoljouny pup '] og ‘dlysiapDa] Y11M JUSWIA[OAUT pUD SSa32D PIjoS

6’V aplIs
936 ")2eqpas) MalAaL dduewI01ad y3m adueldwod jo peay Jiay} apinoid
suoljezjuesio dnoJo yJewysuag ayj Jo Juadiad aAl-AJUSASS "Ajlioyine

Suluianos ayy jo spaau ay3 03 puodsal pue wioju }saq ued peay weasoad
3y} Moy 10} uoI}23.ip |euoijippe aAIS ued weaSoad asueljdwod ay} jo peay
3y} 40} >2eqpaa) MalAal 3duew.o)iad Suliayles "aduapuadapul weaSoad
acueldwod Jo yJew|jey e s| Aydoyine Suluianos ayy wouy 3ndul SuiAIIDY

22731WII0)) 9oUD]|dWo,) pub JIpNYy WoJJ INdul MalAaJ 2oUDUI0J12d 2Z]|DUII0

"suolje|nSaJl pue SMe| Mau Wo.y

sjuawaJinbal 393w 0} SPaau pue A}ljIge|IeA. 921N0S3J punoJe s3a)sn |
Jo pJieog ay} o1 sajepdn Jejn8aa yiim Suoje ‘syse} Alessadau Sujwoddn
YHM 3sisse 0} suauried d1Sa3es 19410 Jo Alljiqe|IeA. pUe S321N0sal

JO uoljenjeAa pue Suli0}lUOW PaNUIIU0I SPUSWIWO0I3 343Ydsiyl3

‘wea} asueldwod ay3 wo.y
uoljualIe 24inbal ||IM YdIym suoije|ngal pue ‘sajnJ ‘sme| pajuswajduwi
-Aj3uadaJ pue Suiwioodn 10j A}ijIe|IEAR 324N0S3J pUE punoJeu.in} yse}

AjlaoLid punoJe 30adse uoljenjeAs-|as e Suippe spuawiwodal aiaydsiyyg

‘way) SulAalyde Ul JUdId1dp J0U Si Ing

‘$924Nn053J JUd.11NJ UBAIS S|e03 dAdIYde 0] pPaYd3a41s JeyMawos S| wedl ay)
1eyl punoj a1aydsiyi3 ‘sanljiqisuodsau pue syse) JO M3IADI pue SMIIAID)UI
uj ‘sal}|iqisuodsal AepAiana Jo doj uo suolje|nsal pue sme| mau

ssa.uppe pue syse} ddueljdwod Jo A}3LIBA B UO d)e) 0} S924N0S3I d|qe|leAe
pue ‘Suiyjels ‘owi) jo asn Joriadns e pajedisuowsp dnous asueldwod ay|

2}p11doiddD sD ] og 230pdn - SpaaU 2311053 9}DN|DA puD I0}UOIN

2.1N}oNJ}S Em._wo._n_ SUOIEPUSUIIODDY pue wc_ﬁc_n_



GZT 3° €0T °beq

ON :@suodsay A1SISAIUN [EUOIIEUIaIU| BRLIO|S

an {pappaid 51 10du) i BOPISED BSEE|d) S84
1

LE

(og1=u) seatouoH DanWMm 2oz Il

(z= v dnoun yewyousg

cwbago.d aoupijdwod pup sa1yia ay3 1o AJlj1qisuodsad ||p1aA0 paubissb uosiad ayj 10J
M3IA3J dUbW.I0413d 3Yy] 01 Sb Indul apinoJdd uoijdounj aocubljdwod pup sa1Yia ay3 Jo 3yBiISiaA0 Yiim A1ldoyinp SUlUIIA0E
132430 2y} 40 ‘uo1ounj aoupijdwod pup s21y32 ay3 JO 1YyBISIaA0 Y3IM pipog ay3 JO 92331LW0I 33 ‘pIbog 3yl sa0q &V

29310, 2oUDIjdWio) pup JIpNy Wo.j Jndul MalAaJ 22UDUII0)Iad 2ZIDWI0



SZT 3° v0o1 °obea

o TR LT D000

JUYIHASIHLE

1T SEINISOE

‘Ad1jod ay3 SuipeaJ Ja1je way3 Jo paldadxa Joineyaq

331 pueisJapun pjnod aaAo|dwa ay3 Sulueaw ‘d|ge|ieAe
AJ|E213SIN8Ul| SE ||[9M SE ‘Sjuawndop 3y} puly ued aaAo|dwa ue
Jey1 Sulueaw ‘S|ge|leAe A[|eJa1l| 9 1SNW SpJepuels U1HIAA

‘uoljeziued.io ue uoj adueldwod Jo 33e)s Auojoeysiyes

e 3ulJNSua pue ‘suol}e|oIA JO pooyi|a¥ 1| 9Y3 Suidnpad
‘JoNpuodsiw 3U132333p pue SuljuaAa.d Ul 3]0 |ed1}ad

e Ae|d s|0J1u0d pue ‘saunpadoJd ‘saidljod pajediunwwod
-||oM pue ‘DAIsuayaidwod ‘USRIIM-||DAA ‘SpJepuels m_u;_m_ur_ m“_.m E@u..._.:\s
JueAs|aJ JaYjo pue ‘saidljod auojepue)s Asy ‘}onpuod *

JO 3P0 U93IUM S uolleziuesd.o sy} sajen|eAs aJaydsiylg Z NOILD3s

SNOILVYIAISNOD AIA




GZT 3° G01 °beqa

1°G apl|s 23§ "Yyi3ua| ul SpIoMm

000°‘E Inoge Ajjesaua8—sapod aaAojdwad uey}13jaliq a1e sapod J31jddng
*s31d0} paje|a4-aoueljdwod pue sJ1y3a uo sasAo|dwa 413y} ule) [[IM
sJ1a1|ddns amcwco_umuuwnxw ay) pue sua1jddns j1pne 0} 3ysii s,uoljeziuesio
ay3 9)e)s os|e Ajjedauasd Aay] juswuieliajus pue s} pue ‘uorjeuluwlliosip
pue jusawsseJey ‘1sa2493ul JO S321|JU0D ‘A1aqliq Se YoNs ‘1oNpuod Jo S9P0I
99Ao|dwa se seaue ) siJ dlues ay) Jo Auew Ssaappe AjjedidA} syuswndop
yong 399w jsnwi suaijddns jey3 sjuswiwwiod |ed1y3a ayj auijino o}
19Npuo) Jo apo) Ja1jddng 9n.j e a3eaud N4 18yl Spuswiwodas aiaydsiylg

2oUDPINE 2}D]s BUI3siXa 07 [pjuawia|ddns - 2oUDpING Ja1jddns Bunrdopb 1apisuo)

*2oueping Adjjod
y}m Ajisea a1ow Suiosuuod uj sispead pie pjnod asensue| payyijdwis
pue sjulod uoijdonJjsul Jea|d a1aym Sujjen|eAa spuawwodal aiaydsiyly

"suol}oe palinbaJ puejsiapun pue uoljewiojul

|njasn 338 03 uoijelasd.dlul [euoiyippe salinbau pue sjqeydeoidde
$53]| S| @ouepIng Ual}IIM Jey}) asuas a3y} aAIS Aew sy} - SAauJoyle
Aq, U33314M aJe'said]od Jey) asuas ay) pariodal S9aMIIAIBIUI SWOS

J13s1|eSa| pue [ew.io) A[J9A0 2q 0} PaAIISCO

Ajje1auas sem auoy Ad1jod “pulj 0 ASea pue Jea|d sem Adijod Juena|al

13430 03 syjuIq "pauljino Ajuea|d sem ajepdn pue uoileald 1o} Ssa30.d

*1e3]2 sem d1ysJ3UMO puno.e 3dueping ‘sa1d1jod AJessadau Jo adueudjulew
pue ‘MalAa. ‘UoI}eaJd Y] Ul JUBWIA|GAU] [BUOI}DUNS PUB MIIAJ JO SS90.4d
JUD1SISUOD B P3a|EaA3 N]4 1€ SpJepuels Ua3lIM Jo Uoljen|eAa s,aJaydsiyly

aU07 2]DN|DAS — BUOJ]S ST 55200.1d UOIIDII|GNd "MalAa1 "U0IJoNIISu0d Adljod

spJepue]g Ual}liAA -Suoijepuslilioday pue wc_—uc_n_

‘sweaSoad aouerjdwod ainjew Y}im suoljeziuesio pue saiisiaAiun
43430 }e punoy 3313oe.d e sjuasaidad 1onpuo?) Jo apor) aud|epuels

e JO uoiledl|qnd '32npuo) o apo mau siyy Suizidljgnd pue ‘Sulysijqnd
‘Suizijeury uo aAa ue YiIm Jjeup a3 o3 sayepdn JueAa|ad |je ayew dnoas
asueljdwo?) ay3 Jey) SpUSWILI0IaI Ssa|ayjauou alaydsiylg ‘yuawasesus
SIU} J0 2d0ds 2y} apisino A[a8.e| || pjnOM M3IA3J B [JaNs Se ‘ainjeu

ul 3AISUaya1dwod jJou S| 9p07) }elp 3y} Jo MaIA3J S,a43YdsIylg a1y M

*sa1}1|1qisuodsal asay} sSaJppe 03} Moy Uo

UO1323.1p 32U120NS UDAIS pue ‘}saJalul JO S121|JU0D pue suoljel|ije apisno
yHm se yons hmco_umm__mo 119y} Jo papuiwai’si aduaipne 3381€3 ay] “TdN
pue J3qwinu auijjoy je3sod Suizsodal ay3 sisi| Aliea|d pue ‘Supjew-uoisidap
pue Sui3iodal uj }sisse 0} uollde Jo syied Jea|d sapiao.ad ‘uoijeuawindop
jueAaja. pue saidijod 13(3o 03 sy ul| ‘98ensue| ,am, dAISN|dU] SIZI|13N
‘JUapISaid dY} WO uoldnpoaiul ue ‘sojydeas sapnjdoul 3po) mau ay |

‘uonie|siSa| ul pajuasaid

aJe sjuawalinbaJ asay} Moy uey) s1apeas 0y A|pualiy aiou si eyl

Aem e uj jje1s 03 acuepins sapiroad pue syuswalinbal pue salyijiqisuodsal
ayj} saziiewwins 'a1aydsiy3g 03} papinoad 39npuo)) Jo apo?) }eap ay L

*sa1d1jod N]4 194310 92uUd.4d)9. pue Juswajddns 0} pue saaAojdw3 pue
S1921J0 311qhd 104 39NpuU0)) JO BP0 aY) 03 9}ISGIM S, |4 UO Mul| JUd1INd
ay3 92e|daa 0] papualul oq 03 saeadde Juswnoop siy] ‘Jonpuo?) Jo apo)
9Y3 JO UOISIaA }Jjeup e yiim aiaaydsiylya papiaoad dnous asueljdwod ay|

pazijpur] Uaym Jonpuo)) Jo apo) pappdn azidljqnd pub ysijqng



GZT 3° 90T ®beq

ON :esucdsay hv_m._m_)_r_D [eucieuIalu] ERLIC|H

OoN SEA
1

)]

(or1=u) seaiouoH S3WM 1zoz I

(it = u) dnouny yuewyousg

¢(,2p0D A1ibd-paiy,,) 31onpuo) Jo apo) Ayibd-p.iyy b uipjuibw Aubdwiod JnoA saoq 1°G

20UDPING 3)D3S BUIISIXa 0] [DIUaWa]ddNs — 2OUDPING Jaljddns Buljdopp Japisuo)



GZT 3° LOT ®beqa

"JUBWISSaSSE 94N3|ND pue Yy3jjeay |euoleziuedio ue ySnouys
SI JUSWIUOJIAUD SIY] 98neSs 03 SABM 9A11094)2 1S0W 9Y3

JO U "JUBWUOIIAUS dduel|dwod pue Yyijeay |ed1yid ||eJoA0
s ,uoljeziuesio ay3 2Jnseawl A|[enuijuod pue 32404J10M

S11 JO 94N3|NJ 3y} puelsJapun 3snw uoijeziuesio ue

‘weJSo.ud aouel|dwod pue SJ1Y3D 9A13994J9 Ue 9ABY 03 J9PJO U|

SNOILVYIAISNOD AIA

N UL

JUIHASIHLI

24n3|n)H
|ea1y33 Sulinsesp
€ NOILD3S




GZT 3° 80T ®beq

1Z'Ay pup 0Z Ay Sapl|s 2as ‘sanss| asueljdwod puno.e spiodaJd 33a41p
11943 yHMm Ajde|n3a. yeads 03 sio8euew ajdoad 1oj juswase.inodus
ue y3Im Suoje ‘so8essaw asueljdwod Y3Im ejpawi 1ay3o 1o

SO9PIA pUE ‘suoljedunwwod djgqe-apeased ‘s31do} Jo ajnpayds e ¢, xoq
-e-ul-s3ulaaw, 91| Spoyiaw asn weda) adueljdwod ay) Spuswwodal
a41aydisyi3 "24n3 nd dn-)eads u] Sunyedidiyied uj pue ‘4aSeuew

A19Y3 u] ‘uorjeziues.ao ayj ul 3snJj Jo [9A9] 4ays1y e a3edipu] s3aodal
109.1p 9soy} - Aj1934enb Ajjeapi pue sSui}eaw wea} Sulanp us}o -
siseq Je|n38aJ e uo syiodau 32341p 419y} YHM sanss| 9ouejjdwod ssnosip
si98euew ajdoad uaym jeyy smoys yd.ieasa. pue eyep s a4aydsiyl3
‘s}Hodau 10341p y3m asueljdwod pue sa1yia ssnasip o3 Ajiunjioddo
payiwi| e syuasaid syl SJIYAA "9dueljdwod 03 sa3ela. ydiym syiodal
109.1p 10} Uol}eNn|eAd Sduew.0443d 1194} UO W}l duojepue)s e aAey
Aj3uaaund sia8euew ajdoad jey) pajedipul dnoas asueldwod ay|

AD3A 3y} 1noysno.1y) s31doy $21Yja/a2upijdwod Uo syiodad 13a.11p

1°'91 apl|s 22 "parsoddns pue pajlas.e) 491319q 3q

ueds uoljduny asuerdwod ay3 Jo ssauademe pue ‘Sujuie.) ‘SuiSessaw
MOY pue)stapun 131319q 0} SM3IAId1UL Jje)s pajasie) pue sdno.as sndoy
ul punoj sanjiunyioddo ayy asn Hoeqpasy Suriayles 1o sonuane
|euol}ippe awos Yym Suipuelsiapun syl 0} ppe pjnod dnous ay)

sajou a49ydsiyig ‘Nl 3e 24n3 N3 |e31y3d aYy] puelstapun 0} SASAINS
Je|n8aJ Jo asn poos Supjew 3 03 sieadde dno.s ssuejdwod ay|

A13Y] Y1IM SUOIIDSI2AUO0I ID[NbaJ dADY 0] S1abbUbW 3]doad abp.inodu7g

JID1S Y3IM SMaiAIa]ul pub *sdnodb SNJ0J ‘SAIAINS as|nd pajabip) JapiIsuo)

21n3|n) [e31y13 Sulinseajy :Suoijepuawiwioddy pue Suipul4



GZT 3° 60T °beqg

ja8g

aF 6L,
La)sAS

%89 85
MIEQPRSs) 1020 |P W 1-|esd JoHuoy

588 L8

Yl6 ot

98¢ Wt
UEE %00 (s)farins safojdws sinjina 2233
%L %BS smalalsaul 1ebeuegy
safods IabeUBLL-UON
L5 20408 sdnolE sfiood

cwpigoud

aoubidwod pup $21Y3a ay3 Jo/pub ain3jnd
|b21Y33 Jo suonydadiad aaAojdwa ainspaw
01 yavoiddp s Aubdwod 1noA Jo 3ibd 24p

AU Ji ‘spoj3aw Buimoj|o) ay3 Jo YIIYM T 'OF

JJp3s

U7IM SMIIAI3UT PUD *SAN0.15 SNJ0j
‘SAAINS as[nd pajabiDy JapIsuoy)




GZT 3° 011 °bea

slabeueud
gidoad 1no jo || Ag sucissnasip Y2ns alinbal e 'sa) sesuodsay Ajisiaalun [euoleulaiu] eplic]d

siativueu apdoad

awnse 0| pabemoms siabeueu sdoad IWOs s@fimmy groad | Som siabem wagnad 1y
oN 1ng padinbas oy A sunsEsnasp aanbay A susEnosn amnbay Ag suossnisp aanbay
1 1 L ' 1 |
¢ . .
= ! =]
g ¥ B8

(agi=u) ssatouoH 23 1202 B
(zi=u) dnoin ylewousg
¢AD3A 3y 3noy8Eno.ay3 aouo 3sv3| 1b $31do3 adubIjdwod pub S21Y32
21J123ds Buip1p8a. s310daJ 122.1p 412y Y3IM SUOISSNISIp aAbY 03 StaBbubwi 3jdoad a4inbai Aubdwod 1noA saoq 0z Ay

IDaA 247 JnoyBnoJy3 $21do3 So1yja/2oupijduiod

U0 S140daJ 133.1p 119Y] YJIM SUOIIDSI2AUOI ID|Nbad 2ADY 0] SIobbubWl 9|d0ad 25binhoduUgj



GZT 3° 111 °bea

sisbeuew ajdoad 150W 0 ||B WO ¥oeqpas) Bullos|jod Jo ssesold
[EWLIC) B SBY UOljoun) S2uedulod pue solyla ayl :asucdsay AJISISAIUN |BUQIIEUISIU| EPLIO|H

DUW0E LY Iagpany
.rZE_...wE_.....:.H.Z _wac_rnﬁmm_-:c:_“
_. .

ZL

3l

(et = u) saslouoH D3WM lzoz ll

it = 4 dnoug yiewyouag

'$340da. 32241p 1Y Y3IM SUOIIDSIIAUOI 22UDI|dW0D pub S31Y13 41aYy3 BUIpIpEal 3oDqpPaa) 4o) SiaBbupui
ajdoad y3im dn smojjoJ uordounj asupijdwio?) pup s3Iy aYy3 Moy saqlidsap 15aq Iby3 BUIMO|[of ay3 199[3S TZ'Av

IDaA 247 JnoyBnoJy3 $21do3 So1yja/2oupijduiod

U0 S140daJ 133.1p 119Y] YJIM SUOIIDSI2AUOI ID|Nbad 2ADY 0] SIobbubWl 9|d0ad 25binhoduUgj



GZT 3o ZI1 °bea

o TR LT D000

JUYIHASIHLE

"94Nn3|n2 3y} Jo 34oddns pue weigdoud

9Y3 JO S$920NnS 3y} 03 Juersodwi A[|ed13dd si 249y s3uiyl op am
Moy, Jo ajdwexa 1y314 ay3 apiaoid 0} s|enplAlpul 9say3 3uluie.uy
‘}nsaJ e sy "JoiAeyaq a3eludoadde u0j |9pow 3|04 03-PaX 00|
J}sow ay3 os|e aJe Asy3 3nq ‘u1d3uod aaAo|dws ue Sulpiedad
uol}ew.Joul 404 324N0S A|931] 3SOW 3Y3 A|UO J0U 3Je SI0SIAIRdNS
9jelpawuwli jeyl Suijeslpul eyep yym sn apiaoid 0} Sanuijuod
yo4easay ‘weudoud aoueljdwod pue soiyis ay3 suiyaoddns

ul 9|0J |e123ds JIay3} uo siadeuew 03 uoljewJdojul Sulpiaodd si
uolleziue3Jao ay3 YdIym 03 JuUa31Xa a3y} SMIAJ a43ydsiyzg ‘Aj3se

"'SjusWaJINbaJ 3ululeu) s} S92J404Ud uoljeziuesduo

Y3 moy 3ulpn|dul ‘9AI329443 pue 3ulo3uo SI uoljedl|qo 3uluiedy
SIY3 J9YdYyM SMIIA. 0S|e 249ydsiyl] ;juswadeuew Jojuas
3uipnjoul ‘saaAo|dws ||e J0J pajepuew S| 3ululed) 3y} Jayixym
pue ‘SS9UDAI1D344D 104 palen|eAs Ajjedipolsad pue pauue|d

Al93eNnbape aJe saAljel}iul JSYIdYM ulelaadse 03 SH93s aJaydsiylg mf_o_“—.mu_ unuwl EOU
'SSOUDAINIYYS pue Ajijenb J1ay3 sulw3ap pue suiui ed]
0} sweu3doud suoljed1unwwod pue uluiedy aoueljdwod jJuaaidnd s

s,uoljezjuesd.o ayj Suipaedal uojjew.ojul ssujwexs ataydsiyl3 ¥ NOILD3S

SNOILVYIAISNOD AIA




GZT 30 €11 °obea

‘'seaueysi
SuinjoAs pue ‘sjuswanosdwi Sujulea) ‘98pajmou| anss] aduejjdwod punoJe
)oeqpaaj jels Jojiuow 03 SulnUIIUO0D SpU3WW 0234 d43ydsiylg ‘398.e)

-Uo pue dwod|aM 3q 0} ‘ujSessaw pue A}ljepow ay3 ul syuswdAocadw]
pajeldosse pue ‘Sujuiea) 3y} punoj S99MIIAIDIU| ‘PASNI0S-HSII

pue pauue|d |]om sI Jey3 aujinod Suiujed) SuiSeSua Ajjeaouas e pajeanau
JJe1Ss YlIM SM3IAIS]U] puk s|eliajew Suluied) Jo M3IAJ S, 249ydsIy3l]

a]DA0oUU] pUD 1031UOW O} 9NUIFUOD - BU0J}S 1D2ddD S310JJ BUIUIDI]

8'dy apl|s 225 ‘Suipiodau pue aan3|nd [e21Yyld puno.Je d|jnpow Alojepuewl
9jeledas e je Supjoo| spusawwiodal os|e aJaydsiylg ‘Sulsundaa pue
AJojepuew (su1ad3uo0d asAo|dwa w__u:m_wg Moy ‘aan3}|nd |ealy3a Suiyaoddns
ul 9jo. s Ja8euew ‘a1n)nd dn-)eads 3uideinodua ‘3'9) swall asueljdwod
A3 sulejuod yaiym Sujuieuy osiasadns Supjew spusawiwodas aiaydsiyly

*94n3NJ 9Y3 Ul papasu aq Aew sjuswdAo.dwi]

249yMm 99s 0] Sujuleu) syl MajAdJ 0] dnujjuod 0} dnoad asueldwod

ay) sa8eanodud pue ‘Sujuled) yans uj pajuasaad aJe aanynd asueldwod
punoJe sanss| Jueliodwi sajou aiaydsiyl] ‘swi} Aue je Ajlaejun|oA sSujujeu)
9y el Aew pue AjisiaAiun ayy Suiuiof uodn Suiuieay diysiapes| 03 ssadde
yHMm papinoud aue siaSeuew ajdoad jey) pajedipul dnoas asuejjdwod ay|

A103DpUDW BUTUIDI] 10STAI20NS DN

"10edwi aABY pjnom sasualpne J3|jews 0} SuiSessaw pajasie}

‘JoU120NS 313YM dujWId}3p d[3Yy 03 (*233 ‘Yd4easay ‘so1d|Yly ‘Upny

“4H) suoi3ouny Jauled 03 }oeqpaay ey 0} pue (dno.is suoljediunwwod
apIm-A}isIaAlun e *§'3) s1aulled suoljediunwwod diSajeu)s

Y}M S1104J3 SUOiIEIIUNWILIOD 9}EN|EAD 0} UOI}IUNJ ddueljdiuod ay3
saSeanodua a1aydsiy3g "JJe3s yum asuerdwod pue so1y3a ssnasip A|peo.q
0} 19}339|SMaU e pajiels AJ3uadal dnous asueljdwod ay} sajou aiaydsiyyg

"SSaUaIDMD 921N052] a5Da1oU] 'S}dadU0d SJIYJa SSnIsIp
07 suoIpUNJ 12470 YIIM UO0I3DI0GD][03 Ul SUOIIDIIUNWIIOD PajabiDy 23Da1)

"uoI}ed1}13UdP] AdUIIpNeE paseq

-){S14 13410 JO ‘SpuaJi} }oNpuodsiwl ‘|aA3] qof ‘uoijouny uo paseq jjeis je
pa3a8.e} aJe Ayjepow pue SuiSessaw punoJe suoisidap Jey} 2Insua 03 pue
‘ue|d)40AA S21Y33 pue adueldwo?) 3y} wouy dlesedas ue|d suoj3esUNWIWOD
JeaA-13nw pajedipap e Sujeald Spuawwodal asaydsiylg -aseq

29A0|dwa 3y} jo sped 03 S1104J auojepue)ls se pajasiel-||om jou Ajas.e|

SI pue ‘s1404Ja SujuieJ} wo.y uo SMo||o} Aj|ed1dA} ‘aanjeu ul [e1auas AJaA

si Sujuue|d suojjesluNWWod Jey} 33UapIAa papiroad dnous adsuejdwod
3y ‘saaAojdwa yoeal 03 salijepow Jo asn poos smoys ue|dXJopA SI1Y3TJ
pue 25ueldwoy) 3y} pue S11043 SUOIIEIIUNWILIOD JO MIIADI S,249YdsIyl]

SUOIIDOIUNUIWO)
795D} puUD 2]DUIPI003 12332q 03 UD[d SUOIFDIIUNWIWIOD ID2A-I}[NUU D 93021

suoljediunwwo)) pue Suiuiel] :suoljepuawiioday pue Suipuily



GZT 3° vI1 °obea

4400

BiEInpa 0] 85

Jou ‘siabBeuell O

"Buluip.ay saEbubwi S1y1
0] saljddb 1by1 Suimojjof ay3 123]3S SiaEbupbwi
38361 11008(d107 ) peAoR] a|doad JoJ Buiuip.ay auljuo padojanap
Sby uollbziub§.io INOA 1byl paibdipul NOA &AL

S — AJojppubpui
4o opmuaye eceunuima g oUlUID1} 10SIAI2ANS DI




GZT 3° GI1 °bea

S— MY . SHIHASIHLI

Jadoudwi J3Y3o Jo S3a13IAI30e [e33)|1 Ul pa3de3ua aAeY OYM S|enplAlpul
Aue Ajlioyine y3iy Jo suoiyisod woJs 9pn|axa 03 S340443 3|qeuoseal
3uisn s1 uoljeziueduo sy} JaYjaym sSMalAad 4aydsiyig ‘Ajjeul

"yoeoJdde ue yoans az1|13n 0}

apew 3ulaq 3Je S3J0H3 YdIYM 03 JUIXS 3Y} MIIASI 9M pue ‘wojje|d
3upjoeJ) pajea3ajul ue ojul SWISAS Juswsdeuew 3sed J1Isy}
3uilep1josuod ul apedasp 3se| Y3 J9A0 ssa430.4d snopuswaal spew
dAeY suoljeziuesdJio ‘uoljippe uj ‘suolisanb Jo sanss| uo adueping }93s
pue 3onpuodsiw Juodad AjsnowAuoue ued Asy3 Yyaiym Ag swisiueyodsw
sa9A0|dwa 3ulpiAoid ‘WS)SAS JaMO|ga3SIYM e sa3esado uoljeziue3uo
3Y3 JaY3aym 03Ul Y00 H ‘s3uly3 J3Y30 Suowyy ‘}oNnpuodsiw

10919p pue JuaAa.d 03 paudisap Swa)SAs Suliojiuow pue 3uiyipne
sAojdws uoljeziueduo say3 Joyiaym sajen|eAs os|e a4aydsiyig

'3|gedljdde se ‘qunodoe

0JU] U3 e} aJe S}3I04)3 dduel|dwod uo13dniiod-13ue pue swalsAs
JY3I1SJ9A0 uleyd A|ddng 'seaJe ys14-y3iy s ,uoljeziues.ao sayj 91en|eAs
03 W3SAS JUSUISSISSE SIJ B S3SN 3 JaYIayM se ||om se ‘wes3o.d
9due]|dwod pue SOIY1S S} JO SSAUDAIFIDLD 3Y3 JO SUOljen|eAs u O_H_.UQH_.QD

JIpolJad s3onpuod uoijeziuesduo sy 4ayiaym Suiuiwilap
pue SulIo}Uo|p

Sapnaul SiY] (3 JO SPISINO pue uoi3duN} dUel|dwod ay3 apisul
430Q) S924N0S3. paje|aJ 93820||e 03 MOY SaUIWIS3ap A|SulpJodde
pue s|SId A9 S} Sa1413USPI UOIIEZIUESIO S} MOY UO S9SNJ04 G UOIDSS S NOILD3S

SNOILVYIAISNOD AIA




GZT 3° 911 °bea

*aoueljdwod Yyym joeaaul Ajlejndau ya1ym suoijduny 1ayjo pue
‘Juapisa.d ay) ‘saajsn.] Jo pieog ayl yym uosriedwod weadoad wouy
sj3y3isul a.Jeys 0] SulNUIUOD SpUSWWOIA. Ajjeuolyippe a1aydsiylg
‘weaSo.ad anoA Ajipow nOA se a3132e.4d SIYy) D9nuUjjuod NoA jey}
puswwod3au Ajjeuonyippe am pue ‘auaydsiylj Aq ad13oe.ad paseinodud
Aj18uo.ys e si suosiaedwod weuadoud Sulo sa13ISISAIUN EPLIO|H 19Y)O
yim weaSoud a19y3 Sujyenjeas-4|as pajiodas dnoas ssuejdwod ay|

StwipiBoad A}IsIaAIuUN Jay30 03 UoSIIDAWiod Wo.j uoi3pwiojur Jo asn pooo

SN0
1950|2 WOo.j }1J2uUaq p|nood ‘Jjels wo.j paiayjes ejep ainynd _mu_fw
pue ‘spuau} auljjoy ‘wnpueiowsi syl ui paiysijysiy se Ajjernadsa

‘saliunjioddo uo aAIp 12daap e au9ym 23S 0} suapesd| ssado.d
Juswadeuew st 9y} yim Sui3jnsuod spuswiwodas asaydsiyly

‘paAIasIapun sayonoy weaSo.ad adueljdwod ay3 yey) seale awos
aAe3| Aew ss320.d S|y} po|eaA3 SMIIAIUL pUE UOI}eIUSWNI0P
pa3e120sse Y3 JO MIIAIY *adods uj peo.q A|qipaJoul S Ydiym
351213X 3PIM-A}ISIAAIUN € S| SS320.d Uol3eNn|eAd Ysi4 Sulsixa 3y

SAdNoJB snJoJ/smalAia3ul JJp3s auljjoy ‘SUol3pN[DA3 Wo1j

SpuaJ} Uo paspq Uo1}23s UOIIDN|DAD XSiJ pa)a54D] 210W 10J bUISD 19PISU0)D)

913 apl|s 235 ‘uoljeziues.io

9y} 1noy3no.y) ‘Alessadau se ‘suoljouny Jayjo pue wea)

INOA Aq sisAjeue pue |eAsali}al Asea 10) Sulydeu) Juswuielualus pue
Y13 350y 01 9|qe 9q AW ‘UOIIIUNS YH dY3 YIIM 3pIsa. Jy3iw yoiym
9soy3 Ajje1dadsa pue sASAINS so11)jend se Yyans ‘s|oo) SullsIXa a19ym
3unjenjeAs spuswwoda. a4aydsiyly 'sa1431s1394 Juswuielajus pue
Y13 10J 5|00 Sunjdea]) pue MO|J{I0M PaZI19)Ndwod 0} pIAOW SABY
(%179 1e) dnoud yaewyduag ayy Ajjerdadss pue ‘sweadoad soueldwod
ainje ‘ssadoud |[enuew Ajas.e| e pajeana. Sunjoed) Juswuielsaju
pue 113 Suljpuey 40} ssad0.d 3y} Jo MalAal s 249yds1yl]

WEXUB\_H
|pbnubwl 322b|da.J 0] [00) bU}IDI} JUWUIDLIdIUS puD 1 JIb JUaWiajdul|

uoI32939( pue SuLIo}IUO|A :SUOIJepUaWW0I3Y pue Sulpul



GZT 3° LIT °bea

GC
@ W %6 {(Anoads ssesid) J8u10
oS %G5G s8po2 BuiunNoloy

SO0 X321 ‘S|IBWS

o .
© ke ek ‘s1eeyspealds - BuoBI] [BNUBHKY

S8INse|osIp

Y%L Y9 - . .
MOE1] 0] |00] 8IEMOS 35N

SHIAINN

S33HONO! dnNods
3k LlZOZ AGVINHINIE

¢saakojdwa
1N0A Aq papiAo.d 10 0] USAIE JUWIUIDIIIUS J0/pUD SIS XoD13 03 3sn Aubdwod JNoA saop ABojouydal Ibypa 9T I

BUDJODJ] [DNUDW 23D]da1 03 [00] BUDJIDI] JUWUIDII2]Ua puD }JI5 Juatiajdul]




GZT 3o 811 °bea

o TR LT D000

JUYIHASIHLE

1T SEINISOE

"SUJ92U0D pPasied 9ABY OYM 3SOY3 JO
8ulaq||am ay3 Jojluow 03 elep a|ge|ieAe jo aSejueApe Suisel
2Je suol1eziuesio YdIym 03 JU3Xa a3 JOPISUOD aM ‘Aj1seT

"'s94npad0.d pue saidljod s3I 03 sadueyd Auessadau Aue
3upjew Sulpn|oul ‘3oNPUOISIW Je|IWIS JO S9duUelsul JusaAaid
pue 031 puodsaJ 03 sdals 3|qeuoseau 3uie} sl uoljeziuesdio
Y3 J9Yylaym SalJluaA os|e aaaydsiylg ‘indul aoueljdwod
pue s21Y3a J0J MOJ|e SWaISAS uoljen|eAs asuewJdotad

pue wajsAs uoljjowodd ay3 Jayiaym pue ‘SaAljuadul

pue saunseaw AJeul|didsip y3no.yj soueljdwod sa3eanodua
pue $32404U3 uoljeziuesd.o ay3 Jaylaym SMIA3J 319Ydsiyig

‘uoljeziued.io
e 0} 9|ge|IeA. ‘S103ea4d 34N} N pue ‘SuaJdew 34n3nd
159q 3y} aJe uoljeziued.io ue ssoJdde sasAo|dws ajowoud

pue azIAI3uadUul 1eY3 SWaSAsS ay3 Jey) Suipuelsiapun SUIMo.3
B S329|JaJ SIY] "saljlioyine Alole|n3ad o) Snd0J 3|gelapisuod @C__Q _Um_D
JO eaJe Ue ulewaJ pue sieaA Maj 1se| ay3 JaA0 Yimou3 UF_N HE@E@ULOH—F_N

SNOpUaWa.]} U03JIapun aAeY S2AIJUDUI pue ‘aul|didsip

‘JUBWIadJ04Ud 3s1udwod jeys syusuodwod weasoud ay | 9 NOILD3S

SNOILVYIAISNOD AIA




GZT 3° 611 °bea

€47 apl|s 33 “(Upny X 913LL “YH "3'9) s1auried [euoijouny Jsyjo

Y}IM aJeys ued } Yydiym ‘ejep siyj 31d1jos o0} suoljsanb pajasiey yse

0] S9pN|2u0d uoles1ISaAUl 8y} J91je (uoljew.oul }0e3uod apiroad
OYM 3s0Y] pue suoljeg1)saAuUl pa)Ia|as Ajwopue.a wo.y asoyl Ajjensn)
sJ19)40daJ 129]9s Y}im dn Mo||0} 0] }ipNy J0/pue YH Jo d|ay ay]

3s1jud dno.S ddueldwod ay3 Jey) spuswwodal asaydsiyyg ‘paddeljun
24n3|nd |ea1y3a pue ‘@213snf jeuolileziueduo ‘ssado.d uoljesiysaAul

9Y3 Ul ISN.} JO S|9A3| punoJe uoljeuwriojul ajgen|eA 3ulAes| si

pue ‘sassaulim Juedy1usis 10 S19340dd. YIM SMIIAIIUI UoleS1ISaAU]
-3sod Su13dnpuod jou’si dnous asueldwod ay] ‘sia)jeui uoijesiysanui
10} 3|ge|ieA. $92.4n0Sa. pue Jjels pajiwil| ay) UsaAi3 sjqepuelstapun
pue jaLiq si su9340dau yuim dn-moj|oj uoljesiIsaAul-3sod

$S2201d JO SSaUaA1393]Ja 'WAISAS Ul 3SNJ3 9)DN|DAS 0F S2SSaUFIM
JUDSIJIUB]S puD Si2310da. Jo suorsanb uonbBIIsaAul-}sod pajabin] )Sy

‘sainpadoud uoijesiysanul ay3 Suidnpuod Jo salpjiqisuodsal
urew ay3 aney sdno.is asay} se ‘saweljawi} uoi3njosal uolesiysanul
ssaJppe pue suol}esi}saAul SSo4de SisAjeue asned J00. JO 3sh 3y}

9z]|ew.0j 0] suolyes|isaAul d|puey jeyj siauried Ad) 9sayl Y3IM HIom
0} Ajjunyioddo siy3 asn ued wea) adueljdwod mu.w.vw>oLQE_ aq ued
s3sonba. 0} ssauaAIsuodsal a13YM 93s 0] sdaulied Ad ym dn moj|os
jJuswiiedap asueljdwod ay) Spuswwodal 319Ydsiyy3 ‘ssajoyisauoN
‘Aem Aue ul juaidiyop A|SnoLI9S d.1e saweljawl} uolyes|3saAul
aoue]dwod ay3 Jey) pulj Jou pip MaIAdJ S, 243YdsIyl] -dwil)

Jjels giosqe ualjo sajjitolad Sujadwod pue peauds Ajuiyj Ajjeluuaiad
9.4e $924n0saJ A}ISI9AIUN ‘Aem AjDwi1} e u] suolleSI)saAul 939|dwod

0} 9|ge|leAe $924n0s3. pue sawl]} punoJe sem we.aSo.ad ssueldwod

9y} JO M3IADJ S,249YdsIYl7 Sulinp paJajunodus away} Juals|suod

papaau buidIn0sal

IAIID51ISIAUI [DUOIIIPPD 249YM 935 0] SaWI] UOIIN|0SaJ aSDI 103 IUO|A

v°41 3pPIIS 235 "Ni4 3e pasn sl jeym ueyy

A|peo.q aiow asned j00. Juswajdwi 0] pual (%€ /) dno.is yiewyouag
a2yl Aw_o Jsow sajou a19ydsiyl3 ‘'s9je. 2ouapidoul J9Mo| 0} anp ad1jou
adedss 9sIMIaylo Aew Yd1ym spuauy Jepet-ayl-1apun, Ajjuspl

djay ||1m os Sulo "|oo3} Sujdoe.] ayj ul apIsaL YdIym suoljesiIsaAul

||e uo sisAjeue asned j00. Sunjuawa|dwi spuswwodad a1aydsiyl3
‘pa340daJ S| 9NnSs| }oNPUOISIW SNOLISS e uaym Jo 3uiriodad ul

pua.) e paljljusapl aAey Asy] 949YM suolleniis ul Ajuo suoljesiisaaul
uo sisAjeue asned 3o0o. w.iopidd Asy) pajou dnoas8 ssueldwod ay |

J003 BUDIDI} 343
Bnoayy ssbd yolym SUOIIDBIFSIAUI [[D UO SISA|DUD aSNDI 004 25DIN0dUT

aul|di1asi pue Juawa10ju7 :SUoIjepuawodlaYy pue Suipul



GZT 3° 02T °beq

8¢

‘uonoe Aeundiasip 10 SS0| SHOUSS 01 SPE3| 1BY] 8NSS! 19NPUODISIW

1wesijiubis e 1o Buinpodal Ul puall e st alayl ) - {AUoads ases|d) saoge suolido syl ul BuS1uD

Y7 WOy Jusayip a1 yoiym 'enaiuo Buimol|oy a4l uo paseq st )l 1hq 'suoiiebBhnsaaul saje sisAjeue
a5ned jo0d Bunonpuco A|JUS1sSISUcD Sk am 'ssp jasuodsay A3IsiaAjun [eUoileUIalU| BplIO|S

[T =T

S SIS RUR SSTR0 00 B B0 aneaubis Jopefigsasuypased
BLonpuog Ajusissung fiLEsn SHARUR 85MREa-1000 suopebnsan) 0 [EAE | LITELIED 0L J0 ssa|peag
0L AR B 0N IUBISISUIDD Sl PRIPUE TR UG AU 12 suoeinsan) R uo suoneiisan) g oo

B

L -
) &
LL

o

et
el

(s£1=u) sea10uoH DIWM 1oz

fit = u) dnoio slewyouag

;1onpuodsiw jo
22U3pIdUl 0] (S)aSNDI 1004 UBISSD 0] SISA|pub 3SNDI
3004 Bu13onpuod Ajaualind Aubdwod unoA s| t°4t

[003 BUDODJ aY3 ysnoayj
Ssod [21yM SUOIIDBIISoAUI [|D
UoO SISA|DUD 25NDJ J00.J 95DIN03U7




OH

GZT 3o 121 °bea

6C

dn-pog) paeeg-faans Ipues
1

oN :9suodsay AISIaAIUN [EUOIIBUISIU| BPLIO|S

(]

. )

L

67

LA SLOBBSIBALOD dN-s0)0 4 LIWACILY 84 SLONESIaALOT
1 L

soEsallim
sasradag s ubs pue s s

(szi= ) savloUoH HIWM 120Z Il

{it = u) dnoig suewyousg

£Pas0|2 S1 UoIIbBIISaAUI

ay3 J1214b uonbsiisaAul ub uj pajbdidizipd

OYM S|bNPIAIpUI WOJJ XIDqpaad) Buliayips

10J ssa20.d b aAbY U0IIDZIUDEIO0 UNOA S0 €4t

ssaJoJd

2]DN|DAJ 0] Sa55aU]IM JUDJIJIUBIS
PUD SJ1230da.1 Jo suoijsanb
UOIIDBIISaAUI-1S0d pajabiD] XSy




(014

GZT 3o zZ1 °bea

slieyy yiesH ‘eoueldwoy 4010811q
suole|ey JogeT] aakojdwg Yoyoaiiq
SoN9|Y1y ‘@oueldwo) J01081iq S1EI00SSY
uoisnjou| pue AlSIaAIQ 1SOA0Id-8DIA ‘S82IN0SaY UBWNH dAS
JUB}NSUO) S|0Jlu0) Hodx3
J201O AlINoag uoiewIOU| JOIYD
1921110 [e1oUBUIY JBIYD PUE dA JOIUSS

SAIINOdX3 UPNY 18IYD
|osuno? |essusr) Aindseq

yosessay ‘dAY
[9SUN0) |eJBusL)

se8)sni| Jo pieog N4 ‘@81sni|
wspisaid Ausieniun
aoue| dwo) 03084 JUB)SISSY

182110 AoeAld pue soueldwo) J8iyn

uosJalled UaA8lS
Zawon-e1sany uueor
MOLIpUY UINSY
uospnH Jaiubed |3
Jayosi4 uoQg
eliobuo ejlanenldHy
[lessar yiauuay
swel||IM JoA8s]
uojsie|N yieqgezi|3
ZalJa1INL) Yagoy
o||1se soled
|lemo] eyseleN
Bilaquasoy Mie|
sel4-eiaiqe) znT

BlLIO4ET Jojuusp

:MBINS] SSBUBAII0aYe pue ubisep s,N|4 Jo Led se aleydsiylg AQ pemainieul 8iem SfenpIAipul BUIMOJ|0) 8y |

1SI7 MalAIo]



GZT 30 €21 °beq

1202 2424dsiy33o

JlueT] @l

YSIUOAS dWw ]

uo3lsiny| |esN

~1140Hd 'SSANISNE LYVINS 0009

J43HdSIH13E




Compliance and Ethics Program Survey Assessment Based Results
Total Respondents: 2711
NOTE: Certain question numbers are skipped as they were utilized if respondents chose to submit additional comments in free text.

Question/Response Option RESULTS
Total # Percentage
Q1 - I am aware that FIU has an Office of University Compliance and Integrity.
Yes 2413 89%
No 298 11%
Q2 - I am familiar with the purpose and function of the FIU Compliance and Integrity program.
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 1964 72%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 400 15%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 347 13%
Q3 -1 am aware that FIU has a Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer.
Yes 1977 74%
No 704 26%
Q4 - | know how to contact the Chief Compliance and Privacy Officer?
Yes 1299 48%
No 1382 52%
Q5 - Have you read Compliance Matters, FIU's Compliance & Ethics Newsletter?
Yes 788 30%
No 1855 70%
Q6 - | am aware of FIU's Export Controls website?
Yes 889 34%
No 1754 66%
Q7 - | know where to view University policies and procedures.
Yes 2242 90%
No 259 10%
Q8 - | am aware of those University policies and procedures that impact my job.
Yes 2309 92%
No 192 8%

Q9 - | am satisfied with the University policy and procedure communication and training efforts | receive from the Office of
Compliance and Integrity.

Strongly/Somewhat Agree 1699 68%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 608 24%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 194 8%
Q10 - I understand the content and expectations of existing policies and procedures.

Yes 2153 86%
No 348 14%

Q11 - | prefer to receive University policy and procedure training in the following format.
Live with a presenter 534 15%
Online training 1819 51%
Email Communication 153 32%
Other 62 2%

Q12 - My senior leadership team member (Vice President or Dean) supports the goals and objectives of the University
Compliance and Integrity Program.

Strongly/Somewhat Agree 1939 80%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 434 18%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 51 2%

Q13 - My senior leadership team member (Vice President or Dean) sets a good example and models ethical behavior.

Strongly/Somewhat Agree 1964 81%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 380 16%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 80 3%
Q14 - My senior leadership team member (Vice President or Dean) encourages ethical behavior.
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 2045 85%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 318 13%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 61 2%
Q15 - My direct supervisor supports the goals and objectives of the University Compliance and Integrity Program.
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 2112 89%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 231 10%

Page 124 of 125
1



Question/Response Option RESULTS
Total # Percentage
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 43 2%
Q16 - My direct supervisor sets a good example and models ethical behavior.
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 2145 90%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 168 7%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 73 3%
Q17 - My direct supervisor encourages ethical behavior.
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 2178 91%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 155 6%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 53 2%
Q18 - My peers at work exhibit ethical behavior.
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 2140 91%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 163 7%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 66 2%
Q19 - | am aware of the FIU Ethical Panther Hotline (with an option to report anonymously).
Strongly/Somewhat Agree 1624 69%
Neither Agree nor Disagree 324 14%
Strongly/Somewhat Disagree 421 18%
Q21 - | believe University compliance training has improved my ability to inquire about or report misconduct and violations
of policy.
Yes 1905 80%
No 464 20%
Q22 - Would you report a violation of FIU policy or procedure?
Yes 2210 93%
No 154 7%
Q24 - Would you report a suspected violation of law involving FIU?
Yes 2251 95%
No 107 5%
Q26 - Would you report a potentially unethical situation involving FIU?
Yes 2218 95%
No 128 5%
Q28 - Concerns about retaliation would prevent me from reporting a compliance issue.
Yes 565 24%
No 1775 76%
Q30 - Do you supervise others?
Yes 873 38%
No 1446 62%
Q31 - Are you a Faculty member?
Yes 855 37%
No 1464 63%
Q33 - Years employed by FIU:
Less than 1 year 277 12%
1-2 years 309 13%
3-5 years 444 19%
6-10 years 487 21%
More than 10 years 802 35%

Page 125 of 125
2



